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Shine for your Shining Life




Stay Secure
& Confident

Create a strong password and
turn on two-factor authentication
for double the protection.
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VISION | gfteehiuT

To be a ‘Development Bank of Choice’ by
practicing value-based banking and fulfilling
the expectations of wider communities through
innovative banking products and services.

MISSION | c7ea1

Delivering unique and innovative, inclusive and
excellent service to the customers, creating
values to the investors, offering high performance
culture and employee wellbeing, and contributing
for sustainable economic development.
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CORPORATE VALUES
JHE AT YA1e

1. Professional Ethics
T Afaewar

We aim to achieve our objectives by maintaining
high standard of professional ethics and commit
to maintain integrity all the times including while
dealing with the customers, complying with
the Acts, Rules, Regulations and Directives and
discharging our responsibilities. Furthermore,
we aim to in-build self-regulation as a culture in
every team member.

2. Teamwork

Teamwork produces superior results. Therefore,
our core values are to build up the team and
exert the effort collectively to accomplish the set
goals.

3. Customer Satisfaction

Our focus shall be on satisfying the customers
and growing sustainable relationship with them
rather than concentrating in short-term benefits.

4. Corporate Social Responsibility

FETT

The Development Bank, being an integral part
of the society, undertakes its responsibilities to
contribute towards broader social goals.

5. Improvements and Innovation

QR T Tq9aAq

Continuous improvements on the plans,
processes, actions & skills of the employees
enables the development Bank to have
competitive advantage and coping with the
external environment better. Likewise, innovation
in our products and services will help us reap the
benefits of first-mover advantage.
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OUR SLOGAN &Rl ART
“Shine for your Shining Life”.

“TUTSP! SIS SAP! AT IEA”
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274 |CC Emerging Asia Banking Award 2024
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We are elated to share that we have been honored with three awards at the 24ICC Emerging Asia

Banking Conclave & Awards, held on August 23, 2024, at The Leela Palace, New Delhi, by the Indian
Chamber of Commerce. This marks our second consecutive year of receiving this recognition. The
categories are:

~

Developme:
Bank Ltd

Runner-Up

E\'?I INDIAN CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

(iEZ) INDLAN CHAMBER OF COMMERCE |

!

Best Bank, Nepal Best Performance on Best Performance on
\ Runner Up Profitability, Nepal Growth, Nepal /
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CONCLAVE © AWARDS

We are elated to share that Shine Resunga Development Bank Ltd has been awarded the title of ‘Best
Managed Development Bank 2024° on March 23, during the 8th Newbiz Business Conclave & Awards,
organized by New Business Age Pvt Ltd.
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National Best Presented Annual Report
Award 2023 - .
[ ] Based on the annual report for the financial year

i Pt 2079/80, we have been honored with a Certificate

s Bank Lin : . ) .
fibe Bosengs Duvelopmsat Mok Limied of Merit for financial transparency, accountability,

Certificate of Merit and good governance by the Institute of Chartered
Category: Financial Services Sector Accountants of Nepal (ICAN).
Lty
Executive Director Fresident
CA. Sariaay Karmar Sk CA. Suign Kooy ol
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Employee Happiness Index

Shine Employee
Happiness Index 2080

SHINE RESUNGA

DEVELOPMENT BANK LTD.

We believe that happy and satisfied team members contribute more to the organization. To ensure
this, the development bank annually measures the Employee Happiness Index (EHI) to assess team
members’ happiness and satisfaction. The bank prioritizes the mental and physical well-being of its

employees.

Employee Learning & Development

-

Continuous learning and development are important aspects of Bank’s culture. We believe team
memberswho are well-trained, continuously developed, updated, and professional bring a competitive

advantage to the organization by meeting customer expectations and mitigating risks.

f.‘qasﬁmﬁ'cﬁuﬁéaﬂ
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SHINE CONFERENCE 2024

{ . SHINE RESUNGA
=

GEVELOPMENT BANK LTD,
/J\/
TRANSFORMING CHALLENGES ‘
INTO OPPORTUNITIES

giqergar - favamw - srcafara

Transforming Challenges into Opportunities

The Shine Conference 2024 was organized across different regions on various dates. Participants
included the Executive Team, Heads of Departments, Cluster Heads, and Branch Managers from the
respective regions. The purpose of the conference was to review the overall performance of the bank
and the milestones achieved in the previous fiscal year 2080/81, as well as to set the annual strategic
targets and plans for the fiscal year 2081/82.
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FALGUN 11,2080 - 16th Anniversary Celebration of the
Development Bank

On the Tith of Falgun, 2080, the development bank marked its 16th anniversary Celebration with a
series of distinguished events. The program featured a press conference, the presentation of the

Shine Economic Journalism Award, and the recognition and awarding of outstanding employees for

their exceptional contributions

~

On the occasion of completing 15 years, Bank has jointly awarded the Shine Economic Journalism
Award-2080 to journalists Ghanashyam Gautam and Bhuvan Karki, who have been actively
contributing to the economic sector of Lumbini Province while based in Butwal. The bank has been
awarding journalists every year for the past three years with the aim of encouraging journalists who
excel in economic reporting. On that occasion, the bank awarded New Baneshor branch Kathmandu
among the branch offices operating in the urban area, Kharjyang branch Gulmi among the

branch offices operating in the rural areas as the best branch office.

~

Best Branch 2080/81 (Urban Area) — Best Branch 2080/81 (Rural Area) ~
New Baneshwor Branch Kharjyang Branch

LSS
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Corporate Social Responsibility

The bank has undertaken a range of initiatives as part of its corporate social responsibility (csr)
efforts. In the fiscal year 2080/8], the development bank successfully executed 56 CSR programs,
addressing key areas such as student empowerment, cultural and heritage preservation, health and
sports, women’s health and safety, environmental sustainability, road safety, social development,
cleanliness, and education. Notable CSR projects completed during the fiscal year 2080/81 include:

Grow Green Project

T P Ut Avavia sl AMdE a9 050 /59 /T 9,000 fafaw gairdre F@ fazar s 3 1 afaear
AT a¥ J0WR /50 AT 94,000 ¥@ fawar AMTHET a9 a9 99 4,000 F@ fadr Afed Ha 5,000 FT@
ferear ITdT FrepT GO FHA TS ATH T | TG ATTIE TUHT FISHUS! &FHT 00, ARTATHTE SFHT Y0,
TRTET &7 q00, HREdT &FHT q00, Jade SAHT 00, THT, ATTEAT qaT S &FHT 400, JTedT &
YO, FIAE] &FHT 100, T[F &FAT 100 T Ufe=H &= 00 ¥@ feazar Afque! faar |

Shine Grow Green Project, Dang Shine Grow Green Project, Rupandehi




Financial Literacy Program

AqIfdF a9 050/5q W bl fafqe Esdr 9% Fer (O AeRar gEEedT wdhHes  ATAeHT
TV G | ITh BIAHHEAT Y 253 HHENT, [Far, A1 qUT AT sqaardl, Geariad oaere ASTIRAT ST
FHER, fqandi, A0 raddies T Jarese! Toael eHIHTal el (43T |

No. of Financial Literacy Program & Total Participants in F/Y 2080/81

Particulars Numbers
1 Number of Programs 15
2 Total Participants 5,983
21 Salaried Workers 128
22 Farmers 377
23 Small & Medium Entrepreneur 378
24 Daily Wages Earners 357
25 Potential Migrant Workers 526
26 Students 2597
27 Women Entrepreneur 812
2.8 Remittance Receivers 618
29 Youth 190

9g 3 T yfdaes
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Education & Skill Development Project

el faae qur ot TET UET B9 AU faundiewdr e fawa ¥ A e S anee
TATTH B | (a9 T arides AT foae foranfiesars T Sudearesd s GediaHdl aradid 3uded
TRITHT T | BTAAAR! AT SMETeh FLAEEATS FFIER T A [SiTed JTFUET TITH Tehl T, STFATS
faandieear faaear s@ar T gfafaaT 96T qerua g | qrd, Jaeenr Aatawrs dwd fefied anawar
FIFHHEE I FoaTad T4 HATH G |

Community Health & Welfare Project

Sehel THITAHT TETET FHAAT T IR T Fe9de QTHINST SAHT FANA FAGEEFIRT ATATTS IR HEEHT
THIIH] @R AALAFATEE Grige T AT qar T FEAWT ARIEHT F | Culture Preservation
& Promotion Project A=A T ATSH, TRFRNTT el I AE(dH FRHTAT TEANT T AHiaH
ETTHN ARET T JAGTHT (AT FedWT T8 AT G |

Infrastructure Development Project

dF WA TAeEH] IR T FEW, AATEARIT AT AAG TH I TATIR AR
AN ¥ ATATERU [GAITH] AR TATTHT G | W AAHTAEEHTR] TEHIAT BRRHAT T
T ATATERUTT TXHRTEH AR TATST TTTeT T8 BIERAAT SAaETITHT el T g |

Support for Local Businesses & Youth Development Project

Sl FHITAHT FA T ATMdF g ARG [ATSH 490l fafa=T qrafsrs FTamaee Ahd &
AT ¥ AT (qehTAT FEANT T Jqagar Tl B | A1, Sebel BT HeT T HeToqd STl FRhHEEdTs
TS TR M AAGEs, G99 TqH F A Jadd 6 Gedn WH G | Tqde S
fFaTe®® T T T ¥ a9 HFEe® darsd Hed 6 | Al AT [, ¥ T Aqcd
[P HET IGYTA AT FATEEHT FEANT T HIAHHEER] GTATSTA HIhd AT (FeBTEHT ] T |

AE q¥ 050,059 AT TS AN AT Gl (a0 |

S.N Particulars Amount Rs.
1 Shine Grow Green Project 20,79,200
2 Shine Digital Classroom Project 174,251
3 Shine Financial Literacy Program 8,08,535
4 Shine Entrepreneurship Support Program 277,500
5 Environment Conservation & Culture Preservation 36,31,219
6 Others 129,979
Total 71,00,684

Shine public speaking contest 2080

e TAROE,

Re.3000/-

i




Bank organized a Public Speaking Contest in which 21 students from the management, science, law,
and engineering faculties participated. Bank was proud to reward the winner, first runner-up, and
second runner-up with NPR 5,000, NPR 3,000, and NPR 2,000 respectively, along with trophies and
certificates of appreciation. With 21 students participating and discussing the crucial topic of “Protect
your money, secure your future,” we are optimistic about the impact of such initiatives on empowering
our youth and fostering financial awareness.

Global Money Week 2024

Shine Resunga Development Bank Limited celebrated Global Money Week 2024, embracing the theme
“Protect your money, secure your future” from march 18 to 24, 2021. We invited 20 students from Nabin
Audhyogic Kadar Bahadur Rita Secondary School for a Student Exposure Visit to our central office. The
students interacted with all of our Head of Departments and Department Team Members, where they
attempted to understand the fundamentals they have learned in class. This was followed by a 2 hour
workshop on Financial Literacy aimed at protecting money and securing the future.
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ToATAFET AMAT  AHRATAT GIHT BTGk ATAR
FAT HAAA The a7 |

TEEEHl T T FgATTare (=R Fq1 omfe @gg
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el %ﬂ' (Paid-up Capital):

05 TG HATTH Fh1IST 3. ¥ ofF 93 S 3% A %0 WA EeA Aiord [AROETT HATHT
AE 3.00 YA & ThH & ¥ HAE 0 AE 0 AR AT TA T Y GANT o g THH B, 3
FRES & AE &% FAR ANG ATAIL (AL STATHT ARA F JATTA GHA) (AT AT 79 THHT
FATAT J&T TRTH G | ITh AT AR (R0 Ge=1d =201 G511 & ¥ F9 50 Fe 49 @ T |
ForTa Y AT =T JSITHT TUHT TR ATs S8Td THIMH Joei@ THUH G |

Paid-up Capital (In Million)

4,283.88 4,733.69
3,408.46 8108
3,016.34 | |
2076-77 2077-78 2078-79 2079-80 2080-81

ST U7 FINET (Reserve & Surplus):

3050 TG HATRTAT TSI TIT HITHT T q AT 5% HAUS IR @ <% AR IWHET 059 ATIE
HATTHT Q% 0% JATAA Jhg g T X AT QU FIE 52 A 43 e AUH 3 | favrd ¥ ToH7 ST
TIT BUEEHT AUHI GRATT A5 61T THITH Jood@ TTH 3 |

Reserve & Surplus (In Million)

2,158.21
1,630.53 1,892.22
1,444.87
1,235.06 |
2076-77 2077-78 2078-79 2079-80 2080-81

‘qasﬁaﬁasq%ﬁa:r

8
3. 0¢0[¢A

4 F{_Ac-‘-‘\_ .



TAGAT PN (Shareholder's Fund):

050 UG HATHT & SREA! FM & § 79 9 He 9 a@ WHHAT 059 ATIE HATH
9.4 gfeerder gfg 92 & € 979 o FAE 98 oM@ TUH G | fa¥Tq L TIAT B TARIAT FITHT TTRT
RS BT THITH Jool@ TRTH G |

Shareholder’s Fund (In Million)

6,891.90
5,411.54 6,176.11
4,853.34
4,251.40 |
2076-77 2077-78 2078-79 2079-80 2080-81

EN T (Total Assets)

050 AU HATTHT & TN & £3 379 ¥q FRIS o5 dM@ % 9% TEHMN 059 AT HATTH
1%.9% gfaeae gig 9 T O3 AT Y WIS ¥ A 95 BN AUH g | feNra ¥ aUAT FA FeEir
TUH! R T3 28T THITH Fooi@ TR T, |

Total Assets
73,656.42
63,418.75
50,673.22
42,230.04
35,269.43 ‘
2076-77 2077-78 2078-79 2079-80 2080-81
@ | s, s 2
1N 314, 0¢0/¢q



GEER SRR (Deposit Mobilization) :

2050 WG FARTHT 8T aiR=med 5. Y& 3@ ¥q #RIS 4% d@ & &R IWHMA 08 AE
HHT=THT Q0 4§ Ffaerad gig 98 T.8% od 3R FIS YR A L0 TR JUH B | (e qfe=rear a=q
& 3% gfderd, "gadr e g0 gfqera, & Hera « gfqerd Fedr, qg1 4= [ed 9 qfqerd whl g
a9 o W auer fAer gk T Tuar gigars @ aHIiE Swi@ TRTH F |

Total Deposits (In Million)

66,325.25
56,415.98
43,449.79
35,766.29
30,589.69
2076-77 2077-78 2078-79 2079-80 2080-81
Deposit Mix
M Saving
W Fixed
M Current & Other
Call
g‘ ag, ot arfis ufides %
LN | 31T, R0¢0[¢q



Fol qAT FIYE (Loan & Advances):

050 HATYTE HATRTHT Foll qIT ATAE . ¥Y Iqd % IS ¥Y oG ¥ FAR TEHMT 050 ATE
AT 9% 2% Gfqeraer gfg 95 & LY qd ¥R FIE IR AW &R g% AUH B | favra L avAr w1t
JAT ATIE AT FUHT Fig TAT FATAT ATIARPT FAl TAT ATIEATS SETT THINAH Foed@ TTTHT G |

Loan & Advance (In Million)

53,762.04
45,964.55
38,037.19
31,835.46 '
24,871.71 | '
2076-77 2077-78 2078-79 2079-80 2080-81

Loan & Advance Mix

B Term Loan
m Overdraft

H Trust Receipt Loan / Import
Loan

m Demand & Other Working
Capital Loan

B Residential Personal Home Loan
(Up to Rs. 15 million)

B Real Estate Loan

u Margin Nature Loan

1 Hire Purchase Loan

11 Deprived Sector Loan

Bills Purchased

m Other Product

@ | 5.7 "



ST AT (Interest Income):

050 HTUTE HATTAT TS AT 5. § 9 29 FIS W& a1 c¥ AR TEHhMAT TG AT TUHT 2. 9¥
gfqerae gig 9% T 9 T 9§ FIS 3 AE@ YO TR JUH B | [o0Taq L THH] AT ATRTHAT TR

[N ~

qgATs BT THIH Il TRUHT G |

Interest Income (In Million)

6,977.99 7,169.35
4,680.34
3,227.88 3,208.85 |
2076-77 2077-78 2078-79 2079-80 2080-81

TS @9 (Interest Expenses):

050 ATUTE HATTHT ATl @ &, ¥ A9 ©% HIE O A@ & B9 WHHT JH AMIF FUAT 0.5%
gfqeTae HHI A5 ¥, ¥ IqF 9 HIS  A@ & TAR TUH G | (o7 L TIHT TS GoAT AU Fhgears
BT THINAH oot TRTHT ) |

Interest Expenses (In Million)

4,860.71 4,819.11
3,017.29
1,965.64 1,870.42 |
2076-77 2077-78 2078-79 2079-80 2080-81
\g‘ ag, ot arfis ufides 9z
LN | 31T, R0¢0[¢q




gq il HATRTAT (Net Interest Income) :
050 UG AATHT @& AT AT &, R A9 ] FIS R M@ WR &SR Tl T AT aoHT
99 gfaeraer g3 9 T, R T MBS R A ¥o FAR AUH G | [T L AUAT @7 AT AR
qUH! gt 2818 THITH IJooid TRUH F |

Net Interest Income (in Million)

2,117.28 2,350.24
1,663.05
1,338.43
1,262.23
2076-77 2077-78 2078-79 2079-80 2080-81

FHATY G (Personnel Expenses):

050 AU FITTHT FHARI @9 FUs F0S Y] A ¥ FAR IEHAE] IF AfdF Tadr 3.9%
gfqeraer gfg 9 5. 92 FIE L @ QO AR AUH G | fa¥rq L TIAT FHARN AT TURT IFEATS
T FHINTH Jool@ TRUHT G |

Personnel Expenses (In Million)

720.60
585.12
497.27
430.47

337.19 ‘ ‘

2076-77 2077-78 2078-79 2079-80 2080-81
\g‘ qg, 3l aiffe ufdaes qu
LN | 31T, R0¢0[¢q



AT ST @9 (Other Operating Expenses):

050 AU HATTAT (qehTa Fehebl AT ToaTed @ &, 3% FRAS 45 A1 Y3 B TEHWT TG ATTAH
FYAT €33 Fqas gig 9% 7. ¥4 FRIS R A€ &3 FAR qUH g | fowra « awwr fawra dwar a0
TATAT GoAH] TUH JgeATs 2T THITH Foot@ TRTH 3 |

Other Operating Expenses (In Million)

416.26
391.85
335.86
262.70
23194
2076-77 2077-78 2078-79 2079-80 2080-81

T HATHRT (Net Profit) :

2050 ATUE HATTHI @& HATHT &, 94 F(E 50 AT 5 &9 TEHAT T& ATdF qudr % YR qiqerad

FHT ATE % S5 HE U3 A@ 39 FR AUH G | [o0a ¥ IUHT 8 HATHAT AU TRAAT A5 814
FHITH Joei@ TRTH T |

Net Profit (In Million)

758.03 685.32
648.71
503.72
426.75 | '
2076-77 2077-78 2078-79 2079-80 2080-81
\g‘ ag, 3ff a1f¥e ftiaes 20
S | 3ma. 0¢of¢q



gfer AR A=A (Earning Per Share):
2050 TG HATTHT Jid 917 AT &, Q9.5% TEHhIHT JH ATIH TUHT Yiq 9 AR 5. 9¥.¥5
TUHT T | faTd ¥ T 9fq A7 ATRTHET AURT GRadT @8 81T TRIH Jooi@ TRUEH F |

Earning Per Share

17.16 17.69

15.39 &
o~ 1M 14.48

2076-77 2077-78 2078-79 2079-80 2080-81

fsET =t (Non Performing Loan):

2050 HTYTE HATIAT (T FAl ATATT .59 AN TP TH AT TUAT (6T HAT A1 3.3
e AU B | o1 ¥ AT (ST HSAT ATATTAT TR TRATT ATS S8TT THITH Foei@ TRTH! G |

Non Performing Loan

3.43%

2076-77 2077-78 2078-79 2079-80 2080-81

CJERE R .



9ia AR SSHA (Market Price Per Share) :
ferrer 4 o foepra S gfdq SR ATRTHIMT HUHT TREdT |8 TR THITH Joord TRTH G |

Market Price

405.00

2076-77 2077-78 2078-79 2079-80 2080-81
A AR A (Price Earning Ratio) :
foRTa Y AT Hed ATRTHT SAATTHT HUH TRadT s ST JHITH Ioci@ TRUH G |
PE Ratio
27.97
21.70
17.19
14 4> 17.33
2076-77 2077-78 2078-79 2079-80 2080-81

@ | oy, e 2



HAAFR TAT SNTAT FBE T Sebey TR AT

FHET ATATHT ATTHR, TREATHE FT AT A7 RTTRHT T S TAHT T FET I &, 34 FBS 4O 1@
SO VR, ATTF dh & 39 FS 0% AT £& B, HA T IR IS ¥ AMG ¥§ AR ALHR[ HITH]
STFAT TR G |

g AT quT A=Wy IRfeafaee FFre SRaRAT Wl J697
AT JAT ATET AATAFT THATT TAET / ATHT TTHT TG Aehebl BREARHT Il T | ATATTHET
A AT TUH (999 AITAAT HS(1d ATLATR] TA TN ATAL FTHT BT ASTAAT
I SRRATE FGAT e ZaT AIehl FAGARTAAATS (A9 TS FIRGH FHATHIUH] AN b ATRATIT
EIREFRERINE

T =1 A TP IUAH T AT FIEAT oATAE ATHITB ST
A AMYF a9 2059/053 F JIH TIAE (05 ATRET FEAT) FHHH! AIRSRT fqara faazor
AR ST Holl AT & YUY T &R FRIE 90 A &R TR Wl G 99 (8T Jieardd &, €9 o1d
Q0 FIS Y AT ¥ BSR &P G | AT AMIF TTAT FADT URAR FAH &R ATTA qhg T8 A1
AL fqepr bt Tt B | warahn Sfepy fefoiea Sfry, @ew dfey, qRierd Sfpger A a=avra @0
Fererrs fefted 47 aveUa 8 v RE= 1Ug SHAUHvEATE I=9 YTATHeRATHT JMGUH! & |

 FEAH SENTE UE e aw
Febel ATHT BRIAE AreAivd TTEehes, ATaATE Te ANTE JTsH, q8 qqes qor fatq=
frarHes fHeaeEdT R ¥ SATEaariiE G FAH A€ ATTH @ | G ATEAdE FRIAT
F1 faafaaTdT qekewars qaem [E = Se9dd 3w S 97 faxiig GRaeed T qeshrd T g
i TS a7 AU B | S qoAT foaxir deares A qveed 997 AT giqeadTa
ol Afalg T T GIT TITINT EH G |

T oIS AHTGTHT ATHT BTRT T Jrepl PRI
I fqTe dehehl F=aTeleh ATATTHT GEATIF STARGAIHR] THhale 3 ST ¥ aaTdRY SaRG=IHhl dhare
3 ST T A IoETeAs q ST T 9 STl FoaTeleh AHT T8 aa<dT I8h! 3 |

F=ATA® AT HIEd AN ToaTded TadTe [4 AUH! ATTATHT fH{q 2059 /09/99 T THH F=ATaF
Tfafqer FoF 7 %% ATE TET qUHA BT FIAIR IRGHTHl ThaTe Giafafaea T § =1
a1 U5 < EH G |

T PRARAE AR T & TS
Ffaetr aaeraT T ai=meT s T Foll dEET 99 A9 99 TR B AT GAY AR ATETAT
QR FHTAHT FRUT FAT AAEHT THT TG TR @ | FAAT Jrferebl FARTHAT Ul foredqe T4 sgfora
SGHes T4 q= AANAF TAT FAAT STHT AT A9 AGHEET FREARAE qF I qe&d
FATCTRT FTHT T B | AR (Hepraesare S g+ 4, fAseTaeses! 9ol qrerer 7 TadedT
BN @t audars fEqar afi=mas T ST Qe T STad! SOdE TANT T UTEehebl AT
ATIRH TTeshi AT Sftepswr sire fag 99 9ge = aars ufdeg & |

B AGIOAT JAITTHT £ AT SwE TR HY G IR IS QAT giarnar
TRl (Hataa #RERS! faafasrar sfausr amm fooqoly aed a7 &7 FRad Feot@ THTH |

CJERE .



W ATHIY Sfehie T4 fawiR TRy &H
wid® a9 050,05y FEH fARUERT AfsAd WATRETE SEE SEREAEEATE ThT ST
T ¥ 9335 20,240 /1Y (FEWYl R A9 ey HRIS Gad d@ Ted gR Al 99 T=g S9AT T 44T
A~ TTA) T 3 FTTAe g AT ThH &, 9%,30,90,9R% /00 (A&WY g FIE (99 A1 T gk
IS I AT FUAT [A) AT A T Y AAMAA g AT TBH T I3S&,5Y U¥5 /00 (LT
T2 FRIS YL TG TR AR = G ASATNAT FAAT AA) TG ATHTT (ST TARRT BT TATAA
gfed) faazor 9 gwara Afewesr g |

W HEAT U, 0%3 BN THT Q0% P SUSHT ¥ W qHAHT qoaTeied QrATqep! FITag-a T
GATST TH ALH. 050/059 I F7 (qaR0T : 7 gfasaerl aqa=-q9 a1 geqe TRUH o |

o A AT FET
9. G T

059 AU WA WFAE! faxid fqarer qar =[hT gSil, R SEEl #Y, y&aidd am\y
IR, Aoad HATRT ¥ 7 WA FUes T Fd JTIHE I61 & S 79 IR FE 3 a@ % g9
TEHT B T FA TSR 5. & AT Qq B §¥ A ¥ R EH B | ArFer dqadrar fasra deperr
gTatHeE 9GS (Tier 1 Capital) 99.35 9fderd ¥ &« IS (Total Capital) 93.8% Ffqerd EHl &
T AT A AFGRT oAb faiT FEATATE ST Uehleh [EeTTHT SUHT AT JAR “@” a7Th]
fairr FeaTeee ATH FAH THI ISR qFaed] qaeThl ATTAT bl G |

R, AEThEER R ;
foepra St ofdd o9 059/053 Bl G@OENT TH HEOAT UA, 053 B TET 999
T ¥ qur foaxi Gwam GEE=T U9 2063 BT TWT Q(S) THIGH F@IIReThRl (Haher AR
S@TILTET AiAfTe! R THIH 8T FHINH 3 AT Jd@ra<leldadl 978 qd7 Haeed J=ard
T STETILIE0 Yeeh Alee AT TEHTHT FATAT T97 TR SERT 0 e | A4, 2050,/ 059
BT AGTIRIE T AUHT AQTIeF T AR, Tierged (fau. THeT FAR fdr) ard. 2059 /053
AT FHA AE@TIREFAT (IHIHT AT AT g8, |

}.  |TEUAR. UeiiEed (fEY. e AR fgdr) 3R,%0,000/ -

R |fe wmr Sutaama uve wwer (fau otfe wecTe) 33,50,000//-
3 v o, wg g uvg venfaues (.U 30 yEre Fared) 33,83,000/-

FGIIETF T, U AR, TINTIETS AT, R050/059 %l @I S qUTAT § T~ TLHTHT
geIETE 9T TEE |

3. YWE TR GAQTHRYT TUTHT RO AT G H T
TIHET AT (e Aehepl ST GRAATHT BT TRETT THHT |

¥. AT JEE ¢
2059 ATVTE HATTHT YHE FEAFN Aahd died &a 935 ST FHARIEE SHHT HART TEH
T | Ueheedls Fesl T A3 TOHT FaT Y&TT T T, TAERRT ATl a0 JUTel el
TET GfTeadl aeTRAT Jqeqdt T T T Aehebl ATAATH A& BT T T AFAT T F&T A
TG F FRITHT ATAYAFAT TUHI AT ATET H TS ATTHT T |

[ 3t arfie ufcraes
Q‘QE 8

3. 0¢0[¢q
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. G ITHITF SALRTUA (Corporate Social Responsibility) :

IepeITS ETHICT THTSTT ATTT 3TehT TTHT FAUHT S | GHTST Jiqepl BTHT qTaed T07 AT qrerar Mg
ATTHT T TSEHATS dliad @ | FHIET ATLHT fafiaeT ATATSTE T &Y% o 3% & 3 99
Y s ~ QA o o ~ Qv
¥Y TYAT @ IRTH B | T, TATTE AT HITHT T, WY M@ 50 AR R IT 5 F9IT AT

AT TRUHN B T THH ANTH FTHR] A b G FATISA A, |

ATAAF (A=A JUITEAT AT FEARTA GEEA

FHP! AT (AT JOTAATS THAEAFI FATS B T2 ATTH G | FATSH AT =0
JUITEH LT FEIWTT GEATH AN ST THISTH IR TAT IT-ATAITEE TS 95 F TG ATTH
T | [aqa faerer SRR A AT GqdeTH Jeord TRUH |

. GrTET I87 4R (Related Parties Disclosure)

FEITST ATHT FoaTeteh ATATTeRT el Tared ueh! seaf TeraT foaeiia wEr TR S | Goareen
TAT TR TH@HT [qaR0r ¥ ATeeds Suded TRISUHT qradr a9 Jiaaesl dg=i-4 # Fa
7. 93 AT I TRTH |

. P <at @ frepree femTEey, 084 # FEW R F1 S9-aw q E 1 aEtaa

a9 fHaRuEe | JURIh ATARH [Fav0 T Giaaadel I gar-3 A Seoid TR g |

. gqQIE {9

T THH FoATATHT AU FEdRT T RIS {4 g FFI0 SERENT WeTIHIaes, qTeshad
JOT  HTFFE®, AU AL Gk, FU fIATTT AT, FEAT IATERFT HATAT, AT L
FIAAT TeolTehY, ATAIF qAT ATed  JTQTIRIEH, ToaRSHTd amad (b e geafed
FHUT WeFeleed Iiq goares AT elfadh AR 9T FAAdT A e |

PRZELEN

qg, 3t ¥ ufdde Y
1. R0¢0/[¢q




T - 9
oA F AT FAqAGT G 99 favaes .

FIIAT U, 053 FT THT Q0% F IYSHT ¥ AT JEtead a9 faawor
q. SpP ANRTE T FAATE T

fafirr & qor faxia e Qo o9 ST T a1 AYAL FTAT JEAId AT T GRAEEI
FFAATE [FAHT ATARHAT FAYT T+ T8 G |

R AT QATTHT HTHT eXHT T Fiebl R
AT BT TET THITSTHDT qouTeleh AT Tl G |

%.9. FATABD! ATH 9 T

9. aTYaR dree e FEh

ES . ARIYHETE IUTeAT qey RESIEECY

3 T TS YT T FEh

¥ HEA ATINTS I FAGTERT
Y. faves forse 5 FAHTIRIT
% THAT AUSTA L] QTR
9 AT G 108 e A
T=ATAF I HIEd ATANNed AT TZATS [ HUHT ATTATHT [H{q 2059 /09/99 T THH T=aATdAE

AT T5F F %% AT TEd ATH |

3 FRIARATE A6 T T FXET
e wadmr 89 ai=red "es 9% el S HIET AT 99 TR G A9 GHY ATE AGEITH
TR THTAHT FRT Fofl AGATHT THT TAE T @ | AT Gfaferst GaRmar qut faear a9 gioaa
SIf@Hes TI7 A= FTHIE qdT FAAT TTH] AT g9 AMGHees 8¢ FREARATS da¥ I+ J&T
FATCF! TTAT TEH B | FAoATeRl Hepmeware swy g fAfq, Meemessr 9o w9 areer w9
TITHIIEIHT BT T8l TadATS el IR=TATAT ST bivgd T JUed AT T Sl oo

AT X ATEhPl ATAITHAT ATARE! YTEFHAT AFFAT SIS 65 99 ge AT 13 Hiqag & |

¥, AGIAHT JRIAGTH £ FREAT Ik AP AT A SR T QRIS IRaenar
el frafaa #rEres faatasrr sfgusr aramr fouft as a=1 & Fead Ser@ T9Ue |

Y. AT diewhie T fawi Tikusr wwH
Afdes Y 050/05q FFHH [GAR0T ARG Alsod HATREATE Shebl SOREMEeaTs =<l ol
F.¥9335,20,340/4¥ (FERYT IR o9 Fed? #e Sfad @@ T g9 Al T q=g F9AT T g4t
AT ATA) T 3 GIATA 9 TS THH & 9%,30,90,03% /00 (AT =g g foq a6 39 e
AT TA IARTT FAAT AOA) AT SR T Y GfAITAT B ATSH THEH T 38§, 5¥, 4 Y5 /00 (AT
AT FRIS YA A1 TR BAR G G ASATAq FIAT AIF) AT ATATIT (ST ST BT TATAA
gfeaq) faazor 19 g=ara IRuer 3 |

% WA TRUH NARESH [qax0

e o 050,059 AT HAUM SR TR TLHN S |

9, HEAF FFAETHINH FAR
79 fashr ST F FETIF FEAET @R A |

CJERE .



G.

9o.

1.

R®

1’

ATERAT NARGNETATE AT JUT IRTFYH! AP

TEAT Fl THIHRT ST [TFTE Tehells JTAH TRISTH G |

ATAF THAT FHAH ToAE qAT TRIEHREE [ UHl TARBl A (qa=o T
FHAH TR FRARAT (o@e GO @dl AT q GHHAT FAoeedie s T
TR ATFH -

FFIHIRT ToTeAd AT TRTRRTS [TThT AT T Hcabl (G20 TeTd THITH Thl B | AT BRMER
AT SEe et AU fqeRor Fq=ars are JUHl G |
*.9. FoATAFH! ATH 9T

q. SIEFEd e qemey 90,50,35% fear 90,50,35,%,00
2. SI.ARYEE I e % 9% fehar 2% 39,¥00
3 SRS U BES] 3,%Y, 9%\ fepm 3,%Y, 9% 900
¥, |HEd =g BES 3%,20% fepar 3%,%0,%00
K. |faees ferce BEL 3,305 foam 3,389,500
% TYAT qUSTT JT £3% fopar %3,%00
9 IRIER RIEILES RESS 93 ¥ g fear 93,945,500

F=ATAE A1 HIEH AIRNEd d=aTeleh TEaTe fa TUH! ATTATHT M 2059/00/99 T TP =aTa®
Al T3 7 %%, AT TR HUH |

i THAT P AT FHRET TERIAETHT B G0 AT (9 ATl ATAER
F RETT W@TGR! TRAT ITTH TRIETH AR TR
T FHRB! ATAHNT AeheATs YT TR ST |

FEA ATFT TR ATh GRE TP AT T JTFT VIR GRS T BROT, TN NI & T 3fepa
A Q1 AN NAR GAT TRATIA S T TR THH
FTAGF HFIAT AT AR AThS GG THl & |

FA AT GHP! a0

ATYH a¥ 3050/05q HT AUH FA ATLIIT @9 <e1d THITH Lhl B |
FA FHANT @9 - T 9049 ¥c5 /-

T FAAT G - T ¥]ERE3,0%3/-

T FTAE @ - T {,93,55,%0,431%-

(@< FFEeT faeqd faavor a@radier quer A faxira faawor a8@ry de)

AGIAAT FRITHT TIETH AE!, fFotged It TR qiv=fie, war qor gfe,
q Ifafaer TReT FH PR frarer ¥ @ fafae B ETe R Je @ frare

Q. % HTS Ul - HATSTE
3. AT gEE qTE - 9T
3. U, SETARAR HEArRT - Fge afaa

(@) @raEn afafqer qarsE ¥ e 9id 956 W[l 5. %,000/- H WA 956 Hdl Y&
TR B | AfIF T 050 /059 HT A@IIIET AIHIGH GATTF T EAEEAE  FA A5 T
T 9,99,000/- (F&RIN Uk A@ qF AR AMA) G TRUH G | A@IIeTT FIHTHT FHATRT
TRATE AT THE qae ATAaATE A5 FAT JA TRTHT T |

[ 3t arfie ufcraes
Q‘QE 9
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) 79 grafad Swer faxia foafa, s e gomelt @ fafvsr ifg femeser g awern

FTHA T qIT ATANH AGTIRIEF T AT A@IINETR T TR GfTda IR SARA T AR
AT ATHT AT FeelTe ToATAF ATAITRT TSHHAT T T TR B |

Y. FoAEEH, T qoAdd, FAFR THE, a0 LT AERq Naaey ar et

aﬁmﬁ?ﬁwmhﬁw@aﬁwﬁ FEA T ST G PSS Y HH
RIS (et W el foawer : @ e |

. TS, T8 Goaras, FEAGK THE 97 TRARETATS TRl TTHr i,

1%

9.

AT AT Fiqaner A -

FoATeAF (TP TSHHAT JUTLIT AUATIS HAETATS I 95F 9T 5. 90 B8R T I SIS i
TSk AT T, & BOR T TRUHN G | AT, 050,059 A Gk FH(T d8% 9T &, 99 @ 4
FIR, A@TIETT FA{TH! T3F 9T 3. § 1@ 99 §R, FGH T GIAITHT TS 91 &, q 1@
& B, FHATY AT Ffaar GATTH TSF AT . 9 TR T T AT (Harer afafaer Sos s
T £3 E9R TR B d5F AT % ¥,¥0,000 /- TN ATAATE, TodATeAF RIET JAT 977 @ (ST-ATATT
JoF G qHA) ATIT FA THT F. 99,33,¥30 /- T THEAT TFH & W §3,¥30/- (AT qfemrq o
I B =R T qF T BT TR F |

THG FEAFE ATET T TSAATE ATF. 050,059 AT dad, dT, I3, d79, To=qbT T4
feraT aTqaeRT derer T TET T, q,94,09,08% /%% (TF HRIS U= AT T g A T AT T I40
IJA FAL AA) RN TRTH @ 99 U 919 F ¥,00,000/- (FERUT IR M@ A1) TG40

TRTH |

TARGAGEA TFRIAT (bl Taepl ATHIYT THH
dpepr fafrer fafqer T 2059 U wETOEEE IET ATG qRr faA At Ararr wEH
T IR,49,59%/05 WH F |

FHAT U, 083 BN TR ¥ THISH Rt @RT 9t fafe TRer e foawr
gl AA. 050,059 A difcds AET I AT @RE ol THl & | BRERE aRil Aa9qh
FHEI @ieE forshl el faaRor s g= ¥ .93 T ¥.9% H Ioi@ TRUH F |

5. HEAT T, 053 BT THT VL THTH TG FHAT A1 Tl PRIGRDB! (a0 © A9TH |

®R.

FFAT AT AT TR0 P THAH G AT JAAGAA GArS] I (1
FAET & TTCH |

RO. I ATAYIAF FRAET : THTH |

i“qaaﬁaﬁ?ﬁuﬁéﬁ T
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FNT AT AT qME FqaAT qfaaae

(TR ST FEATEweh] AT FFaedl [MaiiTe J08Y FHITH)
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Website : www.srdb.com.np
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Email : info@srdb.com.np
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SAR

ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of Shine Resunga Development Bank Ltd.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Shine Resunga Development Bank Ltd. (the “Bank”) which
comprise the statement of financial position as at Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024), and the statement of
profit or loss, statement of other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Bank as at Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024), and of its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our Report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the ICAN’s
Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Nepal, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and ICAN’s Handbook of Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in the
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of the
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.

S.N | Key Audit Matters Auditor’s Response

L. Interest Recognition Our audit approach regarding verification of
The interest income of the bank has to be | Process of interest recognition included:
recognized on accrual basis and following the | g Obtaining clear understanding of the

Interest Income Recognition Guidelines 2019 process of accrual of interest income on
issued by NRB. Though acerual basis of income loans and advances in the Core Banking
recognition is prescribed in general, the guidelines Software of the bank.

require suspension of interest recognition on ; : :
accrual basis for loans and advances with overdue | P- For fair valuation of collateral, we relied on
of more than 12 months whereas for loans and the latest available engineer's valuation of
advances with overdue interest/installment for 3 to the collateral and have test checked the
12 months, interest recognition on accrual basis is hair cut in fair value of col.late_ral as per
limited on the basis of result of collateral testing as NRB Income Recognition guidelines 2019.
specified. Given the lack of system capability to | ¢. Test check of the interest income booking
suspend recognition of income on the basis of with manual computation.

overdue status of loan and fair value of collateral as
well as review of fair valuation of collateral on
regular basis, manual intervention will be required
in interest recognition process and hence create risk
of improper application of the guidelines and
determination of the Fair Value of the collateral.
This may, in turn, have an effect on recognition of
interest income of the bank.

T +97714520807 /08 /10 E info@sarcom.np |
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Investment Valuation, Identification, and
Impairment

Investment of the bank comprises of investment in
government bonds, T-bills, development bonds and
investment in quoted and unquoted equity
instruments. The valuation of the aforesaid securities
has been done in compliance with NFRS ¢ and NRB
Directive no. 8. The investment in the government
and NRB bonds and T-bills should be recognized on
reporting date on Amortized cost basis whereas other
investments in equity instruments, other than those
held for trading, should be valued at Fair Value
through Other Comprehensive Income.

Given the varieties of treatments recommended for
valuation of investment based on nature of cash flow,
the business model adopted, complexity of
calculations and the significance of amount involved
in such investments, same has been considered as
Key Audit Matter in our audit.

Our audit approach regarding verification of
process of investment valuation, identification |
and impairment included:

a. Review of the investment of the bank and
its valuation having reference to NFRS
issued by the Accounting Standard Board
of Nepal and NRB Directive 4 read with 8.

b. We assessed the nature of expected cash
flow of the investments as well as the
business model adopted by the
management based on  available
evidence/circumstances and ensured that
classification of investment is
commensurate with nature of cash flow
and management intention of holding the
investment.

c. For the investment valuation that are done
at amortized cost, we checked the EIR and
amortization schedule on test basis.

d. For the investment valued through OCI for
quoted investment, we ensured that fair
valuation has been done based on the
closing transaction rate in NEPSE as on
15.07.2024 and for the unquoted
investment the fair value has been taken as
the NPR 100.

Impairment of Loans and Advances

As per NRB Directive 4, bank shall measure
impairment loss on loans and advances at the higher
of:

= Amount derived as per norms prescribed by
Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provisioning; and

= Amount determined as per para 5.5. of NERS o,
read with carve out issued by Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Nepal dated 18 July
2022, adapting Incurred Loss Model

As per the norms prescribed by NRB, provision at
prescribed rate should be created on loans and
advances based on overdue status of loans and
advances as well as utilization status of the facility,
status of security, borrower’s whereabouts etc.

As per NFRS g read with carve out issued by Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Nepal dated 18 July
2022, impairment of loans and advances should be
made on individual impairment basis for loans and
advances that are individually significant and
collective impairment basis for homogeneous groups
of loans that are not considered individually
significant.

On individual impairment, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the assets’
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows. Under collective impairment, loss
is determined after considering the Historical Loss
Experience in portfolios of similar credit risk and
Management’s experienced judgment as to whether
current economic and credit conditions are such that
the actual level of inherent losses at the reporting

Our audit approach regarding verification of
impairment of loans and advances included:

a. Review of the overdue status of loans and
advances by obtaining data from the
system and matched the same with the
NRB 2.2 report.

b. Sample credit files were reviewed, among
other things, from the perspective of
utilization of loans and advances for
intended purpose by way of scrutiny of
financial statements, account movement,
account turnover ete.

¢. Expected future cash flows from the
individually significant loans and advances
with indications of impairment are
assessed on the basis of realizable value of
collateral securities based on management
estimate.

d. Grouping of homogeneous groups of loans
was assessed on the basis of nature and
purpose of loans and data of historical loss
experience in portfolios are assessed on the
basis of past due data from the system as
well as data of loan loss provisions of the
defined group in the past.




date is like to be greater or less than that suggested
by historical experience.

Given the fact that impairment of loans and advances
under incurred loss model require assessment of
future cash flows as well as historical loss
experiences of portfolios. Further, impairment of
loans and advances under NRB norms for loan loss
provisioning will require assessment of overdue
status of loans and advances and proper utilization
of loan for intended purpose. Hence, assessment of
availability and accuracy of required data for
impairment of loans and advances under incurred
loss model as well as NRB provisioning norms is
regarded as key audit matters.

4. Information Technology General Controls Our audit approach regarding Information
IT controls with respect to recording of transactions, | technology of the bank is based upon the
generating various reports in compliance with NRB | Inforination Technology Guidelines 2012
guidelines and other compliances to regulatorsis an | issued by NRB and it included:

important part of the process. Such reporting is
highly dependent on the effective working of Core | a. Understanding the coding system adopted
Banking Software and other allied systems. by the bank for various categories of
customers.

b. Understanding the feeding of the data in
the system and going through the
extraction of the financial information and
statements from the IT system existing in
the bank.

c. Checking of the user requirements for any
changes in the regulations/ policy of the
bank.

d. Reviewed the reports generated by the
system on sample basis. We verified the
interest income and expense booking
regarding loan and deposit on test basis
with the CBS or the bank.

e. We relied on the IT System Audit
conducted by the bank.

f. We verified the provisioning of the loan
and advances based on ageing on the test
check basis as on 15.07 2024

We have considered this as key audit matter as any
control lapses, validation failures, incorrect input
data and wrong extraction of data may result in
wrong reporting of data to the management,
shareholders and regulators.

Information Other than Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Management Report, Report of the Director’s Report and Chairman’s Statement but does
not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Such information is expected to be
made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read such other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.



Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatement can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtained audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting polices used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management,

» Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’ re port to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going
concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Bank to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision, and performance of the bank audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards. ;
S
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on the requirements of Banks and Financial Institutions Act, 2073 and Company
Act, 2063

We have obtained satisfactory information and explanations asked for, which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; the returns received from the branch offices of the
bank, though the statements are independently not audited, were adequate for the purpose of the audit;
the financial statements including the statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss,
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes have been prepared in all material
respect in accordance with the provisions of the Company Act, 2063, and they are in agreement with the
books of accounts of the Bank; and the accounts and records of the Bank are properly maintained in
accordance with the prevailing laws.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, in the course of our audit, we
observed that the loans have been written off as specified; the business of the Bank was conducted
satisfactorily, and the Bank's transactions were found to be within the scope of its authority. We did not
come across cases of accounting related fraud and the cases where the board of directors or any director
or any office bearer of the Bank has acted contrary to the provisions of law or caused loss or damage to the
Bank or committed any misappropriation of the funds of the Bank.

Ramesh Kumar Dhital
Partner

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: Kartik 23, 2081

UDIN No.: 241111CA005774XEbY



Statement of Financial Position
As on Ashad 31,2081 (15th July, 2024)

Particulars Ason Ashad 31,2081 Ason Ashad 31,2080

Assets

Cash and cash equivalent 41 2,224,033,789 572,436,575
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 2,738,488,699 2,303,268,281
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 4.3 - -
Derivative financial instruments 4.4 = =
Other trading assets 4.5 - -
Loan and Advances to B/FIs 4.6 1,759,277,363 1923,645,571
Loans and advances to customers 4.7 52,002,767,569 43744,457,630
Investment in securities 4.8 13,604,205,803 9,087,158,177
Current Tax Assets 4.9 56,477,550 77,2121
Investment in subsidiaries 4.10 = =
Investment in Associates 4.1 - -
Investment property 412 130,017,343 90,325,068
Property and equipment 413 611,067,762 620,384,822
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 414 139,469,886 130,136,360
Deferred tax assets 415 - -
Other assets 4.16 390,612,717 269,790,523
Total Assets 73,656.418,480 63,418,815,120
Liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 4.17 369,025,734 733,094,743
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 418 = 300,000,000
Derivative Financial instruments 4.19 - -
Deposit from customers 4.20 65,956,224,347 55,682,887,100
Borrowings 4.21 4,610,241 18,750,000
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9 = =
Provisions 4.22 - -
Deferred tax liabilities 415 41,311,498 42,733,591
Other liabilities 4.23 393,341,896 465,239,550
Debt securities issued 4.24 = =
Subordinated Liabilities 4.25 - -
Total liabilities 66,764,513,715 57,242,704,984
Equity

Share Capital 4.26 4,733,690,951 4,283,883,213
Share Premium - -
Retained Earning 417,351,437 477,279,573
Reserves 4.27 1,740,862,378 1,414,947 349
Total equity attributable to equity holders 6,891,904,765 6,176,110,136
|Non-controlling interests - -
Total equity 6,891,904,765 6,176.110,136
Total liabilities and equity 73,656,418,480 63,418,815,120
Contingent liabilities and commitment 4.28 651,134,407 1719,538,331
Net assets value per share 145.59 144.17

As per our attached report of even date For and on Behallf of Board

For S.AR Associates Bhuwan Prasad Panth Prakash Poudel

Chartered Accountants Chief Finance Officer Chief Executive Officer

CA.Ramesh Kumar Dhital Thaneshor Poudel Dr. Tara Prasad Upadhyaya Er.Suraj Upreti
Partner Chairman Director Director

Date : 23, Kartik 2081 Birendra Bista Namrata Bhandari Gopal Prasad Pandey
Place : Kathmandu Director Director Independent Director

g" ‘ ag, 3l anfie ufide 8T
S | 3ma. 0¢of¢q



Statement of Profit or Loss

For the period commencing on Shrawan 1,2080 and ending on Ashad 31, 2081

Notes FY 2080-81 FY 2079-80

Interest Income 429 7,169,357,077 6,977,985,534
Interest Expense 4.30 4,819,108,187 4,860,705,875
Net interestincome 2,350,248,890 2,117,279,659
Fees and Commission Income 4.31 333,616,055 286,567,282
Fees and Commission Expense 432 33,910,208 31,107,016
Net fee and Commission income 299,705,847 255,460,266
Net interest fee and commission income 2,649,954,737 2,372,739,925
Net Trading Income 433 - -
Other Operating Income 4.34 7,884,284 15,599,554
Total operating income 2,657,839,021 2,388,339,479
Impairment chdrge/(reverscl) for loans and other losses 4.35 491,038,685 303,990,870
Net Operating income 2,166,800,336 2,084,348,609
Operating expenses
Personnel Expense 4.36 720,597,488 585,124,340
Other Operating Expenses 4.37 301,128,215 281,118,650
Depreciation and amortisation 438 81,224,621 79,627,578
Operating Profit 1,063,850,012 1,138,478,041
Non operating income 439 500,000 -
Non operating expense 4.40 8,362,480 2,446,699
Profit before income tax 1,055,987,532 1,136,031,342
Income tax expense 4.41 370,666,083 378,003,099
Current tax 386,940,801 348,260,268
Deferred tax Expenses/(Income) (18,274,718) 29,742,831
Profit for the period 685,321,449 758,028,243
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the bank 685,321,449 758,028,243
Non-controlling interest = =
Profit for the period 685,321,449 758,028,243
Earnings per share:
Bassic earnings per share 14.48 17.69
Diluted earnings per Share 14.48 17.69

As per our attached report of even date For and on Behallf of Board

For S.AR Associates Bhuwan Prasad Panth Prakash Poudel

Chartered Accountants Chief Finance Officer Chief Executive Officer

CA. Ramesh Kumar Dhital Thaneshor Poudel Dr. Tara Prasad Upadhyaya Er.Suraj Upreti

Partner Chairman Director Director

Date : 23, Kartik 2081
Place : Kathmandu

Birendra Bista
Director

Namrata Bhandari

Director

Gopal Prasad Pandey
Independent Director
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Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For the period commencing on Shrawan 1,2080 and ending on Ashad 31, 2081

\[el{=H] FY 2080-81 FY 2079-80

Profit for the period 685,321,449 758,028,243
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
a) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
. quns/(losses) from investment in equity instruments measured at fair value 51,640,253 33,100,265
- Gains/(losses) on disposal of equity shares recycled to equity 20,691,909 679,931
- Gains/(losses) on revaluation
« Acturial gain/(losses) on defined benefit plans (2131,503) 15,684,771
« Income tax relating to above items (21,060198) (14,839,490)
Net other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 49,140,461 34,625,477
b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
« Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge

- Exchange gains/(losses)(arising from translating financial assets of foreign
operation

« Income tax relating to above items
« Reclassify to profit or loss

Net other comprehensive income that are or may be reclassified to profit or - -
loss

¢) Share of other comprehensive income of associate accounted as per equity
method

Other comprehensive income for the period, net of Income Tax 49,140,461 34,625,477

Total comprehensive income for the period 734,461,910 792,653,720

Total comprehensive income attributable to: - -
Equity holders of the Bank 734,461,910 792,653,720

Non-controlling interest - -

Total Comprehensive income for the period 734,461,910 792,653,720

As per our attached report of even date For and on Behallf of Board

For S.AR Associates Bhuwan Prasad Panth Prakash Poudel
Chartered Accountants Chief Finance Officer Chief Executive Officer

CA.Ramesh Kumar Dhital Thaneshor Poudel Dr. Tara Prasad Upadhyaya Er.Suraj Upreti
Partner Chairman Director Director

Date : 23, Kartik 2081 Birendra Bista Namrata Bhandari Gopal Prasad Pandey
Place : Kathmandu Director Director Independent Director
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Statement of Cash Flows

As on Ashad 31,2081 (15th July, 2024)
Pa a 080-8 079-80
Cash flows from operating activities
Interest Received 6,964,437,369 6,844,897,821
Fee and other income received 334,116,055 286,567,282,
Dividend Received 10,422,376 12,135,246
Receipts from other operating activities (3.368,946) 256,058
Interest paid (4,868,683,091) (4,854,235,856)
Commission and fee paid (33,910,208) (31107,016)
Cash payments to employee (591609,412) (555,498795)
Other expense paid (335,605,879) (203.952,001
h flow 1,475,798,264 1,500,962,7

Incr Decr in operatin ts (8.921,101,256)) (9,187,509,250))
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank (435,220,418) (980,286,247)
Placement with bank and financial institutions - -
Other Trading assets = =
Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions 164,368,209 1,396,743,743
Loan and advances to customer (8,550,161,414) (9,447730163)
Other Assets (100,087,632) (156,236,583)

9

Due to bank and financial institutions (364,069,009) 559,849,975
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank (300,000,000) (1107,.995,389)
Deposits from customers 10,273,337,246] 12,406,339,347
Borrowings (14139,759) (6,250,000)
Other Liabilities (88,989,964) (20,377,544)
Net Cash flow from operating activities before tax paid 2,060,835,523 4,145,019,879
Income taxes paid (372,088,176) (333,420.777)

Net Cash flow from operating activit

ies

1,688,747,347

3,811,599,102

Purchase of investment securities
Purchase of plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Purchase of investment properties
Receipt from the sale of investment p
Interest received

Dividend received

Net cash used in investing activities

Receipts from sale of investment securities
Receipt from sale of property and equipment

Receipt from sale of intangible assets

roperties

(4,517,047,626)
(60136,142)
542,954
(21104,944)

(39,692,275)

(4,637,438,033)

(2,578,004,222)
(13,559,187),
1335783
(10,388,558)

(90,325,068)

(2,790,941252)

Receipt from issue of debt securities
Repayment of debt securities

Receipt from issue of subordinated liabilities

Repayment of subordinated liabilities
Receipt from issue of shares
Dividend paid

Interest paid

Other receipt/payment

Net cash from financing activities

Net incr r in han

h ivalents

(2.948.690,686)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Shrawan 01 (Beginning of the Year)
ICash and Cash Equivalents transferred from Merger
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held

572,436,575

287,900

1,020,657,850
4,151,806,258

(27,533)

Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents

2,224,033,7

As per our attached report of even date For and on Behalf of Board

For S.AR Associates
Chartered Accountants

CA. Ramesh Kumar Dhital
Partner

Date : 23, Kartik 2081
Place : Kathmandu

CJERE

Bhuwan Prasad Panth
Chief Finance Officer

Thaneshor Poudel
Chairman

Birendra Bista
Director

Prakash Poudel
Chief Executive Officer

Dr. Tara Prasad Upadhyaya
Director

Namrata Bhandari
Director

172,4 7

Er.Suraj Upreti
Director

Gopal Prasad Pandey
Independent Director
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Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss
As on Ashad 31,2081 (15th July, 2024) (As per NRB Regulation)

Particulars FY 2080-81 FY 2079-80

Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss 685,321,449 758,028,243
Appropriations:
. General reserve (137,064,290) |  (151,605,649)
b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund (11,975) -
c. Capital redemption reserve = =
d. Corporate social responsibility fund (6,853,214) (7,580,282)
e. Employees’ training fund (13,529,503) (11,807,689)
f. Other - -
Investment Adjustment Reserve - -
Share issue expense charged to equity (1200,763) (1135,584)
Net Gain on Disposal of Shares 16,553,527 (475,951)
Transfer from Reserve during the year (CSR & Traing Fund) 13,102,235 12,450,284
Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment 556,257,466 597,873,372
Regulatory adjustment:
a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+) (17,697,642) (76,389,790)
b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+) - -
c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+) - -
d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/reversal (+) (25,006133)| (56,904,793)
e. Deferred tax assets recognised (-)/ reversal (+) - 1,848,730
f. Goodwill recognised (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+) - -
g. Bargain purchase gain recognised (-)/resersal (+) - -
h. Acturial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+) - 7,359,259
i. Negative Fair Value Reserve charged to RE - -
j. Other (+/-) Investment Adjustment Reserve -
Net profit for the period end of Ashad 2081 available for distribution 413,553,691 473,786,777
Opening Retained Earnings 477,279,573 477,724,453
Adjustment in Opening RE due to NFRS 16 =
Distribution
Bonus Shares Issued 449.807737)| (447764,594)
Cash Dividend Paid (23674,091)| (26,467,063)
Distributable profit or (loss) 417,351,437 477,279,573

As per our attached report of even date For and on Behalf of Board

For S.AR Associates Bhuwan Prasad Panth Prakash Poudel

Chartered Accountants Chief Finance Officer Chief Executive Officer

CA. Ramesh Kumar Dhital Thaneshor Poudel Dr. Tara Prasad Upadhyaya Er.Suraj Upreti

Partner Chairman Director Director

Date : 23, Kartik 2081
Place : Kathmandu

CJERE

Birendra Bista
Director

Namrata Bhandari

Director

Gopal Prasad Pandey
Independent Director
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Shine Resunga Development Bank Limited

Year ended 16th July 2023

1. Bank
11 General
Shine Resunga Development Bank Limited (“The Bank”) is domiciled and incorporated in Nepall
as a “B” class National Level Development bank, registered as a Public Limited Company under
Companies Act 2063 on 26th Bhadra 2065. Its financial transaction has been started from
FalgunTl,2065 after the approval from Nepal Rastra Bank as B class National Level Development
Bank.The registered address of the Bank is located at Butwal Sub-Metropolitan City Ward No
11 Kalikanagar, Rupandehi, Nepal. Shine Resunga Development Bank Limited is listed on Nepal
Stock Exchange with its stock symbol "SHINE".

1.2 Financial Statements
The Financial Statement of Bank for the year ended 15th July, 2024 comprises Statement of
Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows, Statement of Distributable profit or

Loss, Notes to the Financial Statements, Significant Accounting Policies of the Company.

1.3 Principal Activities and Operations
The Bank has been offering wide range of Financial Services encompassing acceptance of
deposits, corporate and retail credit, micro credit, project financing, hire purchase financing,
corporate and personal banking, internet banking, mobile banking, remittance facilities,
issuing of debit card, TM related services, dealing in government securities and treasury
related products, agency services and other various services permitted by the Banking and
Financial regulation Act, 2073.

2. Basis of Preparation
2. Going Concern
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, as the Bank is satisfied that
the Bank has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. In making this
assessment, the Board of Directors have considered a wide range of information relating
to present and future conditions, including future projections of profitability, cash flows and
capital resources.

2.2. Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements of Bank for the year ended 15th July, 2024 comprising Statement of
Financial Position, Statement of Profit or loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows and Notes to the Financial Statements (including
Significant Accounting Policies), have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards (hereafter referred as NFRS), laid down by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Nepal and in compliance with the requirements of all applicable laws and
regulations.

The bank has applied certain carve-outs which are as described in Notes to Accounts.
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23.

Reporting Period and Approval of Financial Statements
a. Reporting Period
The Development Bank follows the Nepalese financial year based on the Nepalese calendar.

The reporting period of financial statement is as:

Relevant Financial Statement English Calendar Date/ Period Nepali Calendar Date/ Period
Statement of Financial Position (SOFP) 15.07.2024 31.03.2081
Comparative SOFP 16.07.2023 31.03.2080
Reporting Period 17.07.2023-15.07.2024 01.04.2080-31.03.2081
Comparative Reporting Period 17.07.2022-16.07.2023 01.04.2079-31.03.2080

b. Responsibility for Financial Statements
The preparation and presentation of Financial Statements is the responsibility of the Board of
Directors as per the governing provisions.

c. Approval of Financial Statements by Directors

The accompanied Financial Statements have been approved and authorized for issue by the
Board of Directors vide its 300 resolution dated on 2081/07/23 and have been recommended
for approval by shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.

2.4. Functional and Presentation Currency

25,

@
|

The Financial statements are denominated in Nepalese Rupees, which is the functional and
presentation currency of the Bank.

All financial information presented in NPR has been rounded off to the nearest rupee except
where indicated otherwise.

Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgments

The Bank, under NFRS, is required to apply accounting policies that most appropriately suit its
circumstances and operating environment. Further, the Bank is required to make judgment in
respect of items where the choice of specific policy, accounting estimate or assumption to
be followed could materially affect the financial statements. Later on, this may be determined
that a different choice could have been more appropriate.

NFRS requires the Bank to make estimates and assumptions that will affect the assets,
liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and profit or loss as reported in the
financial statements.

The Bank applies estimates in preparing and presenting the financial statements. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed periodically. Revision to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates is revised, and are applied
prospectively.

Disclosures of the accounting estimates have been included in the relevant section of the
notes wherever the estimates have been applied along with the nature and effect of changes
of accounting estimates, if any.

* Reporting Pronouncement
The Bank has, for the preparation of Financial Statements, adopted the NFRS pronounced
by ASB as effective on 13th September 2013.The NFRS conform, in all material respect, to

qg, 3t ¥ ufdde e,
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2.6.

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB).

However, the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) vide its notice dated
02.04.2079 has resolved that Carve-outs in NFRS with Alternative Treatment and effective
period shall be provided to the Banks and Financial Institutions regulated by NRB on the
specific recommendation of Accounting Standard Board (ASB).

Changes in Accounting Policies

The bank has changed its accounting policies, wherever required, to ensure compliance with
NFRS. Detailed accounting policies are mentioned in Note 3. The effect of change in accounting
policy at the date of transition has been given to the retained earnings (and reserves, if
applicable). During the reporting period, the bank has changed the policy for recognition and
measurement of leases; applied Nepal Financial Reporting Standard 16 Leases, earlier NAS 17
was applied.

2.7. New Standards in issue but not yet effective

2.38.

The Institute of chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) has issued new NFRS called NFRS 2018
with the decision of the 244th council dated TithAshad 2077 which has prescribed NFRS 9 on
Financial Instruments, NFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts, NFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers and NFRS 17 Insurance Contracts to be applicable from 16th July 2021. Later
on 143rd meeting of Accounting Standard Board dated 15th July 2022 has issued carve-out
on NFRS 9 on Financial Instruments until FY 2081/82. The impact of these standards especially
NFRS 9 and NFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers can have significant impact on
the financial statement of the Bank which is yet to be assessed and quantified.

Discounting

When the realization of assets and settlement of obligation is for more than one year, the Bank
considers the discounting of such assets and liabilities where the impact is material. Various
internal and external factors have been considered for determining the discount rate to be
applied to the cash flows of company.

Service fees charged by the bank on loans and advances unless immaterial or impracticable
to determine reliably is to be considered for computation of Effective Interest Rate. However,
bank has opted the Carve-out (optional) pronounced by Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Nepal (ICAN) on 20th September 2018 as per the notice issued by ICAN regarding the extension
of a year time for its implementation.

In case where the bank assesses that the transaction amount of a financial assets or a
financial liability does not represent its fair value, the related future cash flows are discounted
at prevailing interest rate to determine the initial fair value.

2.9. Materiality and Aggregation

4 F{_Ac,“\_\

In compliance with Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 01 (Presentation of Financial Statements),
each material class of similar items is presented separately in the Financial Statements. ltems
of dissimilar nature or functions too are presented separately unless they are immaterial.
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
Statement of Financial Position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets
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1. R0¢0/[¢q



2.10.

and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and expenses are not offset in the Statement of
Profit or Loss unless required or permitted by an Accounting Standard.

Comparative Information

The Financial Statement of the Bank provides comparative information in respect of previous
periods. The accounting policies have been consistently applied by Bank with those of the
previous financial year in accordance with NAS 01 Presentation of Financial Statements,
except those which had to be changed as a result of application of the new NFRS or expiry of
the carve out period. Further, comparative information is reclassified wherever necessary to

comply with the current presentation.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in

these Financial Statements, and deviations if any have been disclosed accordingly.

3.1

3.2

@
|

Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the

following material items:

ltems Basis of Measurement

Financial Assets Fair Value both through Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income

Assets held for Sale & discontinued Operations | Fair Value

Employees Defined Benefit obligation Present value of defined benefit obligation (as
calculated by Actuary) less than fair value of the
plan assets.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis where the accounting
policies and judgments as required by the standards are consistently used and in case of

deviations disclosed specidally.

Basis of consolidation

The Bank does not have control over any other entity for consolidation of Financial Statements.
a. Business Combination

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition
date i.e. when control is transferred to the Development Bank. Control is power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing
control,the Group takes into consideration potential voting rights that currently are exercisable.

The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as sum of the acquisition-date fair values of assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquire and equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquire. Acquisition-related costs are generally

recognized in the profit or loss as incurred.

Development Bank doesn’t possess any control to govern the financial and operating policies

of any entities in the reporting period.

There is no business combination during the fiscal year 2080.81.
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4 F{_Acc‘-‘\_\

b.Non-Controlling Interest

Non-controlling interest represent the equity in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to a parent. Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity shareholders
of the Development Bank.

For each business combination, the Development Bank elects to measure any non-controlling
interests in the acquire either:

+ At fair value or

« At their proportionate share of the acquire identifiable net assets, which are generally at fair

value.
The Development Bank does not have any Non-Controlling Interest in the reporting date.

c.Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity if it is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the entity. The Group reassesses whether it still
has control, if there are changes to one or more of the elements of control. An investment in
a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial statements from the date that

control commences until the date that control ceases.
The Development Bank does not have any subsidiaries in the reporting date.

d. Loss of Control

When the Development Bank loses control of a subsidiary, it derecognizes the assets and
liabilities of the former subsidiary from the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Development Bank recognizes any investment retained in the former subsidiary at its fair

value when control is lost and

Subsequently accounts for it and for any amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary in
accordance with relevant NFRSs. It is accounted for as an equity-accounted investee or in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for financial instruments depending on
the level of influence retained. That fair value shall be regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset in accordance with NFRS 9 or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or joint venture. Any gain or loss associated

with the loss of control attributable to the former controlling interest is also recognized.

e. Special Purpose Entity (SPE)

Special purpose entities (SPEs) are entities that are created to accomplish narrow and well-
defined objectives. An SPE is consolidated if, based on an evaluation of the substance of its
relationship with the Development Bank and the SPE's risks and rewards, the Development

Bank concludes that it controls the SPE.
The Development Bank does not have any Special Purpose Entity.

f. Transaction elimination on consolidation
Intra-group balances, transactions and any unrealized profit or loss arising from intra-group
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3.3.

3.4.

transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

g. Investment in Associates — Equity Accounting

An associate is an entity over which the Development Bank has significant influences but not
control or joint control. This is generally the case where the Development Bank holds between
20% to 50% of the voting rights or the Development Bank has power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decision of the investee.

The existence of significant influence by an entity is usually evidences in one or more of the
following ways:

a. Representation of board of directors or equivalent governing body of investee.

b. Participation in Policy making processes, including participation in decision about dividends
or other distributions.

c. Material transaction between the entity and investee etc.

The Development Bank does not have any Associates in the reporting date.

Cash & Cash Equivalent

The fair value of cash is the carrying amount. Cash and cash equivalent represent the amount
of cash in hand, balances with other bank and financial institutions, money at short notice
and highly liquid financial assets with original maturities of three months or less from the
acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their value and used
by the Bank in the management of short-term commitment. Cash and cash equivalents are
measured at amortized cost in the Statement of Financial Position.

Details of the Cash and Cash Equivalents are given in Note 4.1 to the Financial Statements.

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

3.4.1 Recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Development Bank becomes
a party to the contract embodying the related financial instruments. All financial assets,
financial liabilities and financial guarantee contracts are initially measured at transaction
cost and where such values are different from the fair value, at fair value. The bank’s principal
financial assets comprise assets held at fair value through profit and loss, assets measured at
amortized cost and at fair value through other comprehensive income. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to generate a return on the investment made by shareholders.
The company’s principal financial liabilities comprise accrued expenses and other payables
which arise directly from its operations.

In accordance with NFRS 9 Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement, the
company’s interest receivables are classified and measured at Amortized cost method.
Equity securities / debentures are classified as fair value through profit and loss or Fair Value
thorough OCI. The amount attributable to shareholders is classified as equity and is carried
at the redemption amount being net asset value. Payables are measured at amortized cost.

3.4.2. Classification

4 F{_Ac,“\_\

The financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value
based on business model for managing the financial assets and contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets.
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The Company’s investments are classified as fair value through profit or loss, fair value through
OCl and at amortized cost.

As required under NFRS 9, Financial Assets are classified under three categories, namely:

i. Financial assets measured at Amortized Cost:

The development bank measures financial assets at amortized cost only if both of the following
conditions are met:

- The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial asset
in order to collect contractual cash flows.

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Business model assessment

The development bank determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it
manages groups of financial assets to achieve its business objective:

- The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and, in particular, the way those risks are managed

- How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation
is based on the fair value of the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected)
The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking
‘worst case’ or ‘stress case’ scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition
are realized in a way that is different from the Development Bank’s original expectations,
the Bank does not change the classification of the remaining financial assets held in that
business model, but incorporates such information when assessing newly originated or newly
purchased financial assets going forward.

The SPPI test

As a second step of its classification process, the Development Bank assesses the contractual
terms of the financial asset to identify whether they meet the SPPI test.

‘Principal for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial
recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset. The most significant elements
of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration for the time value
of money and associate risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the Bank applies judgment and
considers relevant factors such as the currency in which the financial asset is denominated,
and the period for which the interest rate is set.

ii. Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial assets whose objective/ business model is not to collect Contractual Cash flow but to
gain from movement in fair value is classified at fair value through profit or loss. These include
investment in equity shares. Gain on movement of fair value is charged to statement of profit
or loss.

iii. Financial assets measured at fair value through OCI:

In rare circumstances, financial assets whose objective or business model is not to collect
Contractual Cash flow is classified at fair value through OCI. Investments in equity which are
not regularly traded are classified at fair value through OCI. The gain/loss on movement in fair
value is charged to OCI. Its tax impact is also charged into OCI. The gain or loss on disposal of
investment classified as fair value through OCl is charged to equity after recycling from OCI.

As required under NFRS 9, Financial Liabilities are classified under two categories, namely:
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3.4.3.

i. Financial Liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Upon initial recognition, transaction cost directly attributable to the acquisition is recognized in
Statement of profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent Changes in fair value is recognized in profit
or loss.

ii. Financial Liabilities measured at Amortized Cost:
All financial Liabilities other than measured at fair value through profit or loss are classified and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest method.

De- recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial c:ssets) is derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
asset have expired. The development bank also derecognizes the financial asset if it has both
transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition.

The development bank has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either:

- It has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset; or

- It retains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass—through’ arrangement.

A transfer only qualifies for de-recognition if either:

- The development bank has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or
- It has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset

Investments are derecognized when the right to receive cash flows from the investments has
expired or the company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are derecognized when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged or expired.

Realized gains and realized losses on de-recognition are determined and are included in the
profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The realized gain is the difference between an
instrument’s cost and disposal amount.

3.4.4. Measurement

4 F{_Acc‘-‘\_\

a. Financial assets and liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss

At initial recognition, the company measures a financial asset at its fair value. Subsequent
to initial recognition, all financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss’ category are presented
in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income within net gains/(losses) on
financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Fair value is the price that would be received on sell of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
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The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets is subsequently based
on their quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period without any deduction for
estimated future selling costs. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the
company is the closing price.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market are
determined using valuation techniques.

b. Financial assets measured at amortized cost

Financial assets at this category are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs and
subsequently amortized using the effective interest rate method, less impairment losses if any.
Such assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment.

If evidence of impairment exists, an impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss recognized on a financial asset
carried at amortized cost decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event
occurring after the write-down, the write-down is reversed through profit or loss.

Receivables may include amounts for dividends, interest and trade receivables. Dividends are
accrued when the right to receive payment is established. Interest is accrued at the end of
each reporting period from the time of last payment in accordance with the policy set out in
note 2(6) above.

Receivable are recognized and carried at amortized cost, less a provision for any uncollectable
debts. An estimate for doubtful debt is made when collection of an amount is no longer
probable.

Recoverability of receivable is reviewed on an ongoing basis at an individual portfolio level,
individual debts that are known to be uncollectable are written off when identified. An
impairment provision is recognized when there is objective evidence that the Company will
not be able to collect the receivable. Financial difficulties of the debtor, default payments
are considered objective evidence of impairment. The amount of the impairment loss is the
receivable carrying amount compared to the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

3.4.5. Determination of Fair Value

4 F{_Acc‘-‘\_\

Assets and liabilities carried at fair value or for which fair values are disclosed have been
classified into three levels according to the observability of the significant inputs used to
determine the fair values. Changes in the observability of significant valuation inputs during
the reporting period may result in a transfer of assets and liabilities within the fair value
hierarchy. The Bank recognized transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy when there
is a significant change in either its principal market or the level of observability of the inputs to
the valuation techniques as at the end of the reporting period.

9 3ft aTff® ufide= &3
1. R0¢0/[¢q



Level1
Fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2
Valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted
prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued
using models where all significant inputs are observable. Investment in promoter’s share of
quoted equity instrument has been valued at 50% of the market value of the same class of
share.

Level 3
Portfolios are those where at least one input, which could have a significant effect on the
instrument’s valuation, is not based on observable market data.

3.4.6. Impairment of Loans and Advances

4 F{_Acc‘-‘\_\

At each reporting date the Bank assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may
have beenimpaired.If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is determined. A financiall
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events occurring after
the initial recognition of the asset (a loss event), and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can

be reliably estimated.

The Bank considers the following factors in assessing objective evidence of impairment:
*Whether the counterparty is in default of principal or interest payments.

« When a counterparty files for bankruptcy and this would avoid or delay discharge of its
obligation.

« Where the Bank initiates legal recourse of recovery in respect of a credit obligation of the
counterpart.

*Where the Bank consents to arestructuring of the obligation, resulting in a diminished financiall
obligation, demonstrated by a material forgiveness of debt or postponement of scheduled
payments.

« Where there is observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows of a group of financial assets, although the decrease cannot yet
be identified with specific individual financial assets.

A Collective impairment provision is established for:

« Groups of homogenous loans and advances and investment securities which are held-to-
maturity, that are not considered individually significant; and

« Group of assets that are individually significant but that were not found to be individually

impaired.

The Bank considers evidence of impairment for loans and advances and held-to-maturity
investment securities at both a specific asset and collective level. All individually significant
loans and advances and investment securities measured at amortized cost are assessed for
specific impairment. Those found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed
for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified.
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Loans and advances and investment securities measured at amortized cost that are not
individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together loans
and advances and investment securities measured at amortized cost with similar risk
characteristics. Impairment test is done on annual basis for trade receivables and other
financial assets based on the internal and external indication observed.

In assessing collective impairment, the Bank uses statistical modeling of historical trends of
the probability of default, the timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for
management’s judgment as to whether current economic and credit conditions are such that
the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical trends. Default
rates, loss rates and the expected timing of future recoveries are regularly benchmarked
against actual outcomes to ensure that they remain appropriate.

Individually assessed loans and advances

Loans and advances to customers with significant value (covering at least 50% of Total Non-
Performing Loans as per Nepal Rastra Bank Directive) are assessed for individual impairment
test. The recoverable value of loan is estimated on the basis of realizable value of collateral
and the conduct of the borrower/past experience of the Development Bank. Loans that are
determined to be individually significant based on the above and other relevant factors
are individually assessed for impairment except when volumes of defaults and losses are
sufficient to justify treatment under collective methodology. For these loans, development
bank considers on a case-by-case basis whether that loan is objectively impaired. These
criterions are summed as:

« Significant Financial Difficulties of the borrower such as significantly adverse ratios and
adverse future outlook

+ Adverse statutory indicators

« Default or delinquency in interest or principal payments

* Breach of contract

« Downfall of quality of collaterall

Impairment losses are calculated by comparing the discounted expected future value of the
cash flow from the loan at original effective interest rate with the carrying value.

Collectively Assessed loans and advances

Collective impairment on loans and advances are carried out to cover losses, which have
beenincurred but have not yet been identified on loans subject to individual assessment or for
homogeneous groups of loans that are not considered significant individually. Also, assets that
are individually assessed and for which no impairment exists are grouped with financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed for impairment. The credit risk
statistics for each group of the loan and advances are determined by management prudently
being based on the past experience. For the collective assessment of impairment of loan, the
Development Bank has categorized on the basis of following product.

a. Agriculture Loan
b.Business Loan

c. Deprive Sector Loan
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3.4.7.

4 F{_Acc‘-‘\_\

d. Education Loan

e. Hire Purchase Loan
f.Home Loan

g.Loan against FDR
h. Margin Lending

i. Other Loan

j- Personal Loan

k. Real Estate Loan

l. Service Loan

Loan Loss Provision as per Nepal Rastra Bank

Loan loss provisions in respect of non-performing loans and advances are based on
management’s assessment of the degree of impairment of the loans and advances, subject
to the minimum provisioning level prescribed in relevant NRB guidelines. Provision is made for
possible losses on loans and advances including bills purchased at 1.20% to 100% on the basis
of classification of loans and advances, overdraft and bills purchased in accordance with NRB
directives.

Policy

As per the Carve out notice issued by ICAN, the Development Bank has measured impairment
loss on loans and advances as the higher of amount derived as per norms prescribed by Nepal
Rastra Bank for loan loss provision and amount determined as per Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards.

Reversal of impairment

If the amount of an impairment loss decreases in a subsequent period, the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the excess
is written back by reducing the loan impairment allowances accordingly. The write back is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Write off of loans and advances

Loans (and the related impairment allowance accounts) are normally written off, either
partially or in full, when there is no realistic prospect of recovery. When loans are secured, this
is generally after receipt of any proceeds from realization of security. In circumstances where
the net realizable value of any collateral has been determined and there is no reasonable
expectation of further recovery, write-off may be earlier.

Impairment losses on assets measured at amortized cost As per NFRS 9

Financial assets carried at amortized cost (such as amounts due from Banks, loans and
advances to customers as well as held—to—maturity investments is impaired, and impairment
losses are recognized, only if there is objective evidence as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset. The amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the deemed recoverable value of loan.

Loans and advances to customers with significant value i.e. NPR 50 million individually are
assessed for individual impairment test. The recoverable value of loan is estimated on the
basis of realizable value of collateral and the conduct of the borrower/past experience of the
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bank. Assets that are individually assessed and for which no impairment exists are grouped
with financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed for
impairment. The credit risk statistics for each group of the loan and advances are determined
by management prudently being based on the past experience. For the purpose of collective
assessment of impairment Bank has categorized assets in twelve broad products as follows:
a. Agriculture Loan

b. Business Loan

c. Deprive Sector Loan

d. Education Loan

e. Hire Purchase Loan

f.Home Loan

g.Loan against FDR

h. Margin Lending

i. Other Loan

j- Personal Loan

k. Real Estate Loan

l. Service Loan

If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases
because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized
impairmentlossisincreased or reduced by adjusting the other reserves and funds (impairment
reserve) in statement of other comprehensive income and statement of changes in equity.If a
write—off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Provision as per NFRS

Particulars
Individual 300,446,695 641,683,355
Collective 136,605,526 287,869,599
Total NFRS Provision 437,052,221 929,552,954
Provision as per NRB
Particulars 2080 2081
Good 546281727 572,098,619
Watch list 106,529,070 181,474,756

Covid Related - -
Third Party Collateral - -

Substandard 85,929,903 262,279,866
Doubtful 123,825,271 236,795,962
Bad 226,490,670 327,446,124

Total NRB Provision 1,089,056,642 1,580,095,326

Gap/(Excess) (652,004,420) (650,542,372)

The bank loans and advances are greater considering the NRB directive as compared to NFRS
impairment provisioning. Therefore, provisioning as per NRB directive is applied.

Carve out adopted for assessment of impairment charge

The Bank has opted to apply carve out on impairment of loans and receivables. Accordingly,
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3.4.8.

3.4.9.

individual and collective impairment loss amount calculated as per NFRS is compared with the
impairment provision required under NRB directive no. 2, higher the amount derived from these
measures is taken as impairment loss for loans and receivables.

Impairment of Financial Investments - at Fair Value through Profit or loss and Fair value
through OCI

The Bank also records impairment charges on equity investments considering the movement
on share price computed as per three levels of valuation.

Refer Note 4.8 for details.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Bank assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for an asset or a cash
generating unit (CGU) at each Reporting date or more frequently, if events or changes in
circumstances necessitate to-do so. This requires the estimation of the ‘Value in use’ of such
individual assets or the CGUs. Estimating ‘Value in use requires the Management to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the asset or the CGU and also to select a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of the relevant cash flows. This
valuation requires the Bank to make estimates about expected future cash flows and discount
rates and hence, they are subject to uncertainty.

3.5. Derivatives Assets and Derivative Liabilities

Bank doesn’t deal with any derivative financial instruments.

3.6. Property and Equipment

All

property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment

losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or are recognized as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the

item will flow to the Bank and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and

maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or loss during the financial period in which

they are incurred.

Freehold land is not depreciated although it is subject to impairment testing. Depreciation on
other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual

values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

@
UN
e

Category FY 2079/80 FY 2080/81
Building 50 Years 50 Years
Computer and Accessories 3 Years 3 Years
Furniture and Fixtures 7 Years 7 Years
Machinery and Equipment 9 Years 9 Years
Office Equipment 5 Years 5 Years
Vehicles 6 Years 6 Years
Leasehold 10 Years 10 Years
Other Assets 4 Years 4 Years
Right of Use Assets (ROU) Lease Tenure Lease Tenure
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The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
statement of financial position date. The value of the assets fully depreciated but continued to be
in use is considered not material.

The bank has adopted Straight line basis for depreciation. The life has been estimated as above

and depreciation has been charged on the basis of given life.

At each reporting date, assets are also assessed for indicators of impairment. In the event that
an asset’s carrying amount is determined to be greater than its recoverable amount, the asset is
written down immediately to the recoverable amount.

Assets with costs less than NPR 5,000 are charged off on purchase as revenue expenditure.

Gains and losses on disposals are included in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

3.7.Intangible Assets
Acquired Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are initially measured at fair value, which reflects market expectations of the
probability that the future economic benefits embodied in the asset will flow to the Bank and are
amortized on the basis of their expected useful lives.

Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire
and bring to use the specific software. Costs associated with the development of software are
capitalized where it is probable that it will generate future economic benefits in excess of its cost.
Computer software costs are amortized over the period of 5 years in Straight Line method (SLMm).
Costs associated with maintaining software are recognized as an expense as incurred.

At each reporting date, these assets are assessed for indicators of impairment. In the event that
an asset’s carrying amount is determined to be greater than its recoverable amount, the asset is

written down immediately.

Goodwill

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired in
Business Combinationisrecognized as goodwill. Goodwillis measured at costless any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually, or more frequently, if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The goodwill is not

impaired during the year.

The bank has entered into merger with Bhargav Bikas Bank Ltd and Purnima Bikas Bank Ltd as
on 27thAshwin 2076. As per NFRS 3 on Business combinations, the merger resulted into goodwiill
amounting to NRs. 118,496,289 shown as Goodwill and intangibles in schedule 4.14 which has not
yet been impaired. So, no impairment is required on goodwill. Share premium amounting to NRs.
171]40,440 has been created due to the same standard. Out of the total share premium resulting
from business combination NRs. 52,644,151 relates to gap in paid up capital due to swap ratio
while the remaining NRs. 118,496,289 has resulted purely from Valuation effect as given in the table
below. Share premium on business combination resulting from gap in paid up capital is allowed
for distribution of bonus shares by Nepal Rastra Bank, while the remaining amount is earmarked as

Regulatory Reserve which will be allowed for movement to retained earning only when the goodwiill
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is impaired. According to NFRS 3 Business Combination, Goodwill/ Bargain Purchase to be valued

on the basis of Fair Value of Consideration transferred and Net Assets transferred. Accordingly,

goodwill has been computed as below during the business combination

Particulars Purnima Bhargav Total
Consideration Transferred 755,778,744 687,666,012 | 1443,444757
Net Assets Transferred* 715,030,114 609,918,353 | 1,324,948,468
Goodwill 40,748,630 77,747,659 118,496,289

3.8.Investment Property

An investment property is property held by the Development Bank to earn rentals or for capital

appreciation or both, rather than own-occupied. The investment property of the Development

Bank solely consists of land or building acquired under the Non-Banking Assets.

The Development Bank has adopted a policy to measure the investment property in cost model.

Any depreciation and impairment in the subsequent period has been charged through the profit

and loss account in the reporting period. Details of Investment property as as follows:

SN  Branch Name Client Name Amount Recorded as
NRs. NBA

1 Tansen Shrestha Nirman Sewa 28,295,000 28/03/2023

2 Tamaghas Kaushila Panthi 5,306,000 17/03/2023

3 Dang Bijeta Sun Chandi Kharid Bikri Pasall 5,059,000 22/06/2023

4 Badera Adhikari Darpan Enterprises , Adhikari Bhim | 22,281,000 10/07/2023
Kirana Pasal

5 Gulariya Uttam Bahadur Chand 248891 23/06/2023

6 Badera Kiran Suppliers, Nabin Kirana Pasal & BL 15,720,000 16/07/2023
Krishi Firm

7 Butwal Krishna Prasad Bashyal 20,873,348 15/07/2024

8 Basghadhi R K Enterprises 29,994,083 15/07/2024

Total 130,017,343

3.9.Income Tax
The Bank is subject to income tax and judgment is required to determine the total provision for

current, deferred and othertaxes duetotheuncertainties that exist withrespectto theinterpretation

of the applicable tax laws, at the time of preparation of these Financial Statements.

As per Nepal Accounting Standard- NAS 12 (Income Taxes) tax expense is the aggregate amount

included in determination of profit or loss for the period in respect of current and deferred taxation.

Income Tax expense is recognized in the statement of Profit or Loss, except to the extent it relates to

items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income in which case it is recognized

in equity or in other comprehensive income. The Management periodically evaluates positions

taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to

interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be

paid to tax authorities.

b,
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Current Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities consist of amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to
Inland Revenue Department in respect of the current year, using the tax rates and tax laws enacted
or substantively enacted on the reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
prior years.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases

of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax

liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences except:

e Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination, and at the time of transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

¢ In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carried forward

unused tax credits and unused tax losses (if any), to the extent that it is probable that the taxable

profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, carried forward unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized except:

« Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arising from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination, and
at the time of transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

¢ In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in Subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary difference will be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is probable that sufficient profit will be available to allow the deferred tax asset
to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only to the extent that they relate toincome
taxes imposed by the same taxation authority.

3.10. Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities
a. Deposits
Deposit by banks & customers are financial liabilities of the bank as there is an obligation to deliver
cash or financial assets back to the depositing bank or customer and are initially recognized at
fair value, plus for those financial liabilities not at fair value through profit and loss. The transaction
price is considered as the fair value for measuring the deposits.
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b. Debt Securities Issued

Debt Securities areinitially measured at the Fair value less incremental direct cost and subsequently
at their amortized cost using effective interest method except where the bank designates liabilities
at Fair value through profit or loss.

c. Subordinate Liabilities

These are the liabilities subordinated at the event of winding up to claims of depositors, debt
securities issued and other creditors. It shall include redeemable preference shares, subordinated
notes issues, borrowings etc.

The bank does not have any Debt Securities issued and Subordinate Liabilities.

3.11. Provisions, Commitments and Contingencies

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Bank has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
berequiredto settle the obligation. The amount recognized is the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date, taking in to account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation at that date. Where a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is determined based on
the present value of those cash flows. A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the
expected benefits to be derived by the Bank from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost
of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision is measured as the present value of
the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing
with the contract.

Before a provision is established, the Bank recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associated
with that contract. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the Statement of Profit or
Loss net off any reimbursement.

All discernible risks are accounted for in determining the amount of all known liabilities. Contingent
liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by uncertain future events
or present obligations where the transfer of economic benefit is not probable or cannot be reliably
measured. Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the Statement of Financial Position but are
disclosed unless they are remote.

The Bank receives legal claims against it in the normal course of business. Management has made
judgments as to the likelihood of any claim succeeding in making provisions. The time of concluding
legal claims is uncertain, as is the amount of possible outflow of economic benefits.

3.12. Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to Bank
and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be
met before revenue is recognized.

Interest Income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income or expense is recorded
using the EIR. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.

‘ qg, 3t ¥ ufdde Ch)

e
¥
N
S | 3ma. 0¢of¢q



The calculation takes into account all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment options) and includes any fees or incremental costs that are directly attributable to
the instrument and are an integral part of the EIR, but not future credit losses. The carrying amount
of the financial asset or financial liability is adjusted if the bank revises its estimates of payments
or receipts. The adjusted carrying amount is calculated based on the original EIR and the change
in carrying amount is recorded as ‘Interest income’ for financial assets and ’Interest and similar
expense’ for financial liabilities. However, for a reclassified financial asset for which the bank
subsequently increases its estimates of future cash receipts as a result of increased recoverability
of those cash receipts, the effect of that increase is recognized as an adjustment to the EIR from
the date of the change in estimate.

Accrued interest income of 15th July 2024 which has been realized till 16th August 2024 has been
factored in computation in Regulatory Reserve in line with regulator’s guidelines.

Bank has adopted the guideline issued by Nepal Rastra bank issued on July 2019 for the recognition
of Interest Income i.e. the criteria for suspension of interest income and cessation of accrued
Interest which requires cessation of recognition interest income for loans which are significantly
impaired i.e bad. As on Ashad End 2081 the bank has ceased acquisition on interest amounting to
Nrs. 83,962,576 related to bad loan which was Nrs. 46,296,852 as on Ashad End 2080.

Further the reconcilation of Accured Interest Receivable on Loan & Advance as on Asad end 2081

is below.
Opening Balance 242,923,558
Add: Adjustment during the Year 297,668,720
Less: Interest derecognized during the year on NPL accounts (83962576)
Closing Balance 456,629,702

Fee and Commission Income

Fees earned for the provision of services over a period of time are accrued over the period, which
include service fees and commission income. The bank has availed the option provided as per
carve-out of NFRS for transaction cost to be included in computing effective interest rate.

Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.

Net Trading Income

Net trading income comprises gains less losses relating to trading assets and liabilities, and
includes all realized interest, dividend on financial assets held for trading and foreign exchange
differences as wells as unrealized changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities.

Net income from other financial instrument measured at fair value through Profit or Loss

Trading assets such as equity shares and mutual fund are recognized at fair value through profit
or loss. No other financial instruments are designated at fair value through profit or loss. The bank
has no income under the heading net income from other financial instrument at fair value through
profit or loss.

CJERE .



3.13.Interest expense
Forfinancialliabilities measured at amortized cost, interest expense is recognized using the Effective
Interest Rate (EIR) to the extent material and practicable. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liabilities or a shorter
period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial liability.

3.14. Employee Benefits
Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service rendered
by employees or for the termination of employment. Such benefits include short term, long term,
termination and other long-term benefits.

a. Short Term Employee Benefits

Short term Employee Benefits include items such as following, if expected to be settled before twelve
months after the end of annual reporting period in which employee rendered the related services.
« Wages, salaries and Social Security contribution.

« Paid annual leave and paid sick leave

« Profit Sharing and Bonus

« Non-Monitory Benefits for current employees

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed
as the related service is provided. A liability is also recognized for the amount expected to be paid
under bonus required by the Bonus Act, 2030 to pay the amount as a result of past service provided
by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably under short term employee benefits.

b. Post-Employment Benefits Plan

Post- Employment Benefits Plan of the Development Bank includes the followings.

A. Defined Contribution Plan — Provident Fund
Under Defined Contribution plan the entity’s legal and constructive obligation is limited to the
amount that it agrees to contribute to the fund.

Obligations for contribution to defined contribution plans are recognized as personnel expenses in
profit or loss in the periods during which related services are rendered. Contribution to a defined
contribution plan that are due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period in which
the employees render the service are discounted to their present value.

Under this plan of provident fund, the Development Bank pays pre-defined amounts to separate
funds and does not have any legal or informal obligation to pay additional sums. Contributions
to defined contribution schemes (Provident fund) are charged to the profit or loss statement in
the year to which they relate as the Development Bank has no further defined obligations beyond
monthly contributions. 10% of the Basic Salary as Contributions to defined contribution schemes
by the Development Bank along with same contribution from employees are deposited with
Employees Provident Fund (Karmachari Sanchaya Kosh) and other approved retirement funds.

B. Defined Benefit Plan — Gratuity

Under defined benefit plans, the entity obligation is to provide the agreed benefits to current and
former employees. A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined
contribution plan. The Development Bank’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is
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calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees

have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted

to determine its present value. Any unrecognized past service costs and the fair value of any plan

assets are deducted.

il.

iii.

iv.

Vi.

The Development Bank provides for defined benefits in the form of gratuity. The liability or asset
recognized in the Statement of Financial Position in respect of defined benefit gratuity plan
is the present value of defined benefit obligations at the end of the reporting period less fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries through
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.

The Development Bank recognizes the following changes in the defined benefit obligation to
the profit or loss statement:

Service costs comprising current service costs and past-service costs

Interest expenses

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the
defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee
benefit expenses in the statement of the profit & loss.

Any changes in the liabilities over the year due to changes in assumptions or experience within
the scheme are recognized in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.
NAS 19 requires the exercise of judgment in relation to various assumptions including future
pay rises, inflation and discount rates and employee and pensioner demographics. The
Development Bank determines the assumptions in conjunction with its actuaries, and believes
these assumptions to be in line with best practice, but the application of different assumptions
could have a significant effect on the amounts reflected in the income statement, other
comprehensive income and balance sheet. There may also be interdependency between
some of the assumptions.

The classification of the Development Bank’s net obligation into current and non- current
obligation is as per the actuarial valuation report.

Gratuity is funded and deposited to a separate entity (Retirement Fund) towards meeting the

gratuity obligation.

C. Other long-term employment benefits

1

ii.

iii.

4 F{_Acc‘-‘\_\

A liability is recognized for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries,
annual leave and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end
of the period in which the employee renders the related services are recognized as a liability
at the present value of the obligation as at the Balance sheet date determined based on an
actuarial valuation.

The Development Bank recognizes the following changes in the defined benefit obligation to
the profit or loss statement:

Service costs comprising current service costs and past-service costs

Interest expenses

Any changes in the liabilities over the year due to changes in assumptions or experience within
the scheme are recognized in profit or loss account in the period in which they arise.
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3.15.

4 F{_Acc‘-‘\_\

Explanatory Notes
Gratuity benefit obligations, plan assets, movement in gratuity liability & fair value of assets etc.
related with long term employee benefits has been presented under schedule 4.23.1 A.

Accumulated Leave
The Bank provides accumulated leave benefit as per its employee’s by-laws. The Home Leave
is accumulated up to 90 days and there is no limit for the accumulation of Sick Leave.

Accumulated leave benefits are treated as long term benefit liability. Accumulated leave
obligations are estimated on the basis of actuarial Valuation. Long term benefit liability is not
subject to same degree of uncertainty as defined benefit plan. Therefore, re-measurement
gain/(loss) on accumulated leave is charged to Profit and Loss account as on Ashad end 2081,
The bank has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

c. Staff Bonus

Provision for bonus has been made at 10% of net profit before such bonus.

Leases

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. At the lease commencement
date, the bank recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. Right-of-use asset is
measured at cost and lease liability at present value of future lease payments discounted
using the incremental borrowing rate.

Identifying a lease

At the inception of a contract, the bank assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease.
The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to use of a specific
asset or assets for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The development bank has applied accounting for lease component with the true spirit of
NFRS 16 which states that a lessee (bank) has the right to direct the use of an identified asset
if either:

a. The lessee has the right to direct how and for what purpose the asset is used throughout its
period of use; or

b.The relevant decisions about use are pre-determined and the lessee has the right to operate
the asset throughout the period of use without the lessor having the right to change these
operating instructions.

With a very few exceptions, NFRS 16 abolishes the distinction between an operating lease and
a finance lease in the financial statements of lessees. Hence, the bank recognizes the right of
use asset and an associated liability at the inception of the lease.

a. Right of use asset
The development bank measures the right-of-use asset initially at the amount of the lease
liability plus any initial direct costs incurred by the bank. The bank has made adjustments
required for lease incentives, payments at or prior to commencement and restoration
obligations or similar.
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After lease commencement, the development bank shall measure the right-of-use asset using
a cost model. Under the cost model a right-of-use asset is measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment.

The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease
term. The development bank determines the estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets
on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is
periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements
of the lease liability.

b.Right to use asset
The development bank measures lease liability initially at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted at the incremental borrowing rate.

The lease liability is subsequently re-measured to reflect changes in:

The lease term (using a revised discount rate);

ii. The assessment of a purchase option (using a revised discount rate);

iii. The amounts expected to be payable under residual value guarantees (using an
unchanged discount rote); or

iv. Future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or a rate used to determine

those payments (using an unchanged discount rate).

oo

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost and is re-measured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in discounting rate, if there is a change in the
bank’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under the lease, or if the bank changes
its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option under the
contract of lease.

When the lease liability is re-measured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount

of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The development bank has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value
assets. The bank recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense
on accrual basis on statement of Profit and loss.

Development bank has disclosed and recognizes the right of use asset and an associated
liability at the inception of the lease and depreciated the Right to use of assets (Lease) and
amortized the lease liability as following:

Particulars Right to Use Assets Lease Liability
(Lease)
Value at Shrawan 1,2080 59,063,751 87,807,245
Addition During the Year
Add: Finance Charges
Less:Depreciation/Amortization (7.778,930)
Less: Payment of Lease Rent 7,401,379

Value in Ashad End 2081 51,285,561 95,208,624
Other Assumptions

Incremental Borrowing Rate* 12% 12%
Lease Term Remaining Lease Term
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3.16.

3.17.

The bank has measured the right of use of asset applying a cost model, depreciation
requirements of NRs. 7,778,930 is recognized as depreciation & amortizations and finance
charges payable of NRs. 7,401,379 is recognized as Interest expenses over the period of the
lease based on the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate so as to give a constant rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability. The leased assets of NRs. 51,285,561 are capitalized and
included in property & Equipment and the corresponding liability of NRs. 95,208,624 million to
the lessor is included in other liabilities.

Foreign currency translation
The Financial Statement is presented in Nepalese Rupees which is the functional and
presentation currency of the company.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the NPRusing the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the profit or loss, except when
recognized in other comprehensive income. Non-monetary assets that are measured at fair
value are translated using exchange rate at the date that fair value was determined.

Financial guarantee and loan commitments

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank issues performance guarantees, bid bond
guarantees and advance payment guarantee. These guarantees are initially disclosed in the
financial statement (within ‘contingent liabilities’) at guaranteed value. The premium received
is recognized in the statement of profit or loss in net fees and commission income on a straight-
line basis over the life of the guarantee.

Loan commitmentis the commitment where the Development Bank has confirmed its intention
to provide funds to a customer or on behalf of a customer in the form of loans, overdrafts,
future guarantees, whether cancellable or not, or letters of credit and the Development Bank
has not made payments at the reporting date, those instruments are included in this financial
statement as commitments.

3.18. Share Capital and Reserves

4 F{_Ac,“\_\

a. Share Capital

Financial instruments issued are classified as equity when there is ho contractual obligation
to transfer cash, other financial assets or issue available number of own equity instruments.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as
deduction net of taxes from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares classified as equity are recognized in equity in the period in which
they are declared.

The share capital of the Development Bank includes the equity share capital with 51 % of
Promoter and 49% of the public. The Development Bank has also maintained several statutory
reserves and free reserves which are presented in the statement of changes in equity.

The share issue expenses which can be avoided for the issue was charged in the year of issue
directly through equity and disclosed in statement of changes in equity. Tax impact is also
disclosed.

qg, 3 a1 ufddeT 14
1. R0¢0/[¢q




4 Pf_zcc‘-‘\_\

b. Reserves

The reserves include regulatory and free reserves.

General Reserve

20% of the net profit is set aside to general reserve until the reserve is twice the paid of share
capital as per Bank and Financial Institution Act. The reserve is the accumulation of setting
aside profits over the years.

No Dividend (either cash dividend or bonus share) are distributed from the amount from
General/ Statutory Reserve.

Exchange Equalization Reserve
25% of the revaluation gain on foreign currency is set aside to exchange equalization reserve
as per Bank and Financial Institution Act.

The Reserve is cushion against adverse movement in foreign currency.

Assets Revaluation Reserve

Any Reserve created from revaluation of assets (such as Property & Equipment, Intangible
Assets, Investment Property) shall be presented under this heading. Revaluation reserve is
created for the property and equipment transferred from Bhargav Bikas Bank at Fair Value.

Corporate Social Responsibility Fund
The fund created for the purpose of corporate social responsibility by allocating 1% of Net
profit as per NRB Directive is presented under this account head.

Employee Training Fund

The fund created for the purpose of employee training by allocating 3% of employee
expenses of previous year excluding staff bonus and winding up interest cost on staff loan.
The fund is utilized for the training of employees.

Investment Adjustment Reserve

Itis areserve created oninvestment such as investment in subsidiary or unlisted investment
in equity for more than two years as per the investment related directive of Nepal Rastra
Bank.

Regulatory Reserve

The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of the Bank to this reserve as
per the Directive of NRB for the purpose of implementation of NFRS and which shall not be
regarded as free for distribution of dividend (cosh aswellasbonus shares) shallbe presented
under this account head. The regulatory reserve of the bank includes the reserve net of
tax created relating to Accrued Interest Receivable as on Ashad End 2081 not recovered till
Shrawan 32,2081, Reserve on Deferred Tax Assets, Non-Banking Assets, reduction in fair value
of investment in equity below cost price, actuarial loss etc. Movement of Regulatory reserve
is presented below.
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Fair Value Reserve

The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of the Bank to this reserve as
per the Directive of NRB which shall not be regarded as free for distribution of dividend (cash
as well as bonus shares) shall be presented under this account head. The fair value reserve of
the bank includes the reserve net of tax created relating to Market Value of Share investment.

Actuarial Gain/(Loss) Reserve

The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of the Bank both positive or
negative to this reserve as per the Directive of NRB which shall not be regarded as free for
distribution of dividend (cash as well as bonus shares) shall be presented under this account
head. This reserve includes actuarial gain/(loss) net of tax on defined benefit plan and long-

term employee benefits.

Other reserve
Any reserve created with specific or non-specific purpose (except stated in above) are

presented under thus by disclosing accounting heads.

Particulars CSRFund  Training Exchange Assets Investment Actuary Other
Reserve Fund Fluction Revaluation Related Reserve Reserve
Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve
Balance at 8,433,010 | 11,709,379 374,834 | 38,025,854 2,500,000 3,620,081 | 64,663,157
Ashad 31,2080
Adjusted 8,433,010 | 1,709,379 374,834 38,025,854 2,500,000 3,620,081 | 64,663,157
Opening
Transfer from = =
Investment
Adjustment
Reserve
Transfer to 13,529,503 13,529,503
Employee

Training Fund
Utilization from (6,001,551) (6,001,551)
Employee
Training Fund
Transferto CSR | 6,853,214 6,853,214
Fund
Utilization from | (7,100,685) (7100,685)
CSR Fund
Transfer from 71975
Exchange
Fluction
Reserve

ocl (1492,052) | (1492,052)

Balance at 8,185,540 19,237,331 446,809 38,025,854 2,500,000 2,128,029 70,523,563

Ashad 31,2081
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3.19. Earnings per share

Bassic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) for the year by the weighted
average humber of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for treasury shares, bonus issue,
bonus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders, share split and reverse share split
(consolidation of shares).

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) for the year as adjusted
for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes)
relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity
shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of
equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity
shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity
shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential
dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless
they have been issued at a later date.

The Bank measures earning per share on the basis of the earning attributable to the equity
shareholders for the period. The number of shares is taken as the weighted average number
of shares for the relevant period as required by NAS 33 - Earnings Per Share. Earnings per share
are disclosed in Statement of Profit or Loss.

There are no instruments, such as convertibles, that would require dilution of EPS, therefore
diluted EPS has not been computed and disclosed.

3.20. Segmental Reporting

The Bank’s segmental reporting is in accordance with NFRS 8 Operating Segments. Operating
segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the bank’s
management, which is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments. All transactions between business segments are conducted on an arm’s
length basis, with intra-segment revenue and costs being eliminated in Head Office. Income
and expenses directly associated with each segment are included in determining business
segment performance.

The Bank has determined segments based on the province of operation by the management
for decision making purpose. Such segmental information has been provided under
Disclosures & Additional Information (Point No. 5.5).

No revenue from transactions with a single external customer or counterparty amounted to
10% or more of the bank’s total revenue in any of the periods reported.

3.21Interim Financial Reporting

4 F{_Ac,“\_\

Interim reports corresponding to the financial statements had been reported in accordance
with the regulatory reporting requirements. Those statements have been published quarterly
in national level newspaper.
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Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements

4.1 Cash and cash equivalent

Particulars As on Ashad 31, 2081 As on Ashad 31,2080
Cash in Hand 767,851,600 786,349,159
Balances with B/Fis 14,109,393 6,892,119
Money at call and short notice 442,072,797 4,379,195,297
Other (Interbcmk Lending) - -
Total 2,224,033,789 5,172,436,575

4.2 Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Particulars

As on Ashad 31, 2081

As on Ashad 31,2080

Statutory balances with NRB 2,738,488,699 2,303,268,281
Securities purchased under resale agreement - -
Other deposit and receivable from NRB = =
Total 2,738,488,699 2,303,268,281

4.3 Placements with Bank and Financial Institutions

Particulars

Placement with domestic B/Fls
Placement with Foreign B/Fls
Less: Allowances for impairement

As on Ashad 31, 2081

As on Ashad 31,2080

Total

4.4 Derivative Financial Instruments
Particulars

Held for trading

Interest rate swap
Currency Swap

Forward exchange contract
Others

Held for risk management
Interest rate swap
Currency Swap

Forward exchange contract
Others

As on Ashad 31,

2081

As on Ashad 31,
2080

Total

4.5 Other Trading assets

Particulars

As on Ashad 31,

As on Ashad 31,

Treasury Bills

Government bond

NRB bonds

Domestic Corporate bonds
Equities

Other

2081

2080

Total

Pledged
Non- Pledged

(£
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4.6 Loans and advances to BfFls

Particulars Ason Ashad 31, As on Ashad 31,
2081 2080
Loan to Microfinance Institutions 1,820,756,976 1998,341526
Interest Receivables 10,080,681 1,294,245
Less: Allowances for Impairment (71560,294) (75,990,199)
Total 1,759,277,363 1,923,645,571
4.6.1 Allowances for Impairment
Particulars FY 2080-81 FY 2079-80
Balance as at Shrawan 1 75,990,199 96,245,966
Impairment loss for the year:
Charge for the year (4,429,905) (20,255,767)
Recoveries/ReversqI
Amount written off
Balance as at Ashad end 71,560,294 75,990,199

4.7 Loans and advances to customers

Particulars

As on Ashad 31,
2081

As on Ashad 31,
2080

Loans and advances measured at amortized cost 53,511,302,601 44,757,524,072
Less: Impairment allowances
Individual Impairment (641,683,355) (300,446,695)
Portfolio Impairment (866,851,677) (712,619,747)
Net amount 52,002,767,569 43,744,457,630
Loan and advances measured at FVTPL - -
Total 52,002,767,569 43,744,457,630

4.7.1 Analysis of loan and advances - By product

Particulars As on Ashad 31, 2081 As on Ashad 31,2080
Product
Term Loans 20,488,563,919 14,091,228,889
Overdraft 864,080,300 142,320,167
Trust Receipt/Import Loans - -
Demand and other Working Capital Loans 626,971,805 6,110,859,839
Personal Residential Loans 3,593,700,092 2,793,530,607
Real Estate Loans 2,238,569,028 2,099,369,894
Margin Lending Loans 1781295,364 1,256,218,523
Hire Purchase Loans 991,759,235 1138,224,650
Deprived Sector Loans 1,360,269,854 151,699,355
Bills Purchased = =
Staffs Loans 462547578 549,689,455
Other 20,656,996,405 13,822,753,380
Sub-total 53,064,753,579 44,515,894,759
Interest Receivable 446,549,021 241,629,314
Grand Total 53,511,302,601 44,757,524,072
{‘ ‘ qg, 3t ¥ ufdde (A
~=a
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4.7.2 Analysis of loan and advances - By Currency

Particulars
Nepalese Rupee
Indian Rupee
United States Dollar
Great Britain Pound
Euro
Japanese Yen
Chinese Yuan
Other

As on Ashad 31, 2081

53,511,302,601

As on Ashad 31,2080

44757,524,072

Grand Total

53,511,302,601

44,757,524,072

4.7.3 Analysis of loan and advances - By Collateral

Particulars As on Ashad 31, 2081 As on Ashad 31,2080

Secured

Moveable/lmmoveable Assets 51,075,428,060 42,816,612,799

Gold and Silver

Guarantee of Domestic BFls

Government Guarantee - -

Guarantee of International Rated Bank - -

Collateral of Export Document = =

Collateral of Fixed Deposit Receipt 537,918,890 573,910,699

Collatereal of Government Securities = =

Counter Guarantee - -

Personal Guarantee 45,014,230 2,240,751

Other Collateral 1,852,941,420 1,364,759,824
Sub Total 53,511,302,601 44,757,524,072
Unsecured - -
Grand Total 53,511,302,601 44,757,524,072

4.7.4 Allowances for Impairment

Particulars

As on Ashad 31, 2081

As on Ashad 31,2080

Specific allowances for impairment

Balance at Shrawan 1 300,446,695 278,073,117

Impairment loss for the year: 341,236,660 22373578
Charge for the year 341,236,660 22373578
Recoveries/reversal during the year

Write- offs - -

Exchange rate variance on foreign currency

Other movement

Balance at Ashad end 641,683,355 300,446,695

Collective allowances for impairment

Balance at Shrawan 1 712,619,747 410,746,687

Impairment loss for the year: 154,231,930 301,873,059

Charge/(reversal) for the year 154,231,930 301,873,059

Exchange rate variance on foreign currency - -

Other movement = =

Balance at Ashad end 866,851,677 712,619,747

Total allowances for impairment 1,508,535,032 1,013,066,442

(4V]
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4.8 Investment in securities

Particulars As on Ashad 31, 2081 As on Ashad 31,2080
Investment securities designated at FVTPL - -
Investment securities measured at amortized cost 13,134,851,714 8,709,053,018
Investment in equity measured at FVTOCI 469,354,089 378,105,160
Total 13,604,205,803 9,087,158,177

4.8.1Investment in securities measured at amortized cost

Particulars As on Ashad 31, 2081 As on Ashad 31,2080
Debt Securities = =
Government Bond 9,283,351,714 6,657,553,018
Government treasury bills 350,000,000 2,050,000,000
Nepal Rastra Bank bonds - -
Nepal Rastra Bank deposit instruments 3,500,000,000 =
Other 1,500,000 1,500,000
Less: Specific allowances for impairment = =
Total 13,134,851,714 8,709,053,018

4.8.2 Investment in equity measured at fair value through other Other comprehensive income

Particulars As on Ashad 31, 2081 As on Ashad 31,2080
Equity Instrument
Quoted equity securities 413,608,989 324,860,060
Unqguoted equity securities 55,745,100 53,245,100
Total 469,354,089 378,105,160

4.8.3 Information relating to investment in equities

Particulars As on Ashad 31, 2081 As on Ashad 31,2080
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

Investment in quoted equity
1 Nabil Equity Fund

265,299 Units of Rs.10.87 each - 2,884,348 2,549,523
2 Nabil Balance Fund-3

16,670 Units of Rs. 10 each 166,700 130,026 166,700 126,192
3 Nabil Balance Fund -2

309,099 Units of Rs. 10 each 4,771,334 2,781,891 4,771,334 2,720,071
4 N.M.B. Hybrid Fund

394,350 Units of Rs. 10 each - 3,943,500 4,255,037
5 N.I.C. Asia Mutual Fund

500,000 Units of Rs.10 each 5,000,000 400,000 - -
6 Nepoal Life Insurance Co. Ltd.

1 Bonus shares of Rs.100 each - 619 - 744
7 Siddhartha Mutual Fund (Siddhartha Equity Fund)

20,67,748 Units of Rs.10 Each 20,677,480 17,348,406 20,677,480 19,498,864
8 Citizens Mutual Fund

5,00,000 Units of Rs.10 each 5,000,000; 4,820,000 5,000,000 4,690,000
9 N.L.C. Asia Mutual Fund

750,000 Units of Rs. 10 each 7,500,000 7,425,000 7,500,000 7,717,500
10  |NIBL Sahabhagita Fund

750,000 Units of Rs. 10 each 7,400,000 7,920,000 7,400,000 8,077,500
1l Citizens Mutual Fund 2

250,000 Units of Rs. 10 each 2,500,000, 2,557,500 2,500,000 2,597,500
12 |Aarambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha

Limited

69,660 promoter share of Rs. 100 each 5,000,000| 16,725,366/ 5,000,000 22,535,010
13 Global IME Mutual Fund

474,700 Units of Rs. 10 each - - 4,747,000 4,570,957
14 |Chilime Hydropower Company Limited

1134 shares of Rs.1341.77 each 1,521,567 968,595 1,521,567 1,016,510

g" ‘ ag, 3l anfie ufide T
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National Life Insurance Company Ltd.
7363 shares of Rs. 1500 each 104,033 946,050 104,033 950,085
Nagdi Group Power Limited
4 Bonus shares of Rs.100 each 300! 1,364 300 936
Butwal Power Company Ltd.
5709 shares of Rs. 894.42 3,104,530 1,769,790 3,104,530 1,886,825
Nerude Mirmire Laghubitta Bikas Bank Ltd.
2 Bonus shares of Rs. 100 each - 1440 - 1,397
Asian Life Insurance Company Ltd.
3 bonus share of Rs. 100 100 1,869 100 1,490
United Ajod Insurance Company Ltd.
6,308 shares of Rs. 5,64.55 each - 3,391,410 3,273,221
Neco Insurance Company Ltd.
3 Bonus shares - 2,508 - 2,673
Sanima Equity Fund
600,000 units of Rs.100 each 6,000,000, 6,546,000, 6,000,000 7,080,000
NMB 50 Mutual Fund
450,000 Units of Rs.10 each 4,500,000, 4,518,000/ 4,500,000 4,725,000
NIBL Stable Fund
250,000 shares of Rs. 10 each 2,500,000[ 2,500,000 - -
Mero Micro Finance Ltd.
4 shares of Rs. 100 each - 2,800 - 2,644
Siddhartha Investment Growth Scheme
500,000 units of Rs.10 each 50,000,000 47,450,000| 50,000,000, 45,150,000
Sanima GIC Insurance Limited
72,857 Promoter shares of Rs. 100 each 7,285,700 21,019,245 7,285,700, 23,674,882
Surya Jyoti Life Insurance Co
36,428 Promoter shares of Rs.100 each 3,303,800 7,830,199 3,753,500 10,076,590
Sanima GIC Insurance Limited
27,143 Promoter shares of Rs. 100 each - - 2,714,300 17,640,236
Surya Jyoti Life Insurance Co
12,465 Promoter shares of Rs.100 each - - 1,246,500 7,603,650
Dhaulagiri Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
15,000 shares of Rs.100 each 1,500,000 7,646,625 1,500,000 6,270,000
Nabil Flexi Fund
200,000 shares of Rs.10 each 20,000,000( 20,000,000 20,000,000, 20,000,000
NIBL Growth Fund
300,000 shares of Rs.10 each 30,000,000 31,920,000{ 30,000,000, 31920,000
Prabhu Select Fund
500,000 shares of Rs.10 each 5,000,000, 4,805,000 5,000,000 4,425,000
Sanima Growth Fund
400,000 shares of Rs. 10 each 4,000,000, 4,056,000 4,000,000 3,996,000
Global IME Balance Fund 1
500,000 shares of Rs.10 each 5,000,000 4,550,000, 5,000,000 4,670,000
Nmb Sulav Fund I
250,000 shares of Rs.10 each 2,500,000 2,650,000/ 2,500,000 2,497,500
Arun Kabeli Hydro Power Company Limited
524 shares of Rs. 251.32 each 131,692 96,940 105,492 61439
ArunVally Hydropower Limited
19,440 shares of Rs.211.69 each 415,272 3,458,376 3143272 2,478,600
Mountain Energy Limited
4,600 shares of Rs. 723.93 each 3,330,212 2,746,200 3,330,212 3,980,000
Ngadi Group Power Limited
500 shares of Rs. 280.59each 140,295 170,500 140,295 116,950
Sahas Urga Limited
5,990 shares of Rs. 509.74 each 3,063,313 3,108,810 3,053,313 2,898,561
Synergy Power Development
1,500 shares of Rs. 235.39 each 353,087 382,350 303,087 250,100
Upper Hewakhola Hydropower Limited
4,980 shares of Rs. 41173 each 2,050,428 2,322174 47113194 2,974,023
Asian Life Insurance Company Limited.
4,564 shares of Rs. 458.25each 2,091,431 2843372 2,091,431 356,244
Life Insurance Co. Limited.
1,300 shares of Rs.1402.65 each 1,823,442 1,869,400 1,823,442 2,021,500
Neco Insurance Company Limited
4,025shares of Rs. 677.24 each 2725879 3,364,900 2,725,879 3,586,678
NLG Insurance Company
5,064 shares of Rs.582.87 each 2,951,636 4,025373 2,951,636 4,032,000
Rastriya Beema Company Limited
150 shares of Rs.14,321.41 each 2148,212| 2,023,500 248,212 2,414,850
United Ajod Insurance Company Limited
ag off arffe ufides (A%
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4.9 Current tax Assets/Liability

4,200 shares of Rs. 385.58each 1,619,431 2,771,055 1,619,431 2,179,380
51 Bottlers Nepal Company Limited

300 shares of Rs.13,797.92 each 4,139,375/ 3,900,000 4,139,375 440,000
52 |Himalayan Distillery Limited

1,440 shares of Rs. 2,206.8 each 3,177,798 2,192,256 3,177,798 3,237,120
53  |Nepal Doorsanchar Company Limited

4,000 shares of Rs.925.38 each 3,701,501 3,380,000 3,701,501 3,627,600
54  |CEDB Hydropower Development Company

Limited.

3,500 shares of Rs. 726.98 each 2544432 4,056,500, 2,544,432 3,164,000
55 |Citizen Investment Trust

1,400 shares of Rs. 2,069.77 each 2,897,681 3,403,750 2,897,681 2,924,600
56 |Emerging Nepal Limited

2,030 shares of Rs. 657.72 each 1335]177| 2,249,240 1,335,177 1,412,880
57  [Vision Lumbini Urja Company Limited.

5.00,000 shares of Rs.100 each 50,000.000] 132,250,000 - -

Subtotal 299,665,839(413,608,988| 262,557,162( 324,860,060

Investment in Unquoted equity
1 Nepal Clearing House Limited.

4,951shares of Rs. 100 each 412,600 495,100 412,600 495,100
2 Trust Micro Insurance.

5,25,000 shares of Rs.100 each 52,500,000 52,500,000 50,000,000/ 50,000,000
3 Banking finance and Insurance Company

25000 shares of Rs.100 2,500,000 2,750,000 2,500,000 2,750,000

Subtotal 55,412,600/ 55,745,100, 52,912,600 53,245,100

Grand Total 355,078,439|469,354,088 315,469,762 378,105,160

Particulars Ason Ashad 31,2081 Ason Ashad 31,2080

Current tax assets 390,182,058 419,677,953
Current year Income Tax Assets 390,182,058 419,677,953
Tax Assets - -
Current tax liabilities 333,704,508 342,465,842
Current year Income Tax Liabilities 333,704,508 342,465,842
Tax Liabilities of Prior Periods =

333,704,508 342,465,842
Total of income tax assets/(liabilities) 56,477,550 77,212,M

4.10 Investment In subsidiaries

Particulars

Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries
Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries
Total Investment

Less: Impairment Allowances

As on Ashad 31, 2081

As on Ashad 31,2080

Net Carrying Amount

4.10.1Investment In quoted subsidiaries

Particulars

As on Ashad
Cost

d 31,2081
Fair Value

Cost

As on Ashad 31,2080

Fair Value

b,
|

qg, 3 a1 ufddeT

3. 0¢0[¢q



4.10.2 Investment In unquoted subsidiaries

Particulars

Ason As|

Cost

ad 31,2081
Fair alue

As on Ash
Cost

ad 31,2080
Fair Value

Total - - - -

Percenta
As on Ashad 31, 2081

eo
As on Ashad 31,2080

4.10.4: Non Controlling Interest of the Subsidiaries

Group
As on Ashad 31, 2081
Equity Interest held by NCI (%)
Profit (Loss) allocated during the year
Accumulated Balances of NCI as on Ashad End
Dividend Paid to NCI

4.1 Investment In associates

Particulars As on Ashad 31, 2081 As on Ashad 31,2080

Cost| Fair Value Cost| Fair Value
Investment in Quoted associates - - - -
Investment in Unquoted associates - - - -
Total Investment -

Less: Impairment Allowances -

Net Carrying Amount - - - -

4.11.1Investment In quoted associates

Particulars As on Ashad 31,2081 As on Ashad 31,2080
Cost| Fair Value Cost Fair Value
.................... Ltd
........ shares of Rs... Each = = = =
..... Ltd
........ shares of Rs... Each = = = =
Total - - - -

4.11.2 Investment In unquoted associates

Particulars As on Ashad 31, 2081 As on Ashad 31,2080
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Total - - - -
g’. ‘ 95 3t aiffe ufdae= B9
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4.11.3 Information relating to associates of the bank

Particulars

Percentage of owneship

As on Ashad 31, 2081

As on Ashad 31,2080

4.11.4: Equity value of associates

Particulars

As on Ashad 31,2081

As on Ashad 31,2080

4.12 Investment Properties

Particulars
Investment Properties measured at Fair Value
Balance as on Shrawan 01,2080
Addition/(Disposal) during the year
Net Changes in fair value during the year
Adjustment/Transfer
Net Amount
Investment Properties measured at Cost

As on Ashad 31, 2081

As on Ashad 31,2080

Balance as on Shrawan 01,2080 90,325,068 -
Addition/(Disposal) during the year 39,692,275 90,325,068
Adjustment/Transfer -
Accumulated depreciation =
Accumulated impairment loss -
Net Amount 130,017,343 90,325,068
Total 130,017,343 90,325,068
B
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‘4.14 Goodwill and Intangible Assets

b,
|

Particulars Goodwill Software Other Total Ashad
end 2080
Purchased| Developed
Cost

As on Shrawan 012079 118,496,289 24,527,019 = -| 143,023,308
Addition during the year - 1,762,800 - - 1,762,800

Acquisition 1,762,800 - - 1,762,800

Capitalization - - - -
Disposal during the year - - - - -
Adjustment/Revaluation - - - -
Balance as on Ashad end 2080 118,496,289 26,289,819 = = 144,786,108
Addition during the Year - - - -

Acquisition 13,252,207 - - 13,252,207

Capitalization - - - -
Disposal during the year - - - -
Adjustment/Revaluation - - - -
Balance as on Ashad end 2081 118,496,289 39,542,026 = = 158,038,315
Amortisation and Impairment
As on Shrawam 01. 2079 - 10,647,306 - - 10,647,306
Amortisation charge for the year - 4,002,441 - - 4,002,441
Impairment for the year = S i = i
Disposals - - - -
Adjustment = = = =
As on Ashad end 2080 - 14,649,747 - - 14,649,747
Amortisation charge for the year - 3,018,681 - - 3,018,681
Impairment for the year - - - -
Disposals i S i = i
Adjustment - - - -
As on Ashad end 2081 = 18,568,429 = = 18,568,429
Capital Work in Progress
Net Book Value
As on Ashad end 2079 118,496,289 13,879,712 - - 132,376,001
As on Ashad end 2080 118,496,289 11,640,071 - -| 130,136,360
As on Ashad end 2081 118,496,289 20,973,597 - -| 139,469,886
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4.15 Deferred Taxes Assets/(Liabilities)
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Particulars Deferred Tax Deferred Ason Ashad 31,2080
Assets Tax Net Deferred Tax
Liabilities  Assets [(Liabilities)

Deferred tax on temporary differences on

following items
Loans and Advances to BFls - - -
Loans and Advances to Customers >
Investment Properties (27,097,520) - (27,097,520)
Investment Securities (18,790,6]9) = (18,790,619)
Investment In Associates - - -
Property and Equipment (25151147) - (25151147)
Employees’ Defined Benefit Plan (2,419,326) - (2,419,326)
Employees’ Leave Liability 4,382,848 - 4,382,848
Lease Liabilities 26,342,173 - 26,342,173
Provisions LLP > = =
Other Temporary Differences - - -

Deferred tax on temporary differences (42,733,591) - (42,733,591)

Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax - -

losses

Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate - - -

Net Deferred Tax Asset (Liabilities) as on year (42,733,591)

end of 2079/80

Deferred Tax (Asset)/ Liabilities as on Ashad end, (1,848730)

2079

Origination/(Reversal) during the year (44,582,321)

Deferred Tax (expense)/income recognized in (29,742,831)

profit or loss

Deferred Tax (expense)/income recognized in (14,839,490)

Other Comprehensive Income

Deferred Tax (expense)/ income recognized

directly in equity
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Particulars DeferredTax Deferred AsonAshad 31,2081
Assets Tax Net Deferred Tax
Liabilities  Assets [(Liabilities)

Deferred tax on temporary differences on - - =

following items
Loans and Advances to BFls - - -
Loans and Advances to Customers = = =
Investment Properties (39,005,203) - (39,005,203)
Investment Securities (34,282,695) - (34,282,695)
Investment In Associates - - -
Property and Equipment (3,452,532) - (3.452,532)
Employees’ Defined Benefit Plan 2,677,652 - 2,677,652
Employees’ Leave Liability 4,188,692 - 4,188,692
Lease Liabilities 28,562,587 - 28,562,587
Provisions LLP = = =
Other Temporary Differences - - -

Deferred tax on temporary differences (41,311,498) - (41,311,498)

Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax - -

losses

Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate - - -

Net Deferred Tax Asset (Liabilities) as on year (a41,311,498)

end of 2080/81

Deferred Tax (Asset)/ Liabilities as on Ashad end, - 42733591

2080

Origination/(Reversal) during the year 1422,093

Deferred Tax (expense)/income recognized in 16,274,718

profit or loss

Deferred Tax (expense)/income recognized in (21,060,198)

Other Comprehensive Income

Deferred Tax (expense)/income recognized 6,207,573

directly in equity
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4.16 Other Assets

Particulars Ason Ashad 31,2081 Ason Ashad 31,2080

Assets held for Sale = =
Other Non-Banking Assets - -
Total Other Assets = =
Bills Receivable - -
Accounts Receivable 158,549,118 147,409,554
Other Adjustment - -
Prepayments and Deposits 1,345,100 53,657,679
Advance Income Tax - -
Deferred Employee Expenditure 206,831,431 41781793
Other 23,887,068 26,941,497

Stationery Stock 22,777,531 25,809,718

Commission Receivable

Deposit 546,700 573,700

Others 562,837 558,079
Grand Total 390,612,717 269,790,523

4.17 Due to Bank and Financial Institutions

Particulars

Money Market Deposits
Interbank Borrowing

As on Ashad 31, 2081

As on Ashad 31,2080

Other Deposits from BFls 369,025,734 733,094,743
Settlement and Clearing Accounts - -
Other Deposits from BFls = =
Total 369,025,734 733,094,743

4.18 Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Particulars Ason Ashad 31,2081 Ason Ashad 31,2080
Refinance from NRB - 300,000,000
Standing Liquidity Facility - -
Lender of Last Resort facility from NRB = =
Securities sold under repurchase agreements - -
Other Payable to NRB = =
Total - 300,000,000

4.19 Derivative Financial instruments

Particulars

Held for Trading
Interest Rate Swap
Currency Swap
Forward Exchange Contracts
Others

Held for Risk Management
Interest Rate Swap
Currency Swap
Forward Exchange Contracts.
Others

As on Ashad 31, 2081

As on Ashad 31,2080

Total
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4.20 Deposits from customers

Particulars As on Ashad 31, 2081 As on Ashad 31,2080
Institutions Customers: 13,493,029,065 9,785,607,394
Term deposits 9,498,315,930 6,635,133,507
Call deposits 2,987,857,384 256,630,727
Current deposits 891,616,531 880,069,690
Other 115,239,220 113,773,470
Individual Customers: 52,463,195,281 45,897,279,706
Term deposits 30,405,738,058 28,691,768,510
Saving deposits 22,049,528,023 17,196,793,106
Current deposits 7,929,200 8,718,090
Other - -
Total 65,956,224,347 55,682,887,100

4.20.1 Currency wise analysis of deposit form customers

Particulars
Nepalese Rupee
Indian Rupee
United State dollar
Great Britain pound
Euro
Japenese yen
Chinese Yuan
Other

As on Ashad 31,2081
65,956,224,347

As on Ashad 31,2080
55,682,887,100

Total

65,956,224,347

55,682,887,100

4.21 Borrowings

Particulars

Domestic Borrowing

Nepal Government

Other Institutions (Yuba Sorojgar Kosh)
Other

Sub total

Foreign Borrowing

Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions
Multilateral Development Banks

Other institutions

Sub total

As on Ashad 31,2081

4,610,241

4,610,241

As on Ashad 31,2080

18,750,000

18,750,000

Total

4,610,241

18,750,000

4.22 Provisions

Particulars

Provisions for redundancy

Provision for restructuring

Pending legal issues and tax litigation
Onerous contracts

Other

As on Ashad 31, 2081

As on Ashad 31,2080

Total
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4.22.1 Movement in Provisions

Particulars

Balance at Shrawan 1

Provisions made during the year
Provisions used during the year
Provisions reversed during the year
Unwind of discount

As on Ashad 31, 2081

As on Ashad 31,2080

Balance at Ashad end

4.23 Other Liabilities

Particulars As on Ashad 31, 2081 As on Ashad 31,2080

Liabilities for emloyees defined benefit obligations 8,925,508 (8,064,420)
Liabilities for leave 13,962,307 14,609,494
Short term employee benefits i i
Bills payable - -
Creditors and accruals 90,164,238 125,985,594
Interest payable on deposits 5,160,655 54,735,559
Interest payable on borrowing i i
Liabilities on defered grant income - -
Unpaid Dividend = =
Employee bonus payable 117,276,392 126,225,704
Other Liabilities 157,852,796 151,747,619
Audit Fee Payable 2,389,258 2,408,400
TDS Payable 59,093,780 54,066,121
Liabilities under Operating Lease 95,208,624 87,807,245
Others 261,135 7,465,853
Total 393,341,896 465,239,550

4.23.1. A Defined Benefit Obligation
The amounts recognised in the statements of financials positions are as follows :
Particulars FY 2080-81 FY 2079-80

Present value of unfunded obligations 82,810,031 70,527,221
Present value of funded obligations - -
Total present value of obligations 82,810,031 70,527,221
Fair value of plan assets 73,884,523 78,591,641
Present value of net obligations 8,925,508 (8,064,420)
Recognised liability for defined benefit obligations 8,925,508 (8,064,420)

4.23.2: Plan Assets

Plan assets comprise

Particulars
Equity securities
Government bonds

As on Ashad 31, 2081

As on Ashad 31,2080

Bank deposit = =
Other 73,884,523 78,691,641
Total 73,884,523 78,591,641

*OtherAssets means Fair Value of Plan Assets relating to Gratuity as per Actuary Valuation Report
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4.23.3: Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations

Particulars As on Ashad 31, 2081 As on Ashad 31,2080

Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1 70,527,221 74,917,110
Transfer from Adjustment - -
Actuarial losses/Gain 2,212,719 (14,991,048)
Benefits paid by the plan (3,605,143) (3,015,8M)
Benefits paid outside the plan = =
Current service costs; Past Service Cost and interest 13,675,234 13,616,970
Defined benefit obligations at Ashad end 82,810,031 70,527,221

4.23.4: Movement in the fair value of plan assets

Particulars As on Ashad 31, 2081 As on Ashad 31,2080

Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1 78,591,641 66,629,105
Contributions paid into the plan - 8,288,005
Adjustment of Opening Fund -
Benefits paid during the year (3,605,143) (3,015,81)
Actuarial (losses) gains 81,216 693723
Transfer in/(out) (8,064,420) -
Expected return on plan assets 6,881,229 5,996,619
Fair value of plan assets at Ashad end 73,884,523 78,591,641

4.23.5: Amount recognised in profit or loss

Particulars As on Ashad 31, 2081 As on Ashad 31,2080
Current service costs 7,501,452 6,874,430
Past service costs - -
Acquistion Adjustemnt
Past service costs (Vested)

Interest on obligation 6,173,782 6,742,540
Expected return on plan assets (6,881,229) (5,996,619)
Total 6,794,005 7,620,351

4.23.6: Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

Particulars As on Ashad 31, 2081 As on Ashad 31,2080
Acturial (gain)/loss 2131503 (15,684,771)
Total 2,131,503 (15,684,771)

4.23.7: Actuarial assumptions

Particulars As on Ashad 31, 2081 As on Ashad 31,2080
Discount rate 9% 9%
Expected return on plan asset 9% 9%
Future salary increase 4% 4%
Withdrawal rate 5% 5%

4.23.1. BLong Term Benefit Obligation
The amounts recognised in the statements of financials positions are as follows :

Particulars As on Ashad 31, 2081 As on Ashad 31,2080
Present value of unfunded obligations
Present value of funded obligations 58,728,845 47,829,310
Total present value of obligations 58,728,845 47,829,310
Fair value of plan assets 44,766,538 33,219,816
Present value of net obligations 13,962,307 14,609,494
Recognised liability for Long Term Obligation 13,962,307 14,609,494
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4.23.2: Plan Assets
Plan assets comprise

Particulars As on Ashad 31, 2081 As on Ashad 31,2080

Equity securities
Government bonds

Bank deposit - -
Other 44,766,538 33,219,816
Total 44,766,538 33,219,816

*OtherAssets means Fair Value of Plan Assets relating to Leave as per Actuary Valuation Report

4.23.3: Movement in the present value of Long Term benefit obligations

Particulars As on Ashad 31, 2081 As on Ashad 31,2080

Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1 47,829,310 39,440,442
Acquisition adjustment - -
Actuarial losses/Gain 7226828 (134,593)
Benefits paid by the plan (6,679,136) (9,399,552)
Current service costs; Past Service Cost and 10,351,843 17,923,013
interest

Defined benefit obligations at Ashad end 58,728,845 47,829,310

4.23.4: Movement in the fair value of plan assets

Particulars As on Ashad 31,2081 As on Ashad 31,2080

Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1
Adjustment to Opening Fund
Contributions paid into the plan
Benefits paid during the year
Actuarial (losses) gains

Expected return on plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at Ashad end

33,219,816
8,064,420
6,545,074
(6,679136)
791,448
2,824,916
44,766,538

34,261,281
5,179,161
(9,399,552)
21,682
2,967,244
33,219,816

4.23.5: Amount recognised in profit or loss

Particulars As on Ashad 31, 2081 As on Ashad 31,2080

Current service costs 6,465,790 6,468,987
Past service costs—(non Vested) - -
Past service costs (Vested) - 8322971
Acturial gain/(loss) 6,435,380 (346,275)
Interest on obligation 3,886,053 3,131,055
Expected return on plan assets (2,824,9]6) (2,967,244)
Total 13,962,307 14,609,494

4.23.6: Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

Particulars
Acturial (gain)/loss

As on Ashad 31, 2081

As on Ashad 31,2080

Total

4.23.7: Actuarial assumptions

Particulars

Discount rate

Expected return on plan asset
Future salary increase
Withdrawal rate

As on Ashad 31, 2081
9%
9%
4%
5%

As on Ashad 31,2080
9%
9%

4%
5%
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4.24 Debt secutities issued

Particulars As on Ashad 31, 2081 As on Ashad 31,2080

Debt securities issued designated as at fair value

through profit or loss
Debt securities issued at amortised cost

Total

4.25 Subordinate Liabilities

Particulars
Redeemable preference shares
Irredemable cumulative preference shares

(liabilities component)

As on Ashad 31, 2081

As on Ashad 31,2080

Other
Total - -
4.26 Share Capital
Particulars Ason Ashad 31,2081 Ason Ashad 31,2080

Ordinary Shares 4,733,690,951 4,283,883,213
Convertible Preference Shares (Equity component) - -
Irredemable Preference Shares (Equity component) = S
Perpetual debt (Equity component only) - -
Total 4,733,690,951 4,283,883,213

4.26.1 Share capital detail

Particulars
Authorised capital
25,000,000 Ordinary Share of Rs.100 each (FY 2075-76)
50,000,000 Ordinary Share of Rs100 each (FY 2076-77)

Issued Capital

30163,397.42 Ordinary Share of Rs.100 each (FY 2076-77)
34,084,639.09 Ordinary Share of Rs.100 each (FY 2077-78)
37,810,090.14 Ordinary Share of Rs.100 each (FY 2078-79)
42,838,83213 Ordinary Share of Rs.100 each (FY 2079-80)
47.336,909.51 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each (FY 2080-81)
Subscribed and paid up capital

30163,397.42 Ordinary Share of Rs.100 each (FY 2076-77)
34,084,639.09 Ordinary Share of Rs.100 each (FY 2077-78)
37,810,090.14 Ordinary Share of Rs.100 each (FY 2078-79)
42,838,83213 Ordinary Share of Rs.100 each (FY 2079-80)
47,336,909.51 Ordinary Share of Rs.100 each (FY 2080-81)

As on Ashad 31, 2081

5,000,000,000

4,733,690,951

4,733,690,951

As on Ashad 31,2080

5,000,000,000

4,283,883,213

4,283,883,213

Total

4,733,690,951

4,283,883,213

4.26.2 Ordinary Share Ownership

b,
|

Particulars As on Ashad 31, 2081 As on Ashad 31,2080
% of holding Amount % of holding Amount
Domestic ownership 100.00%| 4,733,690,951 100.00%| 4,283,883,213
Nepal Government
“A” Class licenced institutions
Other Licenced institutions
Other institutions & individuals
Public 49.00%| 2,319,508,566 49.00%| 2,099,102,774
Other 51.00%| 2,414182,385 51.00%| 2,184,780,439
Foreign Ownership
Total 100%| ,733,690,951 100.00% | 4,283,883,213
qg, 3t ¥ ufdde 909
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List of Shareholders holding more than 0.5% shares

Shareholder’'s Name

Thaneshor Poudel

Dhanendra Karki
Bal Krishna Bhusal
Dilip Raj Maskey

Rajendra Prasad Shrestha
Mrigendra Prasad Shrestha
Krishna Prasad Sharma
Bhuwan Bhandari

Krishna Prasad Bhandari
Mina Kumari Shrestha
Surendra Pd Shrestha
Ishwori Prasad Paudyal
Bheshraj Pandey

Janak Pradhan

Dan Bahadur Kunwar Chhetri
Kedar Man Kakshapati
Meghraj Kakshapati

Bishnu Prasad Sharma
Maheshwor Prasad Shrestha
Suresh Kumar Dharewal
Hari Prasad Pradhan
Sushma Chhetri

Narayan Prasad Agrawal
Suraj Upreti

Bhawa Laxmi Shrestha
Tankeshwor Khanal
Birendra Bhusal

No of Shares

1,080,387

473,621
461,731
374,332

359,150
324,763
320,474
307,982
298,447
283,556
283,149
283,48
282,732
280,233
277,798
270,57
270,153
268,851
268,468
266,780
261,541
248,401
246,086
245,746
242,212
236,087
235,406

Share Amount Rs. Percentage

108,038,747 2.28%
47,362,129 1.00%
46,173,131 0.98%
37433177 0.79%
35,914,961 0.76%
32,476,291 0.69%
32,047,374 0.68%
30,798,180 0.65%
20,844,684 0.63%
28,355,640 0.60%
28,314,876 0.60%
28,314,814 0.60%
28,273,203 0.60%
28,023,339 0.59%
27,779,838 0.59%
27,015,669 0.57%
27,015,270 0.57%
26,885,067 0.57%
26,846,809 0.57%
26,677,968 0.56%
26,154,090 0.55%
24,840,097 0.52%
24,608,628 0.52%
24,574,623 0.52%
24221234 0.51%
23,608,686 0.50%
23,540,646 0.50%

Paid up share capital of the Bank has moved over the years as follows:

Financial Year

Cumulative Remarks

Paid Up
Capital

2069 Ashad

Issue of Bonus Share
Merger Resunga Bikas Bank
2070 Ashad
Issue of Bonus Share
Issue of Right Share
2071 Ashad
Issue of Right Share
Issue of Bonus Share
2072 Ashad
Merger of Gaumukhi Bikas Bank
Issue of Bonus Share
2073 Ashad
Issue of Bonus Share
2074 Ashad
Issue of Bonus Share

234,000,000

63,972,800
85,863,600 Meger
383,836,400
57,575,500
166,055,600
607,467,500
25,862,600
170,999,200
804,329,300
64,089,792 Meger
234,473,208
1102,892,300
275,723,100
1,378,615,400
244,049,860
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2076 Ashad 1,622,665,260
Acquisition of Purnima Bikash Bank Limited & Bhargav Bikash Bank 1,000,238,864
Limited
Issue of Bonus Share 393,435,619

2077 Ashad 3,016,339,742
Issue of Bonus Share 392,124,167

2078 Ashad 3,408,463,909
Issue of Bonus Share 372,545,105

2079 Ashad 3,781,009,014
Issue of Bonus Share 502,874,199

2080 Ashad 4,283,883,213
Issue of Bonus Share 449,807,737

2081 Ashad 4,733,690,951

Acquisition

4.27 Reserves

Particulars

As on Ashad 31, 2081

As on Ashad 31,2080

Statutory general reserve 1132,324,638 991,121,967
Capital redemption reserve - -
Regulatory reserve 458,021,223 315,317,448
Investment adjustment reserve 2,500,000 2,500,000
Capital reserve = =
Fair value reserve 79,992,955 43,844,778
Dividend equalisation reserve - -
Other Reserve 68,023,562 62,163,157
Actuarial gain/loss reserve 228,029 3,620,081
Assets revaluation reserve 38,025,854 38,025,854
Exchange equilisation reserve 446,809 374,834
Corporate social responsibility reserve 8,185,540 8,433,010
Staff Training Fund 19,237,331 11,709,379
Total 1,740,862,378 1,414,947,349

4.28 Contingent liabilities and commitments

Particulars

As on Ashad 31, 2081

As on Ashad 31,2080

Contingent liabilities 386,989,225 201,873,058
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities 264,145,182 427,665,274
Capital commitment - -
Lease Commitment - -
Litigation = =
Total 651,134,407 1,719,538,331

4.28.1: Contingent Liabilities

Particulars
Acceptance and documentary credit
Bills for collection
Forward exchange contracts

As on Ashad 31, 2081

As on Ashad 31,2080

Guarantees - -

Underwriting commitment

Other commitments 386,989,225 291,873,058

Total 386,989,225 291,873,058
08
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4.28.2: Undrawn and undisbursed facilities

Particulars As on Ashad 31, 2081 As on Ashad 31,2080
Undisbursed amount of loans = 5,050,000
Undrawn limits of overdrafts 264,145,182 1422,615,274
Undrawn limits of credit cards
Undrawn limits of letter of credit
Undrawn limits of guarantee
Total 264,145,182 1,427,665,274

4.28.3: Capital commitments

Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the bank but provision has not been

made in financial statements

Particulars

Capital commitments in relation to Property and Equipment
Approved and contracted for

Approved but not contracted for

Sub total

Capital commitments in relation to Intangible assets
Approved and contracted for

Approved but not contracted for

Sub total

As on Ashad As on Ashad
31,2081 31,2080

Total

4.28.4: Lease commitments

Particulars

AsonAshad AsonAshad

31,2081 31,2080

Operating lease commitments
“Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable

operating lease, where the bank is lessee”
Not later than 1year
Later than 1year but not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years
Sub total
Finance lease commitments
Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating

lease, where the bank is lessee
Not later than 1year
Later than 1year but not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years

Sub total

Grand total

4.28.5: Litigation

Particulars As on Ashad 31,2081

Contingent Tax Liabilities-Income Tax

As on Ashad 31,2080

Total
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4.29 Interestincome

Particulars FY 2080-81 FY 2079-80
Cash and cash equivalent 28,290,474 32,779,203
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Placement with bank and financial institutions 45,260,032 79,178,232
Loan and advances to bank and financial 207,220,784 233,977,839
institutions
Loans and advances to customers 6,170,732,773 5,998,076,275
Investment securities 580,793,577 608,353,504
Loan and advances to staff 137,059,436 25,620,481
Other Interest Income -
Total interestincome 7,169,357,077 6,977,985,534

4.30 Interest Expense

Particulars FY 2080-81 FY 2079-80
Due to bank and financial institutions 7,305,724 13,957,746
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Deposits from customers 4.803,054,034 4837443658
Borrowing - -
Debt securities issued = =
Subordinated liabilities - -
Interest on ROU Assets 8,394,739 8,394,739
Other Charges 353,690 909,732
Total Interest expense 4,819,108,187 4,860,705,875

4.31 Fees and commission income

Particulars FY 2080-81 FY 2079-80
Loan administration fees = =
Service fees 190,023,492 200,222,248
Consortium fees
Commitment fees
DD/TT/Swift fees - -
Credit card/ATM issuance and renewal fees 20,761,000 8,910,063
Renewal fees
Prepayment and swap fees 3,734,979
Investment banking fees
Asset management fees
Brokerage fees
Remittance fees 9,990,239 13,324,281
Commission on letter of credit = =
Commission on guarantee contracts issued 504,093 3,404,016
Commission on share underwriting/issue - -
Locker rental 161,375 1,354,284
Other fees and commision income 102,390,877 59,352,390
Total Fees and Commission Income 333,616,055 286,567,282

0%
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4.32 Fees and commission Expense

Particulars
ATM management fees
VISA/Master card fees
Guarantee commission
Brokerage
DD/TT/Swift fees.
Remittance fees and commission
Other fees and commission expense
CIC Fees
Commission & Discount
Mobile Banking Expenses
ASBA Application Expenses
ATM Card management and Disposal Charges

FY 2080-81 FY 2079-80

16,655,203

17,255,005
600,000
1,292,010

15,097,447
265,548

14,139,056

16,967,960
555,790
1,275,130
14,133,113

1,003,926

Total Fees and Commission Expense

33,910,208

31,107,016

4.33 Net Trading Income

Particulars
Changes in fair value of trading assets
Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets
Interest income on trading assets
Dividend income on trading assets
Gain/loss foreign exchange transation
Other

FY 2080-81 FY 2079-80

Net Trading Income

4.34 Other Operating Income

Particulars
Foreign exchange revauation gain/Loss
Gain/loss on sale of investment securities
Fair value gain/loss on investment properties
Dividend on equity instruments
Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment
Gain/loss on sale of investment property
Operating lease income
Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver
Other Operating Income
Share of Income of Associates

FY 2080-81 FY 2079-80

287,900
(3,368,946)

10,422,376
542,954

(27,533)
2156,058
12,135,246
1,335,783

Total

7,884,284

15,599,554

4.35 Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses

b,
|

Particulars FY 2080-81 FY 2079-80
Impairment chdrge/(reversol) on loan and advances to BFls (4,429,905) (20,255,767)
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customers 495468590 324,246,638
Impairment chdrge/(reversol) on financial Investment = =
Impairment charge/(reversol) on placement with BFls
Impairment chdrge/(reversol) on property and equipment
Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets
Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties - =
Impairment charge/(reversol) on Other Assets - -
Total 491,038,685 303,990,871
qg it a1 ufcraeA 09
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4.36 Personal Expenses

Particulars FY 2080-81 FY 2079-80
Salary 229,450,033 223,653,214
Allowances 155,392,938 133,982,952
Gratuity Expense 16,240,617 14,696,405
Provident Fund 22,846,551 22,275,676
Uniform 8,970,000 8,664,340
Training & development expense 6,001,551 6,815,939
Leave encashment 23,776,850 22,206,666
Medical 17,791,838 17,282,854
Insurance 1,256,072 1,301,863
Employees incentive - 13,629
Cash-settled share-based payments - -
Pension expense - -
Finance expense under NFRS 121,594,647 7,915,197
Other expenses related to staff (Retirement - -
Expenses)
Subtotal 603,321,096 458,898,636
Employees bonus 117,276,392 126,225,704
Grand Total 720,597,488 585,124,340
4.37 Other Operating Expenses
Particulars FY 2080-81 FY 2079-80
Directors’ fee 1,440,000 1,303,000
Directors’ expense 1122,430 1,773,382
Auditors’ remuneration 5,312,500 3,683,800
Other audit related expense - 254,270
Professional and legal expense 1,276,851 453,659
Office administration expense (4.37 A) 133,433,437 131,299,500
Operating Lease expense (4.37 B) 134,460,894 118,910,807
NFRS Adjustment - -
Corporate social responsibility expense 700,685 5,634,345
Donations 153,750 122,000
Onerous lease provisions = =
Other Expenses 16,827,667 17,683,887
Repair & Maintenance Building - 458109
Repair & Maintenance Vehicle 2,304,857 2,783,878
Repair & Maintenance Others 2,296,871 1,421,816
Repair & Maintenance Mechinary & Equipment 2,018,140 1,295,976
Repair & Maint Office Equipment & Furniture 3,993,680 4,602,515
Share Issue Expenses 679,434 209,002
Celebration Expenses 678,948 983,105
Technical Fees 4,855,737 5,929,485
Total 301,128,215 281,118,650
qg 3if afie ufaded 90T
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4.37 A Ofice Administration Expenses

Particulars FY 2080-81 FY 2079-80
Insurance 42,327,812 35,612,705
Postage, Telephone, Internet 8,472,660 8,706,449
Printing & Stationery 22,025,803 23,577,338
Newspaper & Periodicals 67,164 59,779
Advertisements 6,246,844 7,664,222
Travelling Expenses 1,372,787 2821924
Fuel Expenses 9,497,010 10,683,492
Entertainment 4,883,510 4,972,219
AGM Expenses 1,043,385 1,293,602
Annual Fee 8,741,557 6,786,053
Office Expenses/Commission & Discount & others 270,1M =
Annual Meeting Fee
Branch Opening Expenses 19,300 294,459
Local Tax and Rates 3,822,400 3,298,611
Business Promotion Expenses 2,044,037 3,949,941
Fund Transfer Expenses 307,300 301,480
Merger Expenses
Expense Not Capitalized 1,781,248 2,399,246
Other 20,510,509 18,877,979
Others Expenses 2924662 2,790,867
Membership Expenses 1462509 1,536,125
ABBS Expenses 7,336,186 6,825,765
Consultancy Fee 1,145,900 912,900
Anniversary Expenses 616,138 1,465,513
Janitorial Expenses 7,025,114 5,346,809
Total 133,433,437 131,299,500
4.37 B Operating Lease Expenses
Particulars FY 2080-81 FY 2079-80
House Rent Expenses 56,104,658 42763134
Electricity Expenses 18,166,654 17,690,334
Security Expenses 60,189,582 58,457,340
Total 134,460,894 118,910,807
4.38 Depreciation and Amortisation
Particulars FY 2080-81 FY 2079-80
Depreciation on property and equipment 77,305,940 75,625,137
Depreciation on investment property - -
Amortisation of intangible assets 3,918,681 4,002,441
Total 81,224,621 79,627,578
4.39 Non Operating Income
Particulars FY 2080-81 FY 2079-80
Recovery of Loan written off 500,000 =
Other Income - -
Total 500,000 =
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4.40 Non Operating expense

Particulars FY 2080-81 FY 2079-80
Loan written off 5,732,499 2,446,349
Redundancy provision - -
Expense of restructuring - -
Other expense. 2,629,982 350
Total 8,362,480 2,446,699

4.41Income Tax Expenses

Particulars FY 2080-81 FY 2079-80
Current Tax Expenses 386,940,801 353,364,036
Current Year 334,219,121 348,260,268
Adjustment for Prior Years 52,721,680 5,103,768
Deferred tax (Expenses)/ Income 16,274,718 (29,742,831)
Origination and Reversal of Temporary 16,274,718 (29,742,831)
Differences
Change in tax Rate
Recognition of Previously unrecognized Tax - -
Losses
Total Income tax expense 403,215,519 323,621,205

4.41.1: Reconciliation of Tax Expenses and Accounting Profit

Particulars FY 2080-81 FY 2079-80
Profit Before Tax 1,055,987,5632 1136,031,341
Tax Amount at the Rate of 30% 316,796,260 340,809,402
Add: Tax Effect of the expenses that are not 60,928,080 51,468,224
deductible for tax purpose
Less: Tax Effect on Exempt Income (526,451) -
Add/Less: Tax Effect on other Iltems 9,742,912 (44,0]7,358)
Total Income Tax Expenses 386,940,801 348,260,268
Effective Tax Rate 36.64% 30.66%
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5. Disclosures & Additional Information

5.1 Risk Management

@
|

Effective Risk Management is an essential part of the High-Level Control framework. The
overall risk management system is reflected in the ongoing control environment, risk
awadreness and management style. Specific roles or responsibilities are assigned for
leading and managing the internal control environment through the: Chairman, and the
BOD, Risk Committee, Audit Committee, CEO and Senior Management, Risk Department,
Compliance Department and Support Functions.

The broad categories of risk the development bank face are credit risk, market risk, liquidity
risk, interest rate risk in the banking book and operational risk. Further, focus on digitization
leads to cyber security and data risk as well as reputation risk. The entity is also exposed to
Environmental, Social & Governance risks arising out of the nature of business operations
of the borrowers (particularly large, corporate borrowers), the industry segment in which
they operate and the deficits in their compliance to statutory/ regulatory norms.

Risk Management Committee:
Development Bank has implemented the Risk Management policy and guideline to
streamline the overall risk management function of the Development Bank.

In compliance with Nepal Rastra Bank Directive No. 6 “Corporate Governance”, the Board of
bank has established a Risk Management Committee with clear terms of reference. As at
the date of this report, the Bank’s Risk Management Committee comprised of the following:

Members of Risk Management Commiittee

1 Dr. Tara Prasad Upadhyaya- Non- Executive Director Chairperson
2 Er. Suraj Upreti - Audit Committee Head Member
3 NamrataThapa- Chief Operating Officer Member
4 CA Yashodhan Pandey - Chief Risk Officer Member secretary

The Committee meets at least four times annually. The committee oversees and reviews
the fundamental prudential risks including operational, credit, market, reputational, capital
and liquidity risk etc.

The responsibilities of Risk Management Committee are as follows:

a. Formulate policies and guidelines for identification, measurement, monitoring and
control all major risk categories.

b. Ensuring the bank has clear, comprehensive and well documented policies and
procedure.

c. Defining the bank’s overall risk tolerance in relation to credit risk.

d. Ensuring that bank’s significant risks exposure is maintained at prudent levels and

consistent with the available capital.

Apart from Board Level Risk Management Committee the other committees and groups as
mentioned below supports for Overall Risk Management.

ag 3l @1fiep yfeae 999
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Risk Governance

Risk management committee of the bank has formed to review the credit risk, market
risk and liquidity risk of the bank. Apart from this the bank has formed the Assets Liability
Management Committee to monitor Liquidity risk as well as market risk, AML CFT committee
in order to monitor the operational risk. The committee and subcommittee have effectively
discharged their duties & responsibility.

Risk Management Department conducts periodical financial surveillance and monitoring.
In addition to this, the risk management committee analyzes the Stress testing of the bank
as required by Nepal Rastra Bank and its impact and corrective action to mitigate the risk.

Through its risk management framework, the Bank seeks to efficiently manage credit,
market and liquidity risks which arise directly through the Bank’'s commercial activities as
well as operational, regulatory and reputational risks which arise as a normal consequence
of any business undertaking. As part of this framework, the Bank uses a set of principles
that describe its risk management culture. The bank has developed Risk Management
Policy, Guideline & Framework 2017 to manage Credit risk, Market risk and liquidity risk.

The major risk areas and mitigation mechanism is as given below;

1. Credit Risk
Credit risk is the potential for loss due to failure of counterparty to meet its obligations
to pay the Bank in accordance with agreed terms.

The bank has Credit Policy Guidelines (CPG) that, inter alia, consist of areas of lending,
eligibility of borrower, loan application format and requirement, necessary documents
for processing loans, risk assessment areas, loan approval authority and other general
credit principles. The CPG has been formulated by keeping in mind the prudential
norms given by NRB.

The Development Bank measures, monitors and manages the credit risk for each
borrower and also at the portfolio level. The credit review assessment of capital
adequacy, at a minimum, covers risk rating systems, portfolio analysis/aggregation,
large exposures and risk concentrations. The Development Bank has a structured and
standardized credit approval process, which includes a well-established procedure of
comprehensive credit appraisal.

A standardized loan application forms has been in use for facilitating collection and
analysis of all the relevant data for evaluating credit worthiness and proper evaluation
of the credit risk of the prospective borrower. The factors considered in evaluating loan
applications normally included prospects of the business, management of the firm/
company, financial analysis- income statement, balance sheet, cash flow statement,
key financial indicators, key risk and mitigates. Further, inspection and supervision are
also conducted before approval of the loan for pre-analysis and after the disbursement
of loan as well for monitoring the utilization of loan.

qg, 3t ¥ ufdde 992
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2. Operational Risk

Operationalriskis the prospect of loss of resulting from inadequate or failed procedures,
systems or policies, employee errors, system failures, fraud or other criminal activity,
any event that disrupts business processes.

Operational risk exposures are managed through a consistent set of management
processes that drive risk identification, assessment, control and monitoring. For the
control of operational risk of institution, it has Financial Administration Policy, Employee
Bylaws, operational manual, AML/CFT policy, Suspicious Transaction identification
Procedure, politically exposed person policy, which guides the day to day operation.

Each risk control owner is responsible for identifying risks that are material and
for maintaining an effective control environment across the organization. Risk
control owners have responsibility for the control of operational risk arising from the
management of the following activities: External Rules & Regulations, Liability, Legal
Enforceability, Damage or Loss of Physical Assets, Safety & Security, Internal Fraud
or Dishonesty, External Fraud, Information Security, Processing Failure, and Model.
Operational risks can arise from all business lines and from all activities carried out by
the Bank. Operational Risk management approach seeks to ensure management of
operational risk by maintaining a complete process universe defined for all business
segments, products and functions processes.

The monitoring has been undertaken with the following scopes:

¢ Monitor assessment of the exposure to all types of operational risk faced by the
Development Bank.

¢ An effective risk reporting has been designed in line with authorities.

e Establish early warning system for increasing risk of future losses.

Risks Potential Risk Risk Mitigants:

Internal Overriding the implemented standard The Bank has implement the well defined set of polices and
Process Risks | operating procedures and processes processes

for the execution of the every type of task in branch and
department.

The compliance to the same is examined by Internal Audit
Department

on an ongoing basis

People Risks . Untrained or under developed staffs Ensure employees are well trained on the basis of their

System
Risks

Information

External Events

Poor HR management

Fraud and Misappropriations
Absenteeism and late attendance
Attrition Risk

Physical Threats
Cyber Attacks
Infrastructure failures
Loss of Data

Theft or Destruction of Bank’s Assets
Natural Disaster Risk

functions.

Ensuring right and adequate staff at the right place.
Regular internal check and reconciliations.

Checked through the implementation of biometric
attendance device and human resource software.

Formal process are in place for succession planning.
Further the various staffs facilities have been extended to
the employees to retain, motivate and reduce the attrition
risks

CCTV, access door, panic alarm is placed in various places.
Use of firewall, antivirus, other software and regular
monitoring.

Separate disaster recovery site (near site and far site) has
been set up.

Data back up is kept on regular basis.

Physical security of the Bank is under 24 hour surveillance
both vide CCTV and security guard.

Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery Policy” are
followed in

case of the unfavorable circumstances due to natural
disasters.
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3. Market Risk
Risks arising out of adverse movements in interest rates and equity prices are covered
under Market Risk Management. Market Risk is the potential for loss of earnings or
economic value due to adverse changes in financial market rates or prices. Institution
exposure to market risk arises principally from customer driven transactions.

In line with Risk Management Guidelines prescribed by NRB, the Bank focuses on risk
management in addition to that Interest rate risk is assessed at a regular interval
to strengthen market risk management. The market risk is managed within the risk
tolerances and market risk limits set by ALCO. ALCO regularly meets, analyze and takes
decision over the Market Risk by analyzing the internal as well as external factor.

Risks arising from the market are Foreign Exchange Risk, Interest Rate Risk and equity
risk.

Foreign Exchange Risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of losses arising from the movement of foreign currency
exchange rates. Development Bank has defined the measurement systems that take
into account all the sources of foreign exchange risk. It evaluates the effect of foreign
exchange rate changes on profitability and economic value of assets and liabilities.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of negative effects on the financial result and capital of
the bank caused by change in interest rate. Development Bank have interest rate risk
measurement systems that assess the effects of rate changes on both earnings and
economic values of Assets.

4. Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the potential that the Bank either does not have sufficient liquid financial
resources available to meet all its obligations as they fall due, or can only access these
financial resources at excessive cost. The Liquidity Risk is managed by ALCO. The ALCO
has developed the Unified Treasury circular for overall liquidity management of bank.

Development Bank has Assets Liability Committee (ALCO) for managing overall
liquidity of the Development Bank. Generally, the function of liquidity risk management
is performed by ALCO and it comprises of senior management from each key area of
the Development Bank that assumes and manages liquidity risk. The ALCO meeting
has been held on a regular basis. ALCO’s general responsibilities include developing
and maintaining appropriate liquidity risk management policies and procedures,
optimizing the structure of assets and liabilities, maintaining the stability of the deposit
base, projecting cash flows and evaluating the level of current assets, in terms of
liquidity of the branches, maintaining an efficient internal fund transfer mechanism,
MIS reporting, limits and oversight programs. ALCO delegates day-to-day operating
responsibilities to the Development Bank’s treasury department.

Risk Management Department, ALCO, Senior Management, BOD level Risk Management
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committee and BOD regularly monitor the liquidity risk measurement practices.
Regular management reports and risk measures would be the source information of
monitoring. Monitoring functions have ensured about the relevancy and accuracy of
measurements and management practices.

5. Reputational Risk
Reputational risk is a risk of loss resulting from damages to reputation of institution,
in lost revenue; increased operating, capital or regulatory costs; or destruction of
shareholder value. Reputational risk is managed by the management committee
which is responsible for protecting the institution’s reputation locally and has the
responsibility to ensure that the Bank does not undertake any activities that may cause
material damage to the reputation of institution.

6 .Employee Benefit Risk
Employee benefit risk is the potential risk of loss due to having to meet shortfall in the
Bank’s defined benefits gratuity and leave encashment schemes. The gross obligation
for gratuity is calculated considering the salary at the time of retirement of the
individual staff and number of years’ service with the Bank. The home leave can be
accumulated for maximum period of 90 days for total period served by individual staff
and sick leave can be accumulated on unlimited basis that can be enchased after
45 days at the wish of the employees. The gross obligation for leave encashment is
calculated considering the last drawn salary multiplied by no of eligible days for leave

encashment.

7.Internal Control
The Board is committed to managing risks and in controlling its business and financial
activities in a manner which enables it to maximize profitable business opportunities,
avoid or reduce risks which can cause loss or reputational damage, ensure compliance
with applicable laws and regulations and enhance resilience to external events. To
achieve this, the Board has adopted policies and procedures of risk identification, risk
evaluation, risk mitigation and control/monitoring.

The effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system is reviewed regularly by
the Board, its Committees, Management and Internal Audit. The Audit Committee
has reviewed the effectiveness of the Bank's system of internal control during the
year and provided feedback to the Board as appropriate. The bank has outsourced
the Internal Audit function to maintain independency on the internal control system
of institution. The Internal Audit monitors compliance with policies/standards and the
effectiveness of internal control structures across the Company through its program
of business/unit audits. The Internal Audit function is focused on the areas of greatest
risk as determined by a risk-based assessment methodology. Internal Audit reports
are quarterly forwarded to the Audit Committee. The findings of all audits are reported
to the Chief Executive Officer and Business Heads for initiating immediate corrective

medasures.
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8. Any Other Risk
Compliance Risk
Compliance risk is the risk of legal or regulatory sanctions, material financial loss, or
loss to reputation due to failure to comply with laws, rules and standards.

SRDB is committed to follow best practices and market standards in the areas of
accountability, transparency and business ethics. The Development Bank aims at a
zero tolerance of misconduct and corruption.

In the day-to-day operations the three lines of defense model defines the roles and
responsibilities for compliance and integrity risk in the Development Bank.

The first line of defense lies with the respective Development Bank departments
and units, which are responsible for ensuring that compliance risks are identified,
understood and reported to the decision-making bodies of the Development Bank and
to Compliance Officer.

The second line of defense lies with Compliance Officer, which assesses and monitors
the compliance and integrity risks and coordinates its control activities with the Risk
Management Unit.

Internal Audit is the third line of defense.

The Compliance function assists the Development Bank in identifying, assessing,
monitoring and reporting on compliance risks in matters relating to the institution, its
operations and the personal conduct of staff members. The Chief Compliance Officer
reports to the CEO.

Strategic Risk

Strategic riskis the risk in achieving Development Bank’s strategic objectives, both from

internal and external events and scenarios which prevent from achieving strategic

objectives.

Strategic Risk can be further defined as:

e Exposure to loss resulting from a strategy that runs out to be inappropriate.

e Risk associated with future plans and strategies, including plans for entering
new services, expanding existing services through enhancements and merger,
enhancing infrastructures etc.

Current and prospective impact of strategic decisions made by management arising
from adverse business decisions, improper implementation of decisions or lack of
responsiveness to industry change etc.

Periodic (yearly) review of the strategy is being done by Management Committee and
reported to BOD regarding: status of the strategic objective’s achievement as decided,
execution status whether the right talent and infrastructures support the achievement
of the objective or about unintended consequences of the strategy, if any for their
timely corrections/updates if found to be necessary.

qg, 3t ¥ ufdde Q9g,
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Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk arises when there is a mismatch between positions, which are subject
tointerest rate adjustment within a specified period. Interest rate risk is usually assessed
from two common perspectives. Earnings perspective, which focuses on the impact
of variation in interest rate on accruals or reported earnings, and economic value
perspective, which reflects the impact of fluctuation in the interest rates on economic
value of a financial institution.

The Development Bank measures and manages interest rate risk by estimating the
sensitivity of the economic value of its balance sheet to an interest rate shock. The
sensitivity is measured by means of interest rates on the present value of interest-
bearing assets and liabilities.

AML/CFT Risk

AML/CFT risk is related with providing financial services to money launders and terrorists
for channeling of money derived from crime or aimed at funding terrorism. The
strictness of the provisions made in laws and directives reflect the seriousness of this
issue; non-compliance of which may cause significant reputational risk as well as may
result in adverse consequences. Development Bank have been closely monitoring the
AML/CFT policies, procedures, guidelines and practices of Banks & Financial Institutions
(BFls).

A separate AML/CFT Unit is established under direct supervision and control of
Compliance Officer which looks after the effective implementation and compliance of
AML/CFT related prevailing Acts, Rules and Directives.

5.2 Capital Management
i. Qualitative disclosures

The bank has maintained the capital adequacy as per Capital adequacy framework,
2015 as required by Nepal Rastra Bank. The main objective of this framework is to
develop a safe and sound financial system by way of sufficient amount of qualitative
capital and risk management practices. The total equity of the bank comprises of
paid up capital, statutory reserves and other reserves. The bank does not have any
other complex or hybrid capital instruments. Capital adequacy ratio as on Ashad end
2081 is 11.38% and 12.64% on Tire 1 Capital (core capital) and Tire 2 Capital (capital fund)
respectively.

a. The bank assesses the impact of the new rules, if any on their capital adequacy
through a comprehensive capital planning and optimization/mitigation process. The
capital planning is an integral part of the Bank’s medium term strategic planning and
annual budget formulation process. Total risk weighted exposures for the projected
level of business operations is calculated, the required capital level is projected, and a
plan is formulated to maintain the

required capital.

The bank has not raised any hybrid capital instruments till Ashadh End 2081.
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ii. Quantitative disclosures
1. Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy

a. Tire 1 Capital and a breakdown of its components

Detail Amount (Rs. in. ‘000)

a Paid up Equity Share Capital 4,733,691
b Equity Share Premium
© Proposed Bonus Equity Shares -
d Statutory General Reserves 1132,325
e Retained Earnings 417,351
f Unaudited current year cumulative profit/(loss)
g Capital Redemption Reserve
h Less: Goodwill -
i Less: Intangible Assets -
i Less: Fictitious Assets 20,974
k Less: Purchase of land & building in excess of limit and 33,017

unutilized

Total Core Capital 6,229,376

b. Tier 2 Capital and a breakdown of its Components

S.N Detail Amount (Rs. in. ‘000)

a Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Share
b Subordinated Term Debt
c General loan loss provision 684,125
d Exchange Equalization Reserve 447
e Investment Adjustment Reserve 2,500
f Asset Revaluation Reserve -
g Other Reserves

Total Supplementary Capital 687,072

c. Detailed information about the Subordinated Term Debts with information on the
outstanding amount, maturity, and amount rose during the year and amount
eligible to be reckoned as capital funds.

The bank has no any Subordinated Term Debts till date.

d. Deductions from Capital:
The amount of deferred tax reserve has been separately credited to Regulatory
reserve, which is not considered for the purpose of capital ratios.
Intangible asset has also been deducted as per NRB Directive by NPR 20,974 thousand.
The Purchase of land and building in excess of limit and unutilized amounting to NPR
33,017 thousand has been deducted from Tier 1 Capitall.

e.Total Qualifying Capital:

Amount (Rs. in. ‘000)

1 Core Capital (Tier 1) 6,229,376
2 Supplementary Capital (Tier 2) 687,072
Total Capital Fund 6,916,448

g" ‘ ag ot affs ufeed 99z
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f. Capital Adequacy Ratio:

Detail Percentage
1 Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposure 1.38%
2 Tier 1and Tier 2 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposure 12.64%

g- Summary of the terms, conditions and main features of all capital instruments,
especiallyincase of subordinated term debtsincluding hybrid capitalinstruments.
The capital instruments of the Bank include fully paid up Equity Shares.

2. Risk Exposures
2.1. Risk Weighted Exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk

1.1Risk Weighted Exposures Amount (Rs. in. ‘000)

a Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 49,990,236
b Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 3,186,339
© Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk 498
Total Risk Weighted Exposures (Before adjustments of Pillar )] 53,177,073

Adjustments under Pillar Il
SRP 6.4a(5) | Adjustment as per SRP 6.4a (5) -
SRP 6.4a(8) | Adjustment as per SRP 6.4a (6) -

SRP 6.4a(7) | Adjustment as per SRP 6.4a (7) 489,360

SRP 6.4a(9) | Adjustment as per SRP 6.4a (9) 1,063,541

SRP 6.4a (10) Adjustment as per SRP 6.4a (10) -

Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank's adjustments of Pillar )] 54,729,974
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2.3. Total Risk Weighted Exposure calculation table:

1.1Risk Weighted Exposure

Amount (Rs. in.‘000)

a Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 49,990,236
b Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 386,339
C Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk 498
Total Risk Weighted Exposures (Before adjustments of Pillar 1) 53,173,073
Adjustments under Pillar II
SRP 6.4a (5) Adjustment as per SRP 6.4a (5) -
SRP 6.4a (6) Adjustment as per SRP 6.4a (6) -
SRP 6.4a (7) Adjustment as per SRP 6.4a (7) 489,360
SRP 6.4a (9) Adjustment as per SRP 6.4a (9) 1,063,541
SRP 6.4a (IO) Adjustment as per SRP 6.4a (10) -
Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank’s adjustments of Pillar It) 54,729,974
Common Equity Tier 1(CET 1) 6,229,376
Supplementary Capital (Tier 2) 687,072
Total Capital Fund (Tier 1 and Tier It) 6,916,448
Common Equity Tier 1to Risk Weighted Exposure Ratios 1.38%
Tier 1to Risk Weighted Exposure Ratios 11.38%
Total Capital to Risk Weighted Exposure Ratio 12.64%
2.4. Amount of Non-Performing Assets (NPAs)
S.No Particulars Gross Provision Net
1 Substandard 1,059,957,550 262,279,866 797,677,684
2 Doubtful 475,167,928 236,795,962 238,371,966
3 Bad 332,603,686 327,446,124 5,157,562
Total 1,867,729,163 826,521,951 1,041,207,212

Assessment of capital adequacy of bank is done on regular basis taking into
considerations the exposure of bank. Also, the analysis of possible impact on capital

adequacy is being done on regular basis taking into consideration the future impacts
on assumptive basis. Capital adequacy of bank and impact in capital due to future
change in nature and size of business is discussed in Risk Management Committee
and is summarized in board. Regular monitoring of nature of business is being done
so that unexpected negative impact could not take place in capital adequacy of
bank. Reporting to regulatory body is being done as prescribed by compliance
department.

The internal capital adequacy assessment process (ICAAP) is a comprehensive
process which requires board and senior management oversight, monitoring,
reporting and internal control reviews at regular intervals to ensure the alignment of
regulatory capital requirement with the true risk profile of the bank and thus ensure
long-term safety and soundness of the bank. The key components of an effective
ICAAP are discussed below.

. Board and senior management oversight

Board and senior management oversight bank management is responsible
for relates to adequate capital levels. It is also responsible for ensuring that the
formality and sophistication of the risk management processes is commensurate
with the complexity of its operations. A sound risk management process, thus, is the
foundation for an effective assessment of the adequacy of a bank’s capital position.
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The board of directors of the bank is responsible for setting the bank’s tolerance
for risks. The board also ensures that management establishes a mechanism for
assessing various risks; develops a system to relate these risks to the bank’s capital
level and sets up a method for monitoring compliance with internal policies. It is
equally important that the board installs strong internal controls and thereby an
effective control environment through adoption of written policies and procedures
and ensures that the policies and procedures are effectively communicated
throughout the bank.

b. Sound Capital Assessment

Another crucial component of an effective ICAAP is the assessment of capital. In

order to be able to make a sound capital assessment the bank should, at minimum,

have the following:

e Policies and procedures designed to ensure that the bank identifies, measures,
and reports all material risks;

e A process that relates capital to the level of risk;

e Aprocess that states capital adequacy goals with respect to risk, taking account
of the bank’s strategic focus and business plan; and

e A process of internal control reviews and audits to ensure the integrity of the
overall management process.

c. Comprehensive assessment of risk
All material risks faced by the bank should be addressed in the capital assessment
process. Nepal Rastra Bank recognizes that not all risks can be measured precisely.
However, bank should develop a process to estimate risks with reasonable certainties.
In order to make a comprehensive assessment of risks, the process should, at
minimum, address the following forms of risk.

Credit Risk

Credit Concentration Risk

—_

Operational Risk
Market Risk
Liquidity Risk

ok~ w N

d. Monitoring and reporting
The bank has established an adequate system for monitoring and reporting risk
exposures and assessing how the bank’s changing risk profile affects the need for
capital. The bank’s senior management or board of directors, on a regular basis,
receives reports on the bank’s risk profile and capital needs. These reports allow
senior management to:

Evaluate the level and trend of material risks and their effect on capital levels.
Evaluate the sensitivity and reasonableness of key assumptions used in the capital
assessment measurement system.

Determine that the bank holds sufficient capital against the various risks and is in
compliance with established capital adequacy goals; and

Assess its future capital requirements based on the bank’s reported risk profile and
make necessary adjustments to the bank’s strategic plan accordingly.

qg, 3t ¥ ufdde 23
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e. Internal Control Review
The bank’s internal control structure is essential to a sound capital assessment
process. Effective control of the capital assessment process includes an independent
review and, where appropriate, the involvement of internal or external audits. The
bank’s board of directors has a responsibility to ensure that management establishes
a system for assessing the various risks, develops a system to relate risk to the bank’s
capital level, and establishes a method for monitoring compliance with internal
policies. The board should regularly verify whether its system of internal controls is
adequate to ensure well-ordered and prudent conduct of business. The bank should
conduct periodic reviews of its risk management process to ensure its integrity,
accuracy, and reasonableness. Key areas that should be reviewed include:
e Appropriateness of the bank's capital assessment process given the nature,

scope and complexity of its activities.

e dentification of large exposures and risk concentrations.
e Accuracy and completeness of data inputs into the bank’s assessment process.
e Reasonableness and validity of scenarios used in the assessment process; and
e Stress testing and analysis of assumptions and inputs.

5.3 Classification of Financial Assets & Financial Liabilities

Fair value
through OCl  through profit
orloss

Cashin hand 767,851,600 767,851,600
Balances with B/F|S 14,109,393 14,109,393
Money at call and short notice 442,072,797 442,072,797
Interbank placement - -
Balance at NRB 2738,488,699 2,738,488,699
Derivative financial instrument -
Loans & Advances 55,342140,257 55,342140,257
Government bonds 9,283,351,714 9,283,351,714
Government treasury bills 350,000,000 350,000,000
Equity investments 469,354,089 469,354,089
Other assets 159,894,218 159,894,218
Total Financial Assets 70,097,908,678 469,354,089 70,567,262,767

Financial Liabilities Amortized Cost Fair value through profit or loss

(FVTPL)
Held for Designated at
trading FVTPL

Deposits from customers 65,956,224,347 65,956,224,347
Due to Banks & Financial Institutions 369,025,734 369,025,734

Due to Nepal Rastra Banks - -
Debt Securities - -

Employee related liabilities 131,238,699 131,238,699
Bills payable - -
Creditors and accruals 90,164,238 90,164,238
Interest payable on deposit 5,160,655 5,160,655

Interest payable on borrowing - -
Unpaid Dividend - -
Liabilities under Operating Lease 95,208,624 95,208,624
Other liabilities 62,644,172 62,644,172

Total Financial Liabilities 66,709,666,468 - 66,709,666,468
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5.4 Investmentin Equity
The investment in equities is classified as fair value through Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI). The valuation hierarchy is presented below;

S.N. Particulars Level1l Level 2 Level 3

1 Siddhartha Investment Growth Scheme 2 47,750,000

2 Siddhartha Equity Fund 17,348,406

3 Sanima GIC Insurance Limited 21,019,245

4 N..C. Asia Mutual Fund 7,425,000

5 Sanima Equity Fund 6,546,000

6 Aarambha Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited. 16,725,366

7 Citizens Mutual Fund 1 4,820,000

8 Surya Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited 7,830,199

9 N..C. Asia Mutual Fund-2 4,100,000

10 NIBL Stable Fund 2,500,000

n National Life Insurance Company Limited. 946,050

12 Citizens Mutual Fund 2 2,557,500

13 NMB 50 Mutual Fund 4,518,000

14 |NIBL Sahabhagita Fund 7,920,000

15 Butwal Power Company Limited. 1,769,790

16 Dhaulagiri Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 7,646,625

17 Chilime Hydropower Company Limited 968,595

18 |Mero Micro Finance Lagubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited . 2,800

19 Neco Insurance Limited 2,508

20 |Asian Life Insurance Company Limited. 1,869

21 Banking and Financial Institution Limited. 2,750,000

22 [Trust Micro Insurance 52,500,000

23 Nepal Clearing House Limited. 495100

24 |Nagdi Group Power Limited 1,364

25 [Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited. 619

26 |Nabil Balance Fund-2 2,781,891

27 Nabil Balance Fund-3 130,026

28 [Nabil Flexi Cap Fund 20,000,000

29 |NIBL Growth Fund 31,920,000

30 |PrabhuSmart Fund 4,805,000

31 Sanima Growth Fund 4,056,000

32 |Global IME Balance Fund 1 4,550,000

33 |Nmb Sulav Fund Il 2,650,000

34 [Nerude Mirmire Laghubitta Bittiya Santha Limited. 1440

35 | Arun Kabeli HydroPower Limited 96,940

36 |ArunVally Hydropower Limited 3,458,376

37 Mountain Energy Limited 2,746,200

38 [Ngadi Group Power Limited 170,500

39 |Sahas Urja Limited 3,108,810

40 |Synergy Power DevelopmentLimited 382,350

a4 Upper Hewakhola Hydropower Limited 2322174

42 |Asian Life Insurance Company Limited 2,843,372

43  [Life Insurance Company Limited 1,869,400

44  [Neco Insurance Company Limited 3,364,900

45  [NLG Insurance Company Limited 4,025,373

46 |Rastriya Beema Company Limited 2,023,500

47  |United Ajod Insurance Company Limited 2,771,055

48 [Bottlers Nepal Limited 39,00,000

49 [Himalayan Distillery Limited 292,256

50 |Nepal Doorsanchar Company Limited 3,380,000

51 CEDB Hydropower Development Company Limited 4,056,500

52 |Citizen Investment Trust 3,403,750

53 |Emerging Nepal Limited 2,249,240

54 | Vision Lumbini Urja Company Limited 132,250,000
Grand Total 228,137,555 185,471,434 55745,100

@



5.5 Operating Segment Information
a. General Information
An operating segment is a component of an entity that engages in business activities
from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses
relating to transactions with other components of the same entity) whose operating
results are regularly reviewed by the entity’s chief operating decision maker to make
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance,
and for which discrete financial information is available.

b. Information about Profit or Loss, Assets & Liabilities

Particulars Province Province Province Province Province Total

Bagmati Gandaki  Lumbini karnali Sudurpaschim

a |Revenues 49,090,971 3,730,099 302,040,620 1,425,747 4,848,028 361,135,465
from external
customers

b |Intersegment 145,995,060| 24,076,775 3,464,092]01 - 88,777| 3634252713
revenues

Net Revenue 195,086,032| 27,806,874 3,766,132,721 1425747 4,936,805| 3,995,388,179
Interest revenue 912,457,168 | 58,256,953 5,154,407,619 19,127,586 80,284,377| 6,224,533703
Interest expense| 669,752,749 55550,916| 4,043122108 5,830,352 36,103,633| 4,810,359,759

Net interest 242,704,418 2,706,037 111,285,512 13,297,234 44,180,744 1414,173,945
revenue

- 0 QO O

g |Depreciation -
and
amortisation

h ?egnj\ent profit / 242,704,418 2,706,037 111,285,512 13,297,234 44,180,744 1,414,173,945
loss

i |Entity's interest = = = = =
in the profit

or loss of
associates
accounted for
using equity
method

j | Other material - -
non-cash items:

Provision for 13,794,170 429,062 461,678,464 = 1,979,293 477,880,988
Loan Loss

k |Impairment of - = - - - .

assets
| Segment assets 8,276,224151| 518,089,456 | 65,914,703,522| 208,457,066 757,490,154 | 75,674,964,348
m |Segment 9,092,390,692| 782,338,154 | 57,642]114,491| 134,098,381 588,816,674 | 68,239,758,391
liabilities

c. Measurement of Operating Segment Profit or Loss, Assets and Liabilities
The Bank has determined segments based on the geographical region i.e. Province wise.

d.Reconciliations of Reportable Segment Revenues, Profit or Loss, Assets and Liabilities

d.Revenue
Total revenues for reportable segment 361,135,465
Other revenues 749,721,951
Elimination of intersegment revenues
Entity’s revenues 7,510,857,416

[ 3t arfie ufcraes
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b. Profit or Loss

Total profit or loss for reportable segments 1414,173,945
Other profit or loss
Elimination of intersegment profits

Unallocated amounts: (728,852,496)

Profit before income tax 685,321,449
c.Assets

Total assets for reportable segments 75,674,964,348

Other assets

Unallocated amounts (2,018,545,868)

Entity’s assets 73,656,418,480

d. Liabilities

Total liabilities for reportable segments 68,239,758,391
Other liabilities =
Unallocated liabilities (1,475,244,676)
Entity’s liabilities 66,764,513,715

e. Information about Product & Services

Revenue from each type of product & Service Amounts

Loan & Advance 6,515,012,994
Money at call 28,290,474
Investment Securities 580,793,577
Remittance 9,990,239
Service Fees 190,023,492
Non- Funded Commission 5,104,093
Other Product & Services 132,647,537
Total revenue 7,461,862,405

f. Information about Geographical Area
Revenue from following geographical areas:

(a) | Domestic 361,135,465
Province Bagmaiti 49,090,971
Province Gandaki 3,730,099
Province Lumbini 302,040,620
Province Karnali 1425747
Province Sudurpashim 4,848,028

(b) |Foreign -
Total 361,135,465

g. Information about Major Customer
Revenue from single external customer is less than 10 percent of bank’s total revenue.

5.6 Share Options and Share based Payment

The Bank does not have any share options and share based payments.

5.7 Contingent Liabilities and Commitment
Contingent Liabilities
Where the Bank undertakes to make a payment on behallf of its customers for guarantees
issued for which an obligation to make a payment has not arisen at the reporting date,
those are included in these financial statements as contingent liabilities
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5.8

Commitments

Where the Bank has confirmed its intention to provide funds to a customer or on behalf
of a customer in the form of loans, overdrafts, future guarantees, whether cancellable or
not and the Bank has not made payments at the reporting date, those instruments are
included in these financial statements as commitments.

FY 2080-81 FY 2079-80
386,989,225| 291,873,058
264,145,182 1,427,665,274

Particulars
Contingent liabilities
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities

Capital commitment
Lease Commitment

651,134,407 1,719,538,331

Related Party Disclosures

The Bank identifies the following as the related parties under the requirements of NAS 24.
a. Directors

b. Key Management Personnel of the Bank

c. Relatives of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

FY 2080-81 FY 2079-80

Directors Directors

Thaneshor Poudel

Dr. Tara Prasad Updhyaya
Er. Suraj Upreti

Mohan Chapagai
Birendra Bista

Thaneshor Poudel

Dr. Tara Prasad Updhyaya
Er. Suraj Upreti

Mohan Chapagai
Birendra Bista

Namrata Bhandari Namrata Bhandari

Gopal Prasad Pandey

Gopal Prasad Pandey

Key Managerial Personnel

Key Managerial Personnel

Prakash Poudel-CEO
Lokraj Paneru— DCEO

Prakash Poudel-CEO
Lokraj Paneru— DCEO

The Board of Directors vide its 299 resolution dated on 2081/07/11 has approved the
resignation of director Mohan Chapagaii.

Particulars 2080-81 2079-80

Directors

Directors Sitting Fees 1,440,000 1,303,000

Interest Paid to directors on deposits 5,425,010 9,847,610

Other directors’ expenses (if any) 1122,430 1773382

Total 7,987,440 12,923,992

Key Management Personnel

Remuneration and Benefit Paid 18,508,246 17,728,806

Post-Retirement Benefits

Other Long-term Benefits

Borrowing during the year 16,665,000 15,000,000

Interest on Borrowing 1,016,998 2,006,577

Interest on account balances 107,918 63,433

Other transactions benefits if any

Total 3,62,981,62| 3,47,988,16
f‘ ‘ qg, 3t ¥ ufdde 2T
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Reporting Date Balance

Particulars 2080-81 2079-80
Directors Deposits 4162,980( 4,078,099
KMP Deposits 2222814 331947
Borrowings (KMP) 16,665,000| 15,000,000
Other Receivable payables if any
Total 23,050,794 | 19,410,045

5.9 Additional Disclosure of Non-Consolidated Entities
Not Applicable.

5.10 Loan Written off

Details of written off Loan& Advance During the FY 2080/81 are as follows.

Branch Principal Interest

Name Write off Writeoff
1 Tamaghas  |Siddhiraj Shopping Centre 500,000 = 500,000
2 Head Office |Bhattarai Rice Mill Nba Loss 1,675,157 - 1,675,157
3 Basghadhi R K Enterprises 3,657,342 3,657,342
Total 57,32,499 57,32,499

5.11 Events After Reporting Date
Bank monitors and assesses events that may have potentialimpact to qualify as adjusting
and [ or non-adjusting events after the end of the reporting period. All adjusting events
are adjusted in the books with additional disclosures and non-adjusting material events
are discloses in the notes with possible financial impact, to the extent ascertainable.

As per NRBDirectivesinterest accrued onloan and advance including employee borrowing
up to Ashad 2081 was NRs. 540,5692,278. Out of this amounts, interest recovered with in 32rd
Shrawan 2081 is NRs. 112,798,891 which has been adjusted in Regulatory Reserve.

There are no material events that have occurred subsequent to 31stAshad, 2081 till the
signing of this financial statement except reported below.

Proposed Dividend

Dividend on ordinary shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when
they are approved by the Bank’s shareholders. Dividend for the year that is approved after
the reporting date is disclosed as an event after the reporting date.

The Board of Directors of the Bank through its meeting no 300 dated 2081/07/23 has
proposed 3.00% of Bonus share on Current Paid-up capital amounting NPR 4,733,690,951
which equals to NPR 142,010,729 & 5.00% of Cash Dividend on current Paid-up capital NPR
4,733,690,951 which equals to NPR 236,684,548 including bonus tax.

The following Bonus Share & Cash dividend for its tax purposed is proposed for approval
in the upcoming AGM.

Particulars Amounts Rs.
Distributable Profit 417,351,437
Paid-up Capital 4,733,690,951
Proposed Bonus Share @ 3.00 Percent 142,010,729
Proposed Cash Dividend @ 5.00 Percent including Bonus Tax 236,684,548
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5.12 Mitigate the risk of Covid 19 Impact as per NRB Directives:

The Covid-19 pandemic has impacted most of the countries, including Nepal. This
resulted in countries announcing lockdown and quarantine measures that sharply stalled
economic activity. The government and numerous companies, including the Bank, have
introduced a variety of measures to control the spread of the virus. The Government
of Nepal imposed prohibitory order which has led to significant decline and volatility in
economic activities. Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB) has announced several medsures to ease
the financial system stress, including enhancing system liquidity, moratorium on loan
repayments, and asset classification standstill benefit to overdue accounts where a
moratorium has been granted.

The Nepalese economy would be impacted by this pandemic with contraction in industrial
and services output across small and large businesses. The Bank's business is expected
to be impacted by lower lending opportunities and revenues in the short to medium term.
The Bank’s capital and liquidity position is strong and would continue to be the focus area
for the Bank during this period.

Further the Bank has provided below mentioned facilities in line with NRB guidelines:
Table1

Particulars As of Ashad end 2081

Noof Customers  Amount (NRs.)

Accrued Interest Received after Ashad end 2081 till 32 Shrawan 2081 1,267 112,798,891
Additional 0.3% Loan Loss Provision created on Pass Loan Portfolio NA
Extension of moratorium period of loan provided to Industry or Project under
Construction

Restructured/Rescheduled Loan with 5% Loan Loss Provision

Enhancement of Working Capital Loan by 20% to COVID affected borrowers
Enhancement of Term Loan by 10% to COVID affected borrowers

Expiry date of Additional 20% Working Capital Loan (Covid Loan) extended for
up to 1year with 5% provisioning

Expiry date of Additional 10% Term Loan (Covid Loan) extended for up to1year
with 5% provisioning

Time Extension provided for repayment of Principal and Interest for up to two

years as per clause 41 NRB Directives 2

Table 2

Particulars As of Ashad end 2081

No of Customers Amount (NRs.)
Refinance Loan

Business Continuity Loan

Table 3
Particulars During FY 2080/081
No of Customers Amount (NRs.)
Subsidized Loan 669 744,108,376
As per our attached report of even date For and on Behallf of Board
For S.AR Associates Bhuwan Prasad Panth Prakash Poudel
Chartered Accountants Chief finance Officer Chief Executive Officer
CA.Ramesh KumarDhital ~ Thaneshor Poudel Dr.Tara Prasad Upadhyaya  Er.Suraj Upreti
Partner Chairman Director Director
Date : 23, Kartik 2081 Birendra Bista Namrata Bhandari Gopal Prasad Pandey
Place : Kathmandu Director Director Independent Director
f‘ ‘ qg, 3 ¥ ufddes 930
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Major Indicator
Previous Five Years Indicator

Detail Financial Year
2076-77 2077-78 2078-79 2079-80 2080-81
1 Adequacy of Capital Fund on Risk
Weighted Exposure
Core Capital Rs 4,063,273,830| 4,524,282,201 504,612,605 5,707,627,681| 6,229,376,428
Total Capital Fund Rs 4,380,944,170| 4,918]133,085| 5,607,603,605 6,363,313,311| 6,916,447,914
Risk Weighted Exposure Rs 31,490,594,217 47,885,237,072| 54,729,974,145
28,073,927,990 39,043,356,000
Capital Fund to RWE % 15.61% 15.62% 14.36% 13.29% 12.64%
2 Earning Per Share (E.P.S) Rs 15.39 14.77 1716 17.69 14.48
3 Market Value Per share (MP.S) Rs 222 256 2949 384.00 405.00
4 Book Networth Per Share Rs 140.95 142.39 14312 1447 145.59
5 Net Profit Per Staff Rs 756,644 823,075 892,307 1,016,124 928,620
6 Per Employee Staff Cost Rs 597,798 703,385 684,003 784,349 976,419
7 Number of Promoter Equity Shares |Nos 17,664,464 17,383,166 19,283,146 21,847,804 24141824
8 Number of Public Equity Shares Nos 12,498,934 16,701,473 18,626,944 20,991,028 23,195,086
9 Number of Staffs Nos 564 612 727 746 738
10 Number of Branches Nos 69 80 84 88 88
1l Number of Extension Counters Nos 1 1 1 1 1
12 Number of ATM Machines Nos 5 7 7 16 18
13 Price Earning Ratio Times 14.42 17.33 1719 2170 27.97
14 |Divdend (Bonus Share) on Share  [% 13.00% 10.93% 13.30% 10.50% 3.00%
Capital
15 Cash Dividend on Share Capital % 0.00% 0.57% 0.70% 0.55% 5.00%
16 |Net Profit/Gross Income % 12.67% 14.67% 1319% 10.41% 912%
17 Net Profit/ Loan & Advance % 1.72% 1.58% 172% 1.66% 1.27%
18 Return on Total Assets % 121% 119% 128% 120% 0.93%
19 |Return on Equity % 10.04% 10.38% 12.0% 12.27% 9.94%
20 Interest Income/Total Loan & % 12.98% 10.08% 12.38% 15.28% 13.34%
Advance
21 Exchange Gain/ Total Income % - - - - -
22 Interest Expenses/ Total Deposit % 7.01% 5.69% 8.30% 8.57% 7.27%
and Borrowings
23 Total operating Expenses/Toth % 159% 1.62% 1.60% 149% 150%
Assets
24 Staff Expenses/ Total Operating % 60.25% 63.04% 61.49% 61.86% 65.33%
Expenses
25 Staff Bonus/ Total Staff Expenses  |% 2216% 20.12% 19.63% 21.57% 16.27%
26 Total Credit/ Total Deposit % 8119% 89.01% 87.54% 81.47% 82.05%
27 Non-Performing Loan/Total Loans  |% 110% 1.27% 114% 1.81% 3.43%
28 Base Rate % 8.90% 7.91% 11.06% 11.36% 8.32%
29 Weighted Average Interest Rate % 4.98% 4.99% 4.41% 4.60% 4.36%
Spread
30 Weighted Average Interest Rate % 6.90% 4.93% 8.99% 9.36% 6.56%
on Deposit
31 Weighted Average Interest Rate % 1.89% 9.92% 13.40% 13.96% 10.92%
on Credit
32 Institutional Deposit/Total Deposit | % 9.10% 7.99% 9.50% 13.81% 16.70%
@ | . 2 s -
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Comparision of Statement of Financial Position
As on 31st Ashad 2081

As per As per Variance Reasons for Variance
Unaudited Audited
Particulars Notes 31Ashad2081 31Ashad2081 InAmount
Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 41| 2,224,034,823 2,224,033,789 1,034| 0.00%
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 42| 2,738,488,699 2,738,488,699 -
Placement with Bank and Financial 43 = = =
Institutions
Derivative financial instruments 44 - - -
Other trading assets 45 = =
Loan and Advances to B/FIS 4.6 1,757156,057 1,759,277,363 (2,121,306) -0.12%
Loans and advances to customers 47| 52]170,668,580| 52,002,767,569 167,901,012 0.32%|Calculation of Deffered
Revenue Expenditure on
Staff Borrowing
Investment in securities 48| 13,601,299,069| 13,604,205,803 (2,906,734) -0.02% | Audit Adjustment
Current Tax Assets 4.9 54,915,200 56,477,550 (1,562.350) 0.00% | Audit Adjustment
Investment in subsidiaries 410 - - -
Investment in Associates 41 = = =
Investment property 412 130,017,343 130,017,343 0
Property and equipment 413 616,140,430 611,067,762 5,072,668 0.82%
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 414 139,769,777 139,469,886 299,891
Deferred tax assets 415 = = =
Other assets 416 203,433,583 390,612,717 (187,179,134) -92.01% | Calculation of Deffered
Revenue Expenditure on
Staff Borrowing
Total Assets 73,635,923,561| 73,656,418,480 | (20,494,919) | -0.03%
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 417 379,588,079 369,025734| 10,562,345| 278%
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 418 - - -
Derivative Financial instruments 419 - - -
Deposit from customers 420| 65,945,662,001| 65,956,224,347 (10,562,345) -0.02%
Borrowings 421 4,610,241 4,610,241 =
Current Tax Liabilities 49 - - -
Provisions 422 = = =
Deferred tax liabilities 415 52,608,006 41,311,498 1,296,508 | 21.47% | Audit Adjustment
Other liabilities 423 369,459,899 393,341,896 (23,88],997) -6.46% | Audit Adjustment
Debt securities issued 424 - - -
Subordinated Liabilities 4.25 - - -
- - 0%
Total liabilities 66,751,928,226 | 66,764,513,715 | (12,585,489) | -0.02%
Equity
Share Capital 426| 4,733,690,951 4,733,690,951 =
Share Premium - - -
Retained Earning 384,296,003 417,351,437 -8.60% | Audit adjustment
(33,055,433)
Reserves 4.27| 1766,008,381 1740,862,378| 25,146,003 1.42% | Audit adjustment
Total equity attributable to equity 6,883,995,335| 6,891,904,765 | (7,909,430) -0m%
holders
Non-controlling interests - - -
Total equity 6,883,995,335| 6,891,904,765| (7,909,430)| -0.11%
Total liabilities and equity 73,635,923,561| 73,656,418,480 | (20,494,919) 0%
Contingent liabilities and commitment 428 651,134,407 651,134,407 -| 0.00%
Net assets value per share 141.40 145.59 -420| -2.97%
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Comparision of Statement of Profit or Loss
For the Year ended 31st Ashad 2081

As per

Unaudited

As per
Audited

Variance

Reasons for Variance

2080-81

2080-81

In Amount

Interest Income 429 7,057,591430 7.169,357,077 (m765,647)| -158%|Calculation of interest on
Staff Boorrowing

Interest Expense 4.30 4,810,359,759 4,819,108,187 (8,748,429) -0.18% | Calculation of Interest on
Operating Lease

Net interestincome 2,247,231,672 2,350,248,890| (103,017,218) | -4.58%

Fees and Commission 431 332,559,779 333,616,055 (1056,276)| -0.32% | Audit adjustment

Income

Fees and Commission 4.32 32,294,710 33,910,208 (1,615,497) -5.00% | Audit adjustment

Expense

Net fee and Commission 300,265,068 299,705,847 559,221 0.19%

income

Netinterest fee and 2,547,496,740 2,649,954,737| (102,457,997) | -4.02%

commissionincome

Net Trading Income 4.33 S i S

Other Operating Income 434 28,568,447 7,884,284 20,684,163| 72.40%| Reclassification of Gain
on sale of Share

Total operuting income 2,576,065,187 2,657,839,021 (81,773,834) -3.17%

Impairment chqrge/ 4.35 490,311,727 491,038,685

(reversql) for loans and other

losses

Net Operuting income 2,085,753,461 2,166,800,336 (81,046,876) -3.89%

Operating expenses

Personal Expense 4.36 602,677,865 720,597,488 (117,919,623) -19.57% | Calculation of interest on
Staff Boorrowing

Other Operating Expenses 437 309,140,805 301,128,215 8,012591| 259%| Audit Adjustment

Depreciation and 4.38 75,852,062 81,224,621 (5,372,559)

amortisation

Operating Profit 1,098,082,728 1,063,850,012 34,232,716 | 3.12%

Non operating income 4.39 500,000 500,000 =

Non operating expense 4.40 18,214,243 8,362,480 9,851,762

Profit before income tax 1,080,368,486 1,055,987,532 24,380,954 | 2.26%

Income tax expense 441 382,922,658 370,666,083 12,256,575 3.20%

Current tax 387,668,300 386,940,801 727,499 0.19% | Calculation of Final
Income Tax

Deferred tax income (4,745,642) (16,274,7]8) 11,529,076 | 100.00% | Creation of deffered Tax

Profit for the period 697,445,828 685,321,449 12,124,379 | 1.74%

Profit attributable to:

Equity holders of the bank 697,445,828 685,321,449 12,124,379 174% | Audit Adjustment

Non-controlling interest - - -

Profit for the period 697,445,828 685,321,449 12,124,379| 1.74%

Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share 14.73 14.48

Diluted earnings per Share 14.73 14.48

@‘qaﬁaﬁwuﬁéﬂﬂ
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Comparative Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For the Year ended 31st Ashad 2081

As per As per Variance Reasons for
Unaudited Audited Variance
2080-81 2080-81 In Amount
Profit for the period 697,445,828 685,321,449 12,124,379 174%
Other comprehensive income, net of income = =
tax
a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit - -
or loss
. Gains/(losses) from investment in equity in- 48,733,520 51,640,253 (2,906,733) -5.96%|Reclassify  of
struments measured at fair value Investment
- Gains/(losses) on revaluation - - -
- Acturial gain/(losses) on defined benefit plans - (2131503) 2131503|  100.00% | Acturial Valua-
tion made
- Income tax relating to above items (14,620,056) (21,060,198) 6,440142| -44.05%|Tax effect
Net other comprehensive income that will not 34,113,464 28,448,552 5,664,912 16.61%
be reclassified to profit or loss
b) Iltems that are or may be reclassified to - -
profit or loss
. quns/(losses) on cash flow hedge = =
« Exchange gains/(losses)(arising from translat- - -
ing financial assets of foreign operation)
 Income tax relating to above items - -
« Reclassify to profit or loss - -
Net other comprehensive income that are or = = =
may be reclassified to profit or loss
c) share of other comprehensive income of - -
associate accounted as per equity method
Other comprehensive income for the period, 34,113,464 28,448,552 5,664,912 16.61%
net of Income Tax
Total comprehensive income for the period 731,559,292 713,770,001 17,789,291 2.43%
Total comprehensive income attributable to: = =
Equity holders of the Bank 731,559,292 713,770,001 17,789,291 2.43% | Audit
Adjustment
Non-controlling interest = =
Total Comprehensive income for the period 731,559,292 713,770,001 17,789,291 2.43%
g" ag ot affs ufeed 938
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Capital Adequacy Table
At the year ended Ashad, 2081

(Rs.in ‘000)

1.1RISK WEIGHTED EXPOSURES F/Y 2080/081 F/Y 2079/080

1.2 CAPITAL

(n) Tier1capital [Core Capital (CET1+AT1)]

Common Equity Tier1(CET1)

Paid up Equity Share Capital

Equity Share Premium

Proposed Bonus Equity Shares

Statutory General Reserves

Retained Earnings

Unaudited current year cumulative profit/(loss)

Capital Redemption Reserve

Capital Adjustment Reserve

Debenture Redemption Reserve

Dividend Equalization Reserves

Bargain Purchase Gain

Other Free Reserve

Less: Goodwiill

Less: Intangible Assets

Less: Fictitious Assets

Less: Investment in equity in licensed Financial Institutions
Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests
Less: Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits
Less: Investments arising out of underwriting commitments
Less: Reciprocal crossholdings

Less: Purchase of land & building in excess of limit and unutilized
Less: Cash Flow Hedge

Less: Defined Benefits Pension Assets

Less: Unrecognized Defined Benefit Pension Liabilities

Less: Negative Balances of reserve accounts

Less: Other Deductions

N X3S <C 0 0TO33 —R"R——3J3Q—-~00Q0 T Q

a Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 49,990,236 44)140,549
b Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 3,186,339 2,432,356
© Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk 498 150
Total Risk Weighted Exposures (Before adjustments of Pillar II) 53,177,073 46,573,054
Adjustments under Pillar Il
SRP 6.4a (5) |Adjustment as per SRP 6.4a (5) -
SRP 6.4a (6) Adjustment as per SRP 6.4a (6) -
SRP 6.4a (7) |Adjustment as per SRP 6.4a (7) 489,360 380722
SRP 6.4a (9) |Adjustment as per SRP 6.4a (9) 1,063,541 931,461
SRP 6.4a (10) |Adjustment as per SRP 6.4a (10) -
Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank’s adjustments of Pillar II 54,729,974 47,885,237

F/Y 2080/081
6,229,376
6,229,376

4,733,691

1132,325
417,351

33,017

F/Y 2079/080

5,707,628
5,707,628
4,283,883

991,122
477,280

33,017

Adjustments under Pillar Il

SRP 6.401(1) Less:Shortfall in Provision(6.4 a 1)
SRP 6.4a(2) |Less: Loans and Facilities extended to related parties and restricted lending

Additional Tier 1(AT1)

a Perpetual Non Cumulative Preference Share Capital
b Perpetual Debt Instruments
© Stock Premium

(B) supplementary Capital (Tier 2)

687,071

655,686

a Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Share
b Subordinated Term Debt
© Hybrid Capital Instruments
d General loan loss provision
e Exchange Equallization Reserve
f Investment Adjustment Reserve
g Asset Revaluation Reserve
h Other Reserves
Total Capital Fund (Tier | and Tier If)
1.3 CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIOS

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank’s adjustments of Pillar 1)
Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures(After Bank's adjustments of Pillar Ir)
Tier 1 and Tier 2 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures(After Bank’s adjustments of Pillar I1)

684,125
447
2,500

6,916,448
F/Y 2080/081

1.38%
1.38%

12.64%

652,811
375
2,500

6,363,314
F/Y 2079/080
1.92%

1.92%
13.29%

qg, 3 a1 ufddeT
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Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk
At the year ended Ashad, 2081

A.Balance Sheet Exposures

Book
Value

Specific
Provision

Eligible
CRM

Net
Value

Risk
Weight

(Rs.in ‘000)

Risk
Weighted

Cash Balance

Balance With Nepal Rastra Bank

Gold

Investment in Nepalese Government Securities

All Claims on Government of Nepall

Investment in Nepal Rastra Bank securities

All claims on Nepal Rastra Bank

Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank (ECA 0—1)
Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank (ECA—2)
Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank (ECA —3)
Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank (ECA—4—6)
Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank (ECA —7)

Claims On BIS, IMF, ECB, EC and MDB's recognized by the
framework

Claims on Other Multilateral Development Banks
Claims on Domestic Public Sector Entities
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 0-1)

Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 2)

Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 3-6)

Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 7)

Claims on domestic banks that meet capital adequacy
requirements

Claims on domestic banks that do not meet capital
adequacy requirements

Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 0-1)
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 2)
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 3-6)
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 7)

Claims on foreign bank incorporated in SAARC region
operating with a buffer of 1% above their respective
regulatory capital requirement

Claims on Domestic Corporates

Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 0-1)
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 2)
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 3-6)
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 7)
Regulatory Retail Portfolio (Not Overdue)

Claims fulfilling all criterion of regularity retail except
granularity

Claims secured by residential properties

Claims not fully secured by residential properties
Claims secured by residential properties (Overdue)
Claims secured by Commercial real estate

Past due claims (except for claims secured by residential
properties)

High Risk claims

Real Estate loans for land acquisition and development
(other than mentioned in Capital Adequacy framework
2015-point 3.3()(1)(k))

Lending against Shares(above Rs.5 Million)

Lending Against Securities (Bonds & Shares)

Lending against Shares(upto Rs.5 Million)

“Reall Estate loans for land acquisition and development (For
institutions/projects registred/licensed and approved by
Government of Nepal for land acquisition and

development purposes)”

qg, 3 a1 ufddeT

a
767,852
2,738,489

9,473,550

3,226,625

50,315

23,782,798

15,803,249

3,629,910

2,019,984
1,013,830
55,613

2,263,731
548,831

1,395

386,184
1,375,601

50,315

721185
17,500
27,672

4126

62,995

474924

d=a-b-c
767,852

2,738,489

9,473,550

3,226,625

23,719,803

15,328,325

3,629,910
1,298,799
996,330
27,941

2,259,606
548,831

13951

386,184
1,375,601

20%
50%
100%
150%
0%

100%
100%
20%
50%
100%
150%
20%

100%

20%
50%
100%
150%
20%

100%
20%
50%

100%

150%
75%

150%
100%
100%
150%

150%
125%

125%
100%
100%
100%

Exposures
f=d*e

645,325

23,719,803

1,496,244

2177946
1,298,799
996,330
41912

3,389,408
686,039

1,743,889

386,184
1,375,601

3%
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Person)dl Hirepurchase/Personal Auto Loans (upto Rs. 2.5 - - 100% -
Million

Personal Hirepurchase/Personal Auto Loans 327,364 7,935 S 319,429 100% 319,429
Investments in equity and other capital instruments of 299,666 - 299,666 100% 299,666
institutions listed in stock exchange
Investments in equity and other capital instruments of 55,413 = 55413 150% 83119
institutions not listed in the stock exchange
Staff loan secured by residential property 579,057 579,057 50% 289,629
Interest Receivable/claim on government securities = 0% =
Cash in transit and other cash items in the process of - 20% -
collection
Other Assets (as per attachment) 1129117 267,472 - 861,645 100% 861,645
TOTAL (A) 70,922,289| 1,096,203 | 537,919 69,288,167 49,810,867
B. Off Balance Sheet Exposures Book Specific  Eligible Net Risk Risk
Value  Provision CRM Value Weight Weighted
Exposures
Revocable Commitments - 0% -
Bills Under Collection - 0% -
Forward Exchange Contract Liabilities = = 10% =
LC Commitments With Original Maturity Upto 6 months 138,280 - 138,280 20% 27,656

domestic counterparty

Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0-1) i 20% i

Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 2) - - 50% -
Foreign counterparty (ECcA Rating 3-6) - - 100% -
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 7) - - 150% -
LC Commitments With Original Maturity Over 6 months - - = 50% =
domestic counterparty

Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0-1) - - 20% -
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 2) - - 50% -
Foreign counterparty (EcA Rating 3-6) - - 100% -
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 7) i = 150% i
Bid Bond, Performance Bond and Counter guarantee do- 248,709 1500 247209 40% 98,884
mestic counterparty

Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0-1) - - 20% -
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 2) - - 50% -
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 3-6) - - 100% -
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 7) - - 150% -
Underwriting commitments = S 50% S
Lending of Bank’s Securities or Posting of Securities as - - 100% -
collateral

Repurchase Agreements, Assets sale with recourse = = 100% =
Advance Payment Guarantee - - 100%

Financial Guarantee - - 100% -
Acceptances and Endorsements - - 100% -
Unpaid portion of Partly paid shares and Securities - = 100% -
Irrevocable Credit commitments (short term) 264,145 - 264,145 20% 52,829
Irrevocable Credit commitments (long term) - - 50% -
Claims on foreign bank incorporated in SAARC region op- - 20% -

erating with a buffer of 1% above their respective regulatory
capital requirement

Other Contingent Liabilities i = 100% =
Unpaid Guarantee Claims - - 200% -
TOTAL(B) 651,134 -| 1500 649,634 179,369
Total RWE for credit Risk Before Adjustment (A) +(B) 71,573,423 | 1,096,203 | 539,419 | 69,937,801 49,990,236

Adjustments under Pillar Il

SRP 6.40(3) - Add 10% of the loans & facilities in excess of -
Single Obligor Limits to RWE

SRP 6.4a(4) - Add 1% of the contract (sale) value in case of -
the sale of credit with recourse to RWE

Total RWE for Credit Risk after Bank’s adjustments under 71,573,423 1,096,203 | 539,419 | 69,937,801 49,990,236
Pillar 1l
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Other Assets FormNo.5
At the year ended Ashad, 2081 (Rs. in ‘000)
Assets Gross Amount Specific Net Balance
Provision
1 Fixed Assets 632,041.36 632,041.36
2 Interest Receivable on Other Investment -
3 Interest Receivable on Loan -
4 Non Banking Assets 130,017.34 130,017.34 -
5 Current Tax Assets - -
6 Deffered Employee Expenditure 206,831.43 206,83143
7 Sundry Debtors 158,549.12 = 158,549.12
8 Advance payment and Deposits 1,345.10 134510
9 Staff Loan and Advance i
10 Stationery - -
1 Other 234,065.24 137,454.48 96,610.75
TOTAL 1,362,849.59 267,471.83 1,095,377.76
Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk
At the year ended Ashad, 2081 .
(Rs.in ‘000)
S.N. Particulars FY 2078/79 FY 2079/80  FY2080/081
1 Net Interest Income 1,663,054.65 2117,279.66 2,350,248.89
2 Commission and Discount Income 196,694.31 286,567.28 333,616.06
3 Other Operating Income 39,701.69 15,599.55 7,884.28
4 Exchange Fluctuation Income
5 Addition/Deduction in Interest Suspense during the period
6 Gross income (a) 1,899,450.65| 2,419,446.50|  2,691,749.23
7 Alfa (b) 15% 15% 15%
8 Fixed Percentage of Gross Income [c=(axb)] 284,917.60 362,916.97 403,762.38
9 Capital Requirement for operational risk (d) (average of c) 350,532.32
10 Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 10%) in times (e) 9.09
n Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure [f=(dxe)] 3,186,338.78

SRP 6.4a(8) Adjustments under Pillar Il (if Gross Income for the last three years is negative)

@

1 Total Credit and Investment (net of Specific Provision) of releted month -

2 Capital Requirement for Operational Risk (5% of net credit and investment) -

3 Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 11%) in times 9.09

4 Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure (g) -

5 Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure [h=f+g] 3,186,338.78
80



Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk Form No.7
At the year ended Ashad, 2081

Rs. (In full figure)

Currency Open Position  Exchange Open Position  Relevant
(Fcy) Rate (L) Open
Position
1 INR - -
2 usD 8,214.81 133.36 1,095,527 1,095,527
3 GBP - -
4 EUR - -
B THB = =
6 CHF - -
7 AUD = =
8 CAD - -
9 SGD - -
10 JPY - -
1l HKD - -
12 DKK - -
13 SEK = =
14 SAR - -
15 QAR = =
16 AED - -
17 MYR - -
18 KRW - -
19 CNY - -
20 KWD - -
21 BHD = =
22 - -
23 = =
(a) Total Open Position 1,095,527 1,095,527
(b) Fixed Percentage 5%
(c) capital Charge for Market Risk (=axb) 54,776
(d) Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 10%) in times 9.09
(e) Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure (=cxd) 497,917
Net Liquid Assets to Total Deposit Ratio
At the year ended Ashad , 208l FormNo.8
Rs.in ‘000
Particulars Amount
A Total Deposit & Borrowing 66,325,250.08
1. Total Deposits (as per NRB Ni. Fa. 9.1) 66,3265,250.08
2. Total Borrowings (as per NRB Ni. Fa. 9.1) 4,610.24
B Liquid Assets 17,936,072.49
1. Cash(as per NRB Ni. Fa. 9.1) 767,851.60
2. Bank Balance (as per NRB Ni. Fa. 9.1) 2,752,598.09
3. Money at call and short notice (as per NRB Ni. Fa. 9.1) 1442,072.80
4. Investments in government securities (as per NRB Ni. Fa. 9.1) 9,473,550.00
5. Placements upto 90 days 3,500,000.00
Cc Borrowings payable upto 90 days 949.74
D Net Liquid Assets (B-C) 17,935,122.75
E Net Liquid Assets to Total deposit (D/AT) 27.04%
F Shortfall in Ratio No Shortfall
G Percentage of deposit to be added to RWE 0.00%
H Amount to be added to risk weighted exposures -
Note (if any)

g’. ‘ ag 3l arffe ufdees 989
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Questionnaires for Supervisory Adjustment in RWA & Capital
At the year ended Ashad, 2081

(Rs.in ‘000)
SRP Number Questionnaires Answers
SRP 6.4a(1) |Is there shortfall in provision? No
SRP 6.4a(2) |Is there any Loans & Facilities extended to director, employee (except No
staff bylaw), shareholders >1% & related parties?
SRP 6.4.a(3) |Is there any loans & facilities in excess of Single Obligor Limits? No
SRP 6.4a(4) |Is there any sale of credit with recourse facility? No
SRP 6.4a(5) |Is supervisor satisfied with ALM Policies and practices employed by the Yes
bank?
SRP 6.4a(7) |Is supervisor satisfied with the soundness of operational risk No
management practice adopted by the bank?
2.0%
SRP 6.4a(9) |Is supervisor satisfied with overall risk management policies and No
procedures of the bank?
2.0%
SRP 6.4q(10) Has the bank achieved desired level of disclosure requirement? Yes
Leverage Ratio
At the month end of Ashadh, 2081
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
A Exposure Measure 74,274,535.89 65,105,336.45
1.0n Balance Sheet Assets (Net of Specific Provision) 73,656,418.48 63,418,815.12
2.Repurchase Agreements and Securities Finance
3. Derivatives
4. Off Balance Sheet Exposure 651134.41 1,719,538.33
Less : Regulatory Deductions from CET1 Capital (CAF 2.7 Bl.b) 33,017.00 33,017.00
B Capital Measure 6,215,581.09 5,687,721.96
1. Common Equity Tier 1 Capital (After Regularory Adjustment) 6,229,376.43 5,707,628.00
2. Additional Tier 1 Capital i S
C _[Leverage Ratio in Percentage 8.39% 8.77%

37d. Q0¢0/¢q
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Disclosure under Basel lll as on Ashad end 2081
Capital Adequacy Framework, 2015 requires making a set of disclosure on the capital adequacy & risk
management framework of the bank. Disclosure requirement based on Financial Statement as on

Ashad end 2081 are as follows.

A.  capital Structure & Capital Adequacy

1. Tire1cCapital and Breakdown of its Components:

S.N

>SQ -~ 0 O O T Q

[

» = 0 T 0 3 3

Particulars

Paid up Equity Share Capital

Share Premium

Statutory General Reserves

Retained Earnings

Un-audited current year cumulative profit/(loss)

Capital Redemption Reserve

Capital Adjustment Reserve

Dividend Equalization Reserves

Other Free Reserve

Less: Goodwiill

Less: Deferred Tax Assets

Less: Fictitious Assets

Less: Investment in equity in licensed Financial Institutions
Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests
Less: Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits
Less: Investments arising out of underwriting commitments
Less: Reciprocal crossholdings

Less: Purchase of land & building in excess of limit and unutilized
Less: Other Deductions

NPRin 000’s
4,733,691

1,32,325
417,351

20,974

33,017

Total Tier 1 Capital

62,29,376

2. Tier 2 Capital and Breakdown of its Components :

(7]

>SQ@ ™0 O O T Q9

Particulars
Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Share
Subordinated Term Debt
Hybrid Capital Instruments
General loan loss provision
Exchange Equalization Reserve
Investment Adjustment Reserve
Asset Revaluation Reserve
Other Reserves

NPRin 000’s

684,125
447
2,500

Total Tier 2 Capital

687,072

3. Total Qualifying Capital

S.N Particulars NPRin 000's

i Tier 1 Capital [Core Capital] 6,229,376
ii Tier 2 Capital [Supplementary Capital] 687,072
Total Capital Fund 69,16,448

4. Capital Adequacy Ratio

Particulars

Percentage

i Tier | Capital to RWE 1.38%
i Total Capital to RWE 12.64%
83
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Summary of the terms, conditions and main features of all capital instruments,
especially in case of subordinated term debts including hybrid capital instruments.

The bank has not raised any funds through subordinate term debt including any hybrid
capital instruments.

Summary of Bank’s internal approach to assess the adequacy of capital to support
current and future activities

The Bank has formulated Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP’) which
has a sound and comprehensive policy and process for evaluating the Bank’s capital
including the overall risk profile, business projections and capital management strategies.
It covers the capital management policy of the Bank, set out the process for assessment
of the adequacy of capital to meet regulatory requirements support current and future
activities and meet the Pillar | and material Pillar Il risks to which the bank is exposed to.

The Risk Management Policy of the Bank provides the comprehensive stress testing
guidelines for credit, market, liquidity and other risk faced by the Bank. Stress testing takes
into account extreme but probable scenarios to assess the bank’s resilience to adverse
circumstances and resultant impact on the Bank’s risk profile and capital position. This
ensuresthatthe bankhas robust andforwardlooking capital planning andriskmanagement
process. Scenario assessment such as the fall in the financial markets, a falling trend in the
assets quality, volatile liquidity condition, negative changes in macroeconomic factors etc,
are taken into consideration while carrying out the stress testing.

B. Risk Exposures

b,
|

Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk

SN Particulars NPR in 000's
i Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 49,990,236
ii Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 3,186,339
iii Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk 498
Total Risk Weighted Exposures before Pillar Il adjustment 53,177,073

2. Risk weighted exposures under each 11 categories of Credit Risk:

S.N Particulars NPRin 000’s

i. Claims on Government & Central Bank

ii. Claims on Other Official Entities

iii. Claims on Banks 645,325

iv. Claims on Domestic Corporate 23,719,803

V. Claims on Regulatory Retail Portfolio 1,496,244

Vi. Claims secured by Residential Properties 3,476,745

Vii. Claims secured by Commercial Real Estate 996,330

Viil. Past Due Claims 41,912

iX. High Risk Claims 3,389,408

X Reall Estate Loan for Land Acquisition & development ( Other than 686,039

Mentioned in Capital Adequacy Framework 2015 — point 3.3()(1)(k)

Xi Lending Against Shares(clbove toRs. 25 MiIIion) 1,743,889

Xii Lending Against Shares(upto to Rs. 2.5 Million) 386,184
ag off arffe ufides 988
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xiii Real Estate Loan for Land Acquisition & development ( for institution / 1,375,601
projects/ licensed and approved by Government of Nepal for land
acquisition and development purpose )
Xiv Personal Hirepurchase loan | Personal Auto Loan 319,429
XV Investments in equity and other capital instruments of institutions listed in 299,666
stock exchange
XVi Investments in equity and other capital instruments of institutions not 8319
listed in the stock exchange
Xvii Staff loan secured by residential property 289,529
xviii Other Assets 861,645
XiX Off Balance- Sheet Items 179,369
Total Credit Risk Weighted Exposures 49,990,236
3. Types of eligible credit risk mitigants used and the benefits availed under CRM.
S.N Particulars NPRin 000’s
i. Deposits with Banks 539,419
ii. Deposits with other banks/financial institutions
iii. Gold
iv. Government and NRB Securities
V. Guarantee of Government of Nepal
Vi. Securities/Guarantee of other Sovereigns
Vii. Guarantee of Domestic Banks
Viil. Guarantee of Multilateral Development Banks
iX. Guarantee of Foreign Banks
Total Credit Risk Mitigants 539,419
4. Total Risk Weighted Exposure calculation table:
S.N Particulars NPRin 000’s
i. Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 49,990,236
ii. Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 3,186,339
iii. Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk 498
iv. Adjustments under Pillar I :
3% of gross income for Operational Risk
Ad RWE equivalent to reciprocal of capital charge of 2% of gross income 489,360
Overall risk management policies and procedures are not satisfactory. 1,063,541
Add 2% of RWE
Total Risk Weighted Exposure 54,729,974
5. Amount of Non-Performing Assets (both Gross and Net)
S.N Particulars Gross (in000’s)  Net (in 000’s)
i Re-structure & Reschedule
ii Substandard 1,059,957.55 797,677.68
iii Doubtful 475,167.93 238,371.97
iv Bad 332,603.69 5157.56
Total Non Per forming Assets 1,867,729.16 1,041,207.21
ag 3t af¥e ufdde 98Y
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6. NPARatios

Particulars Percent
i. Gross NPA to Gross Loan & Advances 343
ii. Net NPA to Net Loan & Advances 0.02
7.
Particulars This Year Last Year
i. Non-Performing Assets (In Amt) 1,867,729.16 830,469.39 1037,259.77
i. Non-Performing Assets (In %) 3.43 1.81 162

8. Write off of Loans and Interest Suspense

S.N Particulars NPRin 000’s
i. Loan written off during the reporting period 5,732,499
ii. Interest written off during the reporting period
Total amount written off 5,732,499

9. Movementin the Loan Loss Provisions and Interest Suspense

Particulars This Year Last Year
i. Loan Loss Provisions 1580,095.33 1,089,056.64 491,038.69
ii. Interest Suspense 481,220.83 252,353.01 228,867.82

10. Details of Additional Loan Loss Provisions

S.N Particulars NPRin 000’s

i. Provisioning for Pass Loans 572,098.62
ii. Provisioning for Watchlist Loans 181,474.76
iii. Provisioning for Restructured/Rescheduled Loans
iv. Provisioning for Sub-standard Loans 262,279.87
V. Provisioning for Doubtful Loans 236,795.96
Vi Provisioning for Bad Loans 327,446.2
Vii others if any

Total amount of additional loan loss provision 1,580,095

11. segregation of Investment Portfolio into held for trading, Held to Maturity & Available

for Sale.
S.N Particulars NPRin 000’s
i. Held for Trading
ii. Held to Maturity 13,134,851.71
iii. Available for sale 469,354.09
Total Investment 13,604,205

C. Risk Management Function
1. Risk management in the bank includes risk identification, measurement and assessment,
and its objective is to minimize negative effects that risks can have on the financial result
and capital of a Bank. Risk management strategies include the transfer of risk, avoidance
of risk, reduction of the negative effect of the risk and acceptance of the consequences of
a particular risk. The design of a risk management system depends among other things,
on its size, capital structure, complexity of functions, technical expertise, and quality of
Management Information System (MIS) and is structured to address both banking as well

as nonbanking risks to maximize shareholders’ value.

[ ‘ ag ot affe ufide=
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The Bank follows the following internal structure for effective Risk Management:

THEBOARD

Risk Management Chief Executive Audit
Committee Officer Committee

Risk Management Assets-Liablity
Department Committee
Oversees

Internal Audit
Function Of Bank

Oversees
Market Risk
Liquidity Risk
Equity Price Risk
& Other Risk

Oversees
Credit Risks
Operational Risks
& other Risks

The bank under the direction and oversight of the Board adopts the Risk Management Policy
to ensure business strategies, profitability and financial stability are inconsistent with the
Bank’s strategies and risk appetite. The Bank separately reviews the credit risk, operation
risk and market risk to ensure that the Bank operate within the risk appetite expressed by
the Risk Management Framework.

2. Risk Management Techniques

The Bank adopts the following techniques for these specific types of the risks:

i. cCreditRisk
The Bank exercises the following techniques in assessing the credit risk:

e Strict adherence to Board approved policies

¢ Independent review of credit proposals by Business Development Officers and Risk
Management Department

¢ Well-defined delegated authority levels.

+ Effective observance to post disbursal credit risk management techniques.

ii. Operational Risk
The Bank has developed a framework for managing operational risk and evaluating
the adequacy of capital covering the bank’s appetite and tolerance for operational
risk, as specified through the policies for managing this risk, including the extent and
manner in which operational risk is transferred outside the bank. It also includes policies
outlining the bank’s approach to identifying, assessing, monitoring and controlling/
mitigating the risk.

iii. Liquidity Risk
The objective of liquidity managementis to ensure that bank has sufficient funds to meet
its contractual and regulatory financial obligations at all times. Basically the Bank adopts
the following norms for liquidity risk management:

¢ Strict adherence to Basel Il and NRB requirement to maintain the liquidity ratios

¢ Keeping the close eye on the baking and economic scenario.

g" ‘ ag, 3l anfie ufide 98
S | 3ma. 0¢of¢q



4 F{_Acc‘-‘\_\

iv. Foreign Exchange Rate Risk
The following norms are adopted by the bank to manage the exchange rate risk:

¢ Maintenance of the Net Open Position within the threshold expressed by the Liquidity
Management Framework.

e Frequent monitoring of Open positions basis and analysis of the gains/losses.

V. Interest Rate Risk
The following norms are adopted by the bank to manage the interest rate risk:

+ Effective cost benefit analysis for the product development

¢ Regular Net Interest Margin and Credit to Deposit Ratio monitoring

¢ Gap analysis to check the measures for the mismatches between rate sensitive
liabilities and rate sensitive assets.

vi. Capital Risk
The following norms are adopted by the bank to manage the capital risk:
¢ Meeting the regulatory capital requirements
¢ Monthly computation of Capital Adequacy Ratios under normal and stress conditions.

qg 3if afie ufaded 98T
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